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Subject to the consequences of default as contained in the Trust Agreement, and unless otherwise redeemed prior to
Maturity Date, the Bonds will be redeemed at par (or 100% of face value) on the relevant Maturity Date (see
“Description of the Bonds” – “Redemption and Purchase” on page 40).
Upon issuance, the Bonds shall constitute the direct, unconditional, unsubordinated, and unsecured obligations of
TDI and shall at all times rank pari passu and ratably without any preference or priority amongst themselves and at
least pari passu with all other present and future unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of TDI, other than
obligations preferred by law. The Bonds shall effectively be subordinated in right of payment to, among others, all
of TDI’s secured debts to the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt and all of its debt that is evidenced
by a public instrument under Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code of the Philippines (see “Description of the Bonds”
– “Ranking” on page 39).
The Bonds have been rated AAA by Credit Rating and Investors Services Philippines, Inc. (“CRISP”) as of
November 9, 2009. A rating of AAA is assigned to long-term debt securities with the smallest degree of investment
risk. Interest payments are protected by a large or by an exceptionally stable margin and repayment of principal is
secured. A rating of AAA is the highest credit rating on CRISP’s long-term credit rating scale. A rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision, suspension or withdrawal at any time
by the assigning rating organization.
The Bonds shall be offered to the public at face value through the Underwriters named herein. The Bonds shall be
issued in scripless form, with the Philippine Depository & Trust Corp. (PDTC) maintaining the Electronic Registry
of Bondholders as the Registrar of the Bonds. Subsequent to Issue Date, the Bonds shall be listed in PDEx to
facilitate secondary trading. The Bonds shall be issued in denominations of P 50,000.00 each, as a minimum, and in
integral multiples of P 10,000.00 thereafter, and traded in denominations of P10,000.00 in the secondary market
TDI expects to raise gross proceeds amounting to at least P 4,000,000,000.00 up to a maximum of P
5,000,000,000.00 assuming full exercise of the over-subscription option. Without such over-subscription option
being exercised, the net proceeds are estimated to be at least P 3,946,526,875.00 after deducting fees, commissions
and expenses relating to the issuance of the Bonds. Assuming the over-subscription option is fully exercised, total
net proceeds of the Offer is expected to amount to approximately P 4,935,274,375.00. Proceeds of the Offer shall be
used to partially fund capital expenditures requirements of the Company and to refinance the existing Notes, which
shall be discussed further in the section entitled “Use of Proceeds” on page 30 of this Prospectus. The Underwriters
shall receive a fee of 0.60% on the final aggregate nominal principal amount of the Bonds issued, which is inclusive
of the fee to be ceded to Co-Lead Underwriters.
On December 17, 2009, TDI filed a Registration Statement, as subsequently amended, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”), in connection with the offer and sale to the public of debt securities with an
aggregate principal amount of P 5,000,000,000.00 assuming full exercise of the oversubscription option of up to P
1,000,000,000.00. (see “Plan of Distribution” on page 33). The SEC issued an order rendering the registration
statement effective, and a corresponding permit to offer securities for sale covering the Offer on February 01, 2010.
TDI confirms that this Prospectus contains all material information relating to the Company, its affiliates and
subsidiaries, as well as material information on the issue and offering of the Bonds as may be required by the
applicable laws of the Republic of the Philippines. No facts have been omitted that would make any statement in this
Prospectus misleading in any material respect. TDI confirms that it has made all reasonable inquiries with respect to
any information, data and analysis(ses) provided to it by its advisors and consultants or which is otherwise publicly
available for inclusion into this Prospectus. TDI, however, has not independently verified any or all such publicly
available information, data or analysis(ses).
The price of securities can and does fluctuate, and any individual security may experience upward or downward
movements, and may even become valueless. There is an inherent risk that losses may be incurred rather than profit
made as a result of buying and selling securities. There is an extra risk of losing money when securities are bought
from smaller companies. An investment in the Bonds described in this Prospectus involves a certain degree of risk.
A prospective purchaser of the Bonds should carefully consider several factors inherent to the Company (detailed in
“Risk Factors and Other Considerations” section on page 17 of this Prospectus) such as risks relating to the

ii

Company and the industry and risks relevant to the Philippines vis-à-vis risks inherent to the Bonds, in addition to
the other information contained in this Prospectus, in deciding whether to invest in the Bonds.
Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any sale made pursuant to the Offering shall, under any circumstance,
create any implication that the information contained or referred to in this Prospectus is accurate as of any time
subsequent to the date hereof. The Joint Lead Managers and Underwriters do not make any representation or
warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Prospectus.
The contents of this Prospectus are not to be considered as definitive legal, business or tax advice. Each prospective
purchaser of the Bonds receiving a copy of this Prospectus acknowledges that he has not relied on the Joint Lead
Managers and Underwriters in his investigation of the accuracy of any information found in this Prospectus or in his
investment decision. Prospective purchasers should consult their own counsel, accountants or other advisors as to
legal, tax, business, financial and related aspects of the purchase of the Bonds, among others. It bears emphasis that
investing in the Bonds involves certain risks. It is best to refer again to the section on “Risk Factors and Other
Considerations” for a discussion of certain considerations with respect to an investment in the Bonds.
No dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized by TDI and the Joint Lead Managers & Underwriters to
give any information or to make any representation concerning the Bonds other than as contained herein and, if
given or made, any such other information or representation should not be relied upon as having been authorized by
TDI or the Joint Lead Managers and Underwriters.
TDI is organized under the laws of the Philippines. Its principal office is at 348 J. Nepomuceno St., San Miguel
District, Manila, Metro Manila, Philippines with telephone number (+632) 733-9301.

ALL REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET
INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS TRUE AND CORRECT.
TANDUAY DISTILLERS, INC.
Original signed and notarized
By:

Lucio K. Tan, Jr.
President & Chief Executive Officer
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Prospectus contains forward-looking statements that are, by their nature, subject to significant risks
and uncertainties. These forward-looking statements include, without limitation, statements relating to
known and unknown risks; uncertainties and other factors which may cause TDI’s actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results; and performance or
achievements expressed or implied by forward-looking statements.
Such forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding TDI’s present and future
business strategies and the environment in which TDI will operate in the future. Important factors that
could cause some or all of the assumptions not to occur or cause actual results, performance or
achievements to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements include, among other
things:
 TDI’s ability to successfully implement its strategy;
 TDI’s ability to anticipate and respond to consumer trends;
 TDI’s ability to successfully manage aggressive growth;
 The condition and changes in the Philippine, Asian or global economies;
 Future political instability in the Philippines;
 Changes in interest rates, inflation rates and the value of the peso against the U.S. dollar and other
currencies;
 Changes in government regulations, including tax laws, or licensing in the Philippines; and
competition in the liquor industry in the Philippines.
Additional factors that could cause TDI’s actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially
include, but are not limited to, those disclosed under “Risk Factors”. These forward-looking statements
speak only as of the date of this Prospectus. TDI and the Joint Lead Managers expressly disclaim any
obligation or undertaking to release, publicly or otherwise, any updates or revisions to any forwardlooking statement contained herein to reflect any change in TDI’s expectations with regard thereto or any
change in events, conditions, assumptions or circumstances on which any statement is based.
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DEFINITION OF TERMS
As used in this Prospectus, the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them:
AAC

shall mean Asian Alcohol Corporation.

ABI

shall mean Asia Brewery, Inc.

ACI

shall mean Absolut Chemicals, Inc.

ABC

shall mean Allied Banking Corporation.

APEC

shall mean Asian Pacific Equity Corporation.

Application to Purchase

shall mean the document to be executed by any Person or entity
qualified to become a Bondholder.

Business Day

shall mean a day other than Saturday, Sunday, and public holidays on
which commercial banks and the Philippine Clearing House Corporation
are generally open for the transaction of business in Makati City, and the
City of Manila.

BIR

shall mean the Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Bona Fide Bondholder

shall refer to any Bondholder who has been a bona fide holder of the
Bonds for at least six (6) months.

Bond Agreements

shall mean the Trust Agreement between the Issuer and the Trustee, and
the Paying Agency and Registry Agreement between the Issuer, the
Registrar and the Paying Agent.

Bondholder

shall mean a Person whose name appears, at any time, as a holder of the
Bonds in the Electronic Registry of Bondholders.

Bonds

shall mean the Five (5) Year Fixed Rate Bonds due in 2015 in the
aggregate principal amount of P 4,000,000,000.00, and an oversubscription option of up to P 1,000,000,000.00, to be issued by TDI
and which shall mature on February 13, 2015.

BSP

shall mean Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas.

Cabuyao or Laguna plant

shall refer to TDI’s plant located in Cabuyao, Laguna.

Cagayan de Oro or El
Salvador plant

shall refer to TDI’s plant located in El Salvador, Misamis Oriental.

CDO

shall mean Cease and Desist Order.

CRISP

shall mean Credit Rating and Investors Services Philippines, Inc.
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EDI

shall mean Emperador Distillers, Inc.

Electronic Registry of
Bondholders

shall mean the electronic record of the issuances, sales and transfers of
the Bonds to be maintained by the Registrar pursuant to and under the
terms of the Paying Agency and Registry Agreement.

ERP

shall mean Early Retirement Program.

FMIC

shall refer to First Metro Investment Corporation.

FTC

shall mean Fortune Tobacco Corporation.

Government

shall refer to the Government of the Republic of the Philippines.

Group

shall mean TDI and its subsidiaries, AAC and ACI.

GSMI

shall mean Ginebra San Miguel, Inc.

IAS

shall mean International Accounting Standards.

IFRS

shall mean International Financial Reporting Standards.

Issue Date

shall mean, with respect to the Bonds, the date on which the Bonds shall
be issued by the Issuer.

Joint Lead Managers &
Underwriters or JLM

shall refer to Allied Bank, FMIC and PNB Capital, the entities
appointed as the lead underwriters for the Bonds pursuant to the
Underwriting Agreement.

Lien

shall mean any mortgage, pledge, lien or encumbrance constituted on
any of the Issuer’s properties for the purpose of securing its or its
Affiliate’s obligations.

LLDA

shall mean Laguna Lake Development Authority.

LPD

shall refer to Liters Per Day.

LTGC

shall refer to the Lucio Tan Group of Companies.

Majority Bondholders

shall mean, at any time, the Bondholder or Bondholders who hold,
represent or account for more than 50% of the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of the Bonds.

Master Certificate of
Indebtedness

shall mean the certificate to be issued by the Issuer to the Trustee
evidencing and covering such amount corresponding to the Bonds.

Material Adverse Effect

shall mean a material adverse effect on (a) the ability of the Issuer to
perform or comply with its material obligations, or to exercise any of its
material rights, under the Bond Agreements in a timely manner, (b) the
business, operations or financial condition of the Issuer; or (c) the rights
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or interests of the Bondholders under the Bond Agreements or any
security interest granted pursuant thereto.
Maturity Date

shall mean February 13, 2015 which is five years and one day after the
Issue Date; provided that, in the event that the Maturity Dates falls on a
day that is not a Business Day, the Maturity Date shall be automatically
extended to the immediately succeeding Business Day.

MBTC-TBG

shall refer to Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company-Trust Banking
Group.

Murcia or Negros plant

shall refer to TDI’s plant in Murcia, Negros.

Notes

shall mean the Notes to be refinanced by the Bonds.

Offer

shall mean the issuance of Bonds by the Issuer under the conditions as
herein contained.

Offer Period

shall refer to the period, commencing within two Business Days from
the date of the issuance of the SEC Permit to Sell Securities, during
which the Bonds shall be offered to the public.

PAB

shall mean Pollution Adjudication Board.

PAS

shall mean Philippine Accounting Standards.

Paying Agent

shall refer to Philippine Depository & Trust Corp., the party which shall
receive the funds from the Issuer for payment of principal, interest and
other amounts due on the Bonds and remit the same to the Bondholders
based on the records shown in the Electronic Registry of Bondholders.

PDEx

shall refer to Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.

PDTC

shall refer to the Philippine Depository & Trust Corp.

PDTC Rules

shall mean the SEC-approved rules of the PDTC, including the PDTC
Operating Procedures and PDTC Operating Manual, as may be
amended, supplemented, or modified from time to time.

Pesos, P and Philippine
currency

shall mean the legal currency of the Republic of the Philippines.

PFRS

shall mean Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Philippines

shall mean the Republic of the Philippines.

PNB

shall mean Philippine National Bank.

PNB Capital

shall refer to PNB Capital & Investment Corporation.

Quiapo or Manila Plant

shall refer to TDI’s plant located in Quiapo, Manila.
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RA 9337

shall refer to Republic Act No. 9337, a Philippine statute amending
various sections of the Philippine National Internal Revenue Code of
1997.

Registrar

shall refer to Philippine Depository & Trust Corp. (PDTC), being the
registrar appointed by the Issuer to maintain the Electronic Registry of
Bondholders pursuant to the Paying Agency and Registry Agreement.

SEC

shall mean the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission.

SEC Permit

shall mean the Permit to Sell Securities issued by the SEC in connection
with the Offer.

Security

shall mean any mortgage, pledge, lien or encumbrance constituted on
any of the Issuer’s properties.

SRC

shall mean the Securities Regulation Code of the Philippines.

Tan Family

shall mean any of the following: (a) Dr. Lucio C. Tan; (b) the spouses
and the direct descendants up to the first degree of consanguinity of any
person described or named in clause (a) above; (c) the estates or legal
representatives of any person described or named in clause (a) or (b)
above; or (d) trusts or other analogous arrangements established for the
benefit of any person described or named in clause (a), (b) or (c) above
or of which any such person is a trustee, or holder of an analogous
office.

Tax Code

shall mean the Tax Reform Act of 1997, as amended.

Taxes

shall refer to any present or future taxes, including, but not limited to,
documentary stamp tax, levies, imposts, filing and other fees or charges
imposed by the Republic of the Philippines or any political subdivision
or taxing authority thereof, including surcharges, penalties and interests
on said taxes, but excluding final withholding tax, gross receipts tax,
taxes on the overall income of the underwriter or of the Bondholders,
value added tax, and taxes on any gains realized from the sale of the
Bonds.

TDI, Tanduay, the Issuer,
or the Company

shall mean Tanduay Distillers, Inc.

THC

shall mean Tangent Holdings Corp.

THI

shall mean Tanduay Holdings, Inc.

TLO

shall mean Temporary Lifting Order.

TRO

shall mean Temporary Restraining Order.
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Trustee

shall refer to the Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company- Trust Banking
Group (MBTC-TBG), the entity appointed by the Issuer which shall act
as the legal title holder of the Bonds and shall monitor compliance and
observance of all covenants of and performance by the Issuer of its
obligations under the Bonds and enforce all possible remedies pursuant
to such mandate.

$ or US$

shall refer to United States Dollars, being the currency of the United
States of America.

UAI

shall mean Usage, Attitude, Image.

VAT

shall refer to value-added tax.

VMC

shall mean Victorias Milling Company, Inc.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This summary highlights information also contained elsewhere in this Prospectus. Because it is a
summary, it does not contain all of the information that a prospective purchaser should consider before
investing. Prospective purchasers should read the entire Prospectus carefully, including the section
entitled “Risk Factors and Other Considerations” and the financial statements and the related notes to
those statements included in this Prospectus.
THE COMPANY
TDI is one of the Philippines’ leading distilled spirits producers. The Company provides a wide range of
alcoholic products, namely: rum, brandy, gin, vodka, and wine. Its major product is rum which is
produced from alcohol distilled from molasses (the brown, sticky fluid that is the by-product of the sugar
production process). The Company controls over 95% of the local rum market and is the second largest
seller of rum in the world next to Bacardi of Puerto Rico.
TDI operates four (4) liquor-bottling plants with a total capacity of about 120,800 cases per day. It also
operates two (2) distillation plants. The Company’s head office and main plant are located in San Miguel
District, Manila, in a street formerly known as Calle de Tanduay, now J. Nepomuceno. The main plant is
bound by Malacañang in the east, Ayala Bridge in the southwest and San Sebastian Church in the
northwest. The other plants are in Laguna, Negros Occidental and Misamis Oriental.
TDI’s distillation plant subsidiaries are the following:
Asian Alcohol Corporation (AAC)
AAC is the second biggest distillery in the Philippines with a ten-hectare plant located in Negros Occidental,
the center of the country’s sugar industry. AAC has a distillation process that uses molasses, yeast, water
and other ingredients. Plant facilities include a modern wastewater treatment plant which converts distillery
waste into biogas energy for its power requirements. The plant has a daily rated capacity of 210,000 liters of
fine quality ethyl alcohol. AAC sells 100% of its output to TDI, and accounts for 70% of TDI’s ethyl
alcohol requirements. AAC also has a methane gas capture system that enables it to use the methane
generated from distillation as power to fire up its boilers. It is currently embarking on an expansion program
that will modernize and increase its distilling capacity by an additional 100,000 liters per day of extra
neutral alcohol for high premium liquor products.
Absolut Chemicals, Inc. (ACI)
ACI is a medium-sized distillery in Batangas. It operates a nine-hectare distilling plant in Lian, Batangas.
The plant site also houses a water treatment facility, which converts distillery wastes into environmentfriendly form. ACI has a daily rated capacity of 75,000 liters of fine ethyl alcohol. ACI also sells all of its
output to TDI. This output comprises 30% of TDI’s ethyl alcohol requirements. ACI is upgrading its
distillation plant to enable it to increase its production of extra neutral alcohol.
ACI, in a joint undertaking with Mitsubishi Corporation of Japan, installed a high-rate thermophilic
anaerobic digester and lagoon system that will capture methane from the distillation process and use it for
the plant’s power requirements. This will enable ACI to reduce its power cost by an estimate of 50% of
current consumption levels. The project with Mitsubishi is being undertaken under the Clean Development
Mechanism (CDM) Project of the 1997 Kyoto Protocol – a United Nations sponsored program that aims to
reduce the emissions into the atmosphere of harmful gases like methane. These emissions are the primary
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cause of global warming. Under the Protocol, developed countries are mandated to reduce their carbon
emission levels by 2012. As an alternative compliance mechanism, developed countries may invest in CDM
projects in developing countries like the Philippines. Mitsubishi provided the funding for the project in
exchange for the certified emission reduction (CER) credits to be generated from the project. The CERs are
the alternative compliance mechanisms under the Kyoto Protocol.
COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
The Company believes that its principal strengths are the following:
Respected Brand Equity and Market Leader with Export Potential. TDI is a top-notch Filipino company
with a brand that is associated with quality and total customer satisfaction. Since 1854, Tanduay has been
synonymous not only with quality rum but also with liquor in general. In effect, it has garnered tremendous
name recognition and brand loyalty for its wide variety of products. To date, TDI has garnered 140
international awards including 58 gold medals from the acclaimed Monde Selection competition and other
international wine and spirit competitions since 1876. This is a testament to its world-class quality.
Rum is one of the biggest product categories in the distilled spirits industry, accounting for 28% of industry
sales. In this segment, TDI has established itself as the undisputed market leader, capturing over 95% of rum
sales and possessing a 33% market share in the local distilled spirits industry. With the volume it produces
and sells, four liters of Tanduay rum is effectively consumed every second. Numerous competing products
have entered and exited, unable to shake TDI’s dominance in its segment.
On the global stage, TDI rum is second to Bacardi of Puerto Rico in sales volume despite catering primarily
to the Philippine market. With a rich heritage and tradition of excellence behind it, Tanduay asserts itself as
the leading Philippine rum with a potential to become an internationally recognized brand. Currently, sales
of TDI are still predominantly domestic. Export sales comprise approximately 1% of total sales, mostly
coming from the Company’s distributor in Malaysia. TDI seeks to further develop this untapped market and
enhance its international presence.
Market Dominance in Visayas and Mindanao. The distilled spirits market in the Philippines has been
historically dominated by two companies - TDI and Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. (GSMI) – which have
products ranging from the rum, gin and brandy category. GSMI’s dominance in Luzon has helped it to
accumulate a market share of 46% in the distilled spirits industry while TDI is the clear market leader in
Visayas and Mindanao. Emperador Distillers, Inc. (EDI) entered the local spirits market in 2003 and has
captured 17% of the local spirits industry as of June 2009. EDI recently became a market force but only in
the brandy category and with Manila and Pampanga as major markets only. TDI’s dominance over the
Visayas and Mindanao markets gives it a stable foothold in the industry.
Competitive Pricing in a Mass-based Market. Price competition is very tight between the major producers
of local spirits. In line with this, TDI offers products with low prices relative to its competitors. The
Company’s product prices range from P23.00 to P27.00 for a 375ml bottle and P45.00 to P55.00 for a
750ml with premium products in higher price ranges.
Price competitiveness is an important factor for TDI’s consumers, who are in the mass-based bracket
comprising over 80% of the Philippine population (ranging from 18-55 years old and predominantly
male) and accounts for 66% of domestic liquor consumption. TDI’s pricing allows it to cater to a very
large and price-sensitive market.
Strong Shareholder Group. TDI is majority-owned by the Tan Family. Mr. Lucio Tan is considered one
of the wealthiest industrialists in the country. The Tan Family has vast interests in agribusiness, aviation,
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banking, beverages, chemicals, construction, distillery, education, food, hotel, insurance, real estate
development, securities, tobacco, travel and tourism.
Synergy with the Lucio Tan Group of Companies (LTGC). As part of the LTGC, one of the largest
conglomerates in the country, TDI enjoys a substantial financial base, bolstering its solid and stable image.
More importantly, the diversity of LTGC and the market and financial strength of companies within the
group provides the Company significant potential to harness financial support for sustainable operations.
State-of-the-art Production Facilities. TDI operates four bottling plants with a total effective capacity of
120,800 cases per day. They are strategically located to best address the market demand.
As the industry matures, major market participants compete in the area of production efficiency, identifying
ways to reduce costs while increasing yield. To address this, the Company embarked on a multi-million
peso plant expansion and modernization program. TDI’s state-of-the-art German made bottling facilities in
Laguna, Negros and Cagayan De Oro feature fully automated bottling lines. Each of these automated
bottling lines can produce 24,000 bottles an hour with a manpower complement of only 12. An older
production line would typically produce 6,000 bottles per hour and need to employ 22 workers per line. The
lines are also equipped with depalletizers, wrap-around packing machines, check-weighers and electronic
bottle quality inspectors that further reduce the need for human intervention.
The Cabuyao plant also has two automated bottle washing lines for second hand bottles with a capacity of
40,000 bottles per hour. The Negros and Cagayan De Oro Plant have bottle washing lines that are
integrated with the bottling lines.
Established Distribution Network. The Company serves more than 170,000 retail and wholesale sales
outlets throughout the Philippines through 4 exclusive distributors for its liquor products and direct sales by
the Company’s sales staff to wholesalers and retailers. These 4 distributors have been with the Company
since 1988. The Company’s distributors operate 21 sales offices and 52 warehouses located throughout the
Philippines. The Company generally contracts with third parties for transportation services, thereby
minimizing overhead expenses such as maintenance of vehicles and employment of laborers. In addition,
this enables the Company to service a large portion of its market through various distribution channels.
Efficiency of Production Process. TDI reaps the benefits of vertical integration throughout its production
process:
•

•

•

Supply of Raw Materials: Victoria Milling Company (VMC) is 10% owned by THI; and
together with the Philippine National Bank, the LTGC owns 25% of VMC. VMC is the country’s
largest sugar producer and TDI’s major supplier of molasses.
Alcohol distillation: TDI has 95% and 96% shareholdings in Asian Alcohol Corp. (AAC) and
Absolut Chemicals, Inc. (ACI), respectively. AAC is the Philippines’ second biggest distillery
and it provides 70% of TDI’s ethyl alcohol requirement. ACI, on the other hand, is a mediumsized distillery in Batangas which provides 30% of TDI’s ethyl alcohol requirement.
Bottles: Asia Brewery, Inc., TDI’s major supplier for new bottles, belongs to the LTGC.

Strong Financial Position. TDI maintains a strong financial position as evident in its key performance
indicators (see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
on page 94).
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Current and liquidity ratios registered consistently above acceptable levels from 2007 to 2008 as current
assets mostly consisting of receivables and inventories more than adequately covered current liabilities.
With regard to leverage, debt-to-equity ratio improved to 1.45x as of September 2009 from 1.55x in
December 2008 boosted by strong earnings.
Net sales increased from P 6,933 million for the nine months ended September 2008 to P 7,474 million in
2009 of the same period. In addition, net income increased to P419 million for the period January to
September 2009, growing by 42% from the 2008 net income of P296 million of the same period. The
increase in net income was due to the decrease in the cost of goods sold and operating expenses. TDI has
consistently posted positive earnings per share, from P 0.24 per share in 2006 to P 0.69 per share for the
said 9-month period.
BUSINESS STRATEGY
The Company’s principal strategy is to gain and increase its market share by introducing new products to
cater to the current and emerging preferences of the market and strengthen its distribution capability:
•

Product Portfolio. The continued success of the Company relies on its ability to produce high quality
yet affordable products. Even though many of the products are low priced in order to position itself at
the lower end of the market, such products must still be high quality in the eyes of the consumer. Low
price is not an excuse for poor packaging, inconsistent quality and bad customer service. The
Company’s product excellence initiative is anchored on its Quality Program that is centered on a
dynamic and empowered workforce, customer-focused business processes, and a working
environment of continuous Quality Improvement.
The Company plans to lessen its dependence on rum by “owning” the growing vodka market and
flavored spirits category. At the same time, it will revive consumer excitement on existing product
lines by the introduction of variants that will address the needs of the younger market.
Marketing activities will continue to be focused on enhancing existing strengths and introducing
programs that will position Tanduay’s core brands as leading names in their respective markets.
Various promotional and advertising programs geared towards the young and traditional drinkers
through music and sports will be emphasized.

•

Distribution Capacity. The distribution dominance in the Visayas and Mindanao will be preserved
through localized marketing campaigns and dealers incentive schemes. The Company will intensify
its penetration of areas with high potential for market growth through the expansion of the dealership
base and synergize with distribution channels belonging to the LTGC.

•

Facilities and Processes. To ensure customer satisfaction, the Company’s strategy has been to work
under “world class standards” using “world class” equipment. Over the recent two years, the
production sites have undergone extensive modernization with the installation of the very best of
packaging equipment from Europe. The efficiency of these plants will be ensured through an effective
preventive maintenance program.

•

People Empowerment. Quarterly strategic program reviews will continue to be part of Tanduay’s
regular activities since this is an excellent forum for gathering together department head and key plant
personnel to participate in focused discussions on structured environmental and market scans,
developmental goal accomplishment, and issues affecting performance. Skills and behavioral training
will progress to the more advanced levels.
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•

Supply of Molasses. The Company will continue to strengthen its alcohol supplier base as a
countermeasure against the volatility of the price of molasses. Adequacy of storage facilities will be
continually assessed to ensure enough buffer stock of molasses and alcohol at all times. The ongoing
study on alternative base material will be pursued towards implementation.

•

Distillation Capacity. AAC is currently embarking on an expansion program that will modernize and
increase its distilling capacity by an additional 100,000 liters per day. The project is 60% complete as
on September 2009.

•

Corporate Image. The Tanduay image will be transformed from that of a rum company to a “House
of Tanduay” with a wide range of products across all liquor categories. Its environment-friendly
operations using world class facilities will be emphasized through a strong corporate campaign.

RISKS OF INVESTING
The following are the various risks related to the Company and the industry, to the Philippines, and to the
Offer. (see “Risk Factors and Other Considerations” on page 17).
Risks Related to the Company and the Industry
-

The Company’s prospects are driven largely by consumer preferences and purchasing power.
The Company is dependent on the reliability and price of its major raw materials.
The Company is directly controlled by THI.
The Company is highly dependent on certain directors and members of senior management.
The Company is dependent on distributors for the sales of its products.
The Company has several labor unions in its manufacturing plants.
The Company is susceptible to infringement of its trademarks, and proprietary labels.
The Company is dependent on its manufacturing and production facilities.
The Company has several related party transactions.
The Company may not successfully implement its growth strategy.
The Company operates in a highly regulated environment.
The Company operates in an industry with safety, health and environmental laws.
The Company’s image is driven by public perception.
The Company is a party to several legal proceedings.

Risks Related to the Philippines
-

A slowdown in the Philippines’ economic growth.
Any political instability in the Philippines.
The occurrence of natural catastrophes or blackouts in the areas of operation of the Company.
Any foreign exchange controls imposed by the Philippine government.

Risks Related to the Offer
-

Liquidity Risk
Pricing Risk
Retention of Ratings Risk
Bonds have no Preference under Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following tables set forth financial and operating information and other data of TDI. Prospective
purchasers of the Bonds should read the summary financial data below together with the financial
statements and the notes thereto, as well as the section “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of this Prospectus. The summary financial data as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were derived from TDI’s audited consolidated
financial statements, including the notes thereto. Summary financial data as of and for the first nine
months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were derived from TDI’s unaudited interim condensed
consolidated financial statements.TDI’s financial statements are prepared in compliance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
Tanduay Distillers, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income
amounts in PHP

Net Sales
Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit
Selling expense
General and administrative expense
Interest expense
Gain on changes in fair values of investment properties
Impairment loss on AFS financial assets and property,
plant and equipment of subsidiary
Foreign exchange gains (losses)
Interest income
Gain on sale of AFS financial assets
Loss on sale of investment properties
Gain on settlement of investment of a subsidiary
Others-net
Income before Income Tax
Provision for Income Tax-current
Provision for Income Tax-deferred
Net Income
Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Company
Minority Interests

For the Years Ended
12/31/2007
Audited

12/31/2008
Audited

For the Nine Months Ended
9/30/2008
9/30/2009
Unaudited
Unaudited

7,649,735,731
6,053,551,021
1,596,184,710
451,874,419
296,895,010
847,415,281
(371,272,419)
-

9,046,188,121
7,587,565,663
1,458,622,458
390,652,337
280,701,149
787,268,972
(417,212,748)
-

6,932,658,788
5,696,872,718
1,235,786,070
267,565,392
219,739,162
748,481,516
(307,176,503)
122,727

(23,192,667)

(59,955,509)

(30,294,313)
117,125,656
15,208,654
(445,709)
275,682,708
146,286,539
(5,717,047)
135,113,216

(55,730,061)
113,760,743
(788,610)
4,376,521
514,568,788
230,260,927
(23,420,143)
307,728,004

55,881,698
48,301,227
(786,072)
(3,536,770)
409,960,798
235,682,716
(11,239,379)
185,517,461

44,341,272
37,491,533
(807,352)
5,415,263
527,868,456
229,342,258
2,345,346
296,180,852

194,164
9,147,883
2,863,622
10,217,538
601,532,088
224,722,183
(42,119,163)
418,929,068

146,735,181
(11,621,965)
135,113,216

319,110,893
(11,382,889)
307,728,004

191,115,153
(5,597,692)
185,517,461

301,791,899
(5,611,047)
296,180,852

413,923,734
5,005,334
418,929,068

12/31/2006
Audited

6,575,161,814
5,115,079,722
1,460,082,092
729,768,576
233,969,492
496,344,024
(368,011,634)
45,756,030
-
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7,474,062,733
6,065,375,483
1,408,687,250
305,074,334
252,015,482
851,597,434
(336,876,657)
114,956,546
(50,568,442)
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As of December 31
2007
Audited

30-Sep
2008
Unaudited

30-Sep
2009
Unaudited

Tanduay Distillers, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
amounts in PHP

2006
Audited

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - net
Inventories - net
Prepayments and other current assets
Total Current Assets

1,105,904,931
1,288,020,472
2,738,661,779
411,243,217
5,543,830,399

680,340,053
1,218,240,462
2,997,618,341
433,882,952
5,330,081,808

455,317,492
1,266,363,822
3,788,637,866
361,197,576
5,871,516,756

449,043,535
934,668,929
3,098,810,881
785,778,641
5,268,301,986

284,471,382
1,747,934,863
3,237,278,444
561,207,193
5,830,891,882

Noncurrent Assets
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets
Property, plant, and equipment, at appraised values
Property, plant, and equipment, at cost
Investment Properties
Goodwill
Other noncurrent assets
Total Noncurrent Assets

291,437,823
2,843,896,752
536,699,833
76,489,899
144,702,917
82,518,078
3,975,745,302

233,740,241
3,647,043,194
740,953,494
68,091,262
144,702,917
80,289,118
4,914,820,226

114,984,172
4,006,071,917
868,493,449
53,132,626
144,702,917
80,006,117
5,267,391,198

196,254,858
3,616,351,706
1,124,703,022
53,173,535
144,702,917
94,579,674
5,229,765,712

139,001,615
3,819,479,923
956,072,805
168,089,172
144,702,917
83,542,477
5,310,888,909

TOTAL ASSETS

9,519,575,701

10,244,902,034

11,138,907,954

10,498,067,698

11,141,780,791

802,293,797
10,000,000
812,293,797

873,011,105
10,000,000
97,010,268
980,021,373

1,355,711,976
700,000,000
10,000,000
2,264,430
2,067,976,406

1,193,475,563
10,000,000
54,087,096
1,257,562,659

803,954,022
700,000,000
10,000,000
48,067,285
300,000,000
1,862,021,307

4,190,000,000
336,914,881
4,526,914,881
5,339,208,678

4,180,000,000
503,490,397
4,683,490,397
5,663,511,770

4,170,000,000
499,978,517
40,165,200
4,710,143,717
6,778,120,123

4,170,000,000
513,343,607
40,165,200
14,230,027
4,737,738,834
5,995,301,493

4,160,000,000
477,726,839
70,857,506
31,524,764
4,740,109,109
6,602,130,416

600,000,000
1,212,290,309

600,000,000
1,212,290,309

600,000,000
1,212,290,309

600,000,000
1,212,290,309

600,000,000
1,212,290,309

598,561,005

1,024,099,982

976,202,015

988,176,507

950,833,197

Minority Interests
Total Equity

33,774,455
1,544,486,060
3,989,111,829
191,255,194
4,180,367,023

26,762,706
1,538,364,962
4,401,517,959
179,872,305
4,581,390,264

(79,357,188)
52,156,083
1,477,378,082
4,238,669,301
122,118,530
4,360,787,831

(48,042,205)
52,156,083
1,576,080,336
4,380,661,030
122,105,175
4,502,766,205

(31,373,983)
52,156,083
1,627,767,314
4,411,672,920
127,977,455
4,539,650,375

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

9,519,575,701

10,244,902,034

2008
Audited

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Short-term bank loans
Current portion of long-term bank loans
Income tax payable
Dividends Payable
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term bank loans - net of current portion
Deferred income tax liabilities - net
Deposits for future Certified Emission Reduction
Net retirements benefit liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Capital Stock - P1 par value
Additional paid-in capital
Revaluation Increment in property, plant, and
equipment, net of related deferred income tax
liability
Net changes in fair values of AFS financial assets,
net of related deferred income tax liability
Effect of transactions with minority interests
Retained earnings
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As of and for the year ended

Key Performance Indicators
Sales Volume (Per Case)
Net Income, in Php (Actual)
Current Ratio (1)
Debt-to-Equity Ratio (2)
Earnings Per Share, in Php (3)

31-Dec-06
13,498,926
146,735,181
6.82
1.28
P 0.24

31-Dec-07

As of and for the period ended

31-Dec-08

15,252,846
319,110,893
5.44
1.24
P 0.53

17,346,701
191,115,153
2.84
1.55
P 0.32

30-Sep-08
13,603,323
301,791,899
4.19
1.33
P 0.5

30-Sep-09
13,432,702
413,923,734
3.13
1.45
P 0.69

Notes:
(1)

Current ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities.

(2)

Debt-to-equity ratio is computed as total liabilities divided by total equity.

(3)

Earnings per share is computed as net income divided by weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period.
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SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING
The following summary is qualified in its entirety by and should be read in conjunction with the more detailed information
appearing elsewhere in the Prospectus to which it relates.

Issuer

Tanduay Distillers, Inc.

Joint Issue Managers

First Metro Investment Corporation
PNB Capital & Investment Corporation

Joint Lead Managers

Allied Banking Corporation
First Metro Investment Corporation
PNB Capital & Investment Corporation

Trustee

Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company-Trust Banking Group

Registrar and Paying Agent

Philippine Depository & Trust Corp.

Credit Rating Agency

Credit Rating and Investor Services Philippines, Inc. (CRISP)

Bond Rating

AAA (CRISP) – strong capacity and low probability of default

Issue Amount

P 4,000,000,000.00

Over-subscription

In the event of over-subscription, the JLMs, in consultation with the
Issuer, reserve the right to increase the aggregate size of the Issue by
P 1,000,000,000.00.

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds of the Issue shall be used to refinance maturing
obligations and for general corporate purposes

Issue Date

February 12, 2010

Issue Price

100% of face value

Maturity Date

Unless earlier redeemed, the Bonds will be redeemed at par (or
100%) after five (5) years and one (1) day from Issue Date or on
February 13, 2015

Interest Rate

Fixed interest rate of 8.055% p.a

Interest Period

As used herein, the Interest Period shall mean (i) with respect to the
first Interest Period, the period commencing on Issue Date of the
Bonds and ending three (3) months plus one day, and (ii) for
subsequent Interest Periods, every three (3) months thereafter.

Interest Payment Date

Interest shall be payable every three (3) months, computed based on
the outstanding balance of the Bonds.
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Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated on a 30/360 day basis. If
any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day that is not
a Business Day, such Interest Payment Date shall be moved to the
immediately succeeding Business Day, without adjustment to the
amount of Interest to be paid.
Penalty Rate

1% per month on all amounts due and unpaid, in addition to the
Interest Rate from the due date until actual payment.

Form and Denomination

The Bonds shall be issued in scripless form, with the Philippine
Depository & Trust Corp. (PDTC), maintaining the Electronic
Registry of Bondholders as the registrar of the Bonds. A Master
Certificate of Indebtedness representing the Bonds shall be issued to
and registered in the name of the Trustee, on behalf of the
Bondholders.
Subsequent to Issue Date, the Bonds shall be listed in PDEx to
facilitate secondary trading. The Bonds shall be offered and sold in
principal amounts of P 50,000.00 as a minimum, and in multiples of
P 10,000.00 thereafter, and traded in denominations of P 10,000.00,
and in integral multiples thereof, in the secondary market .

Status of the Bonds

The Bonds shall constitute the direct, unconditional, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer and will rank pari passu
and rateably without any preference or priority among themselves
and with all other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Issuer, other than obligations preferred by the law.
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RISK FACTORS AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
An investment in the Bonds described in the Prospectus involves a number of risks. The price of the
securities can and does fluctuate, and any individual security may experience upward or downward
movements, and may even become valueless. There is inherent risk that losses may be incurred rather
than profit made as a result of buying and selling securities. Past performance is not a guide to future
performance and there may be a large difference between the buying price and the selling price of these
securities. There is an extra risk of losing money when securities are bought from smaller companies.
Investors deal with a range of investments, each of which may carry a different level of risk. Investors
should carefully consider all the information contained in this Prospectus, including the risk factors
described below before deciding to invest in the Bonds.
This section entitled “Risk Factors” does not purport to disclose all the risks and other significant
aspects of investing in these securities. Investors should undertake independent research and study the
trading of these securities before commencing any trading activity. Investors should seek professional
advice regarding any aspect of the securities such as the nature of risks involved in trading of securities,
and specifically those high-risk securities. Investors may request publicly available information on the
Bonds and the Company from the Philippine SEC.
The Company regularly reviews the risks detailed below and provides whenever possible, risk mitigation
and business strategies to address such risks. However, note that there are certain risks that are beyond
the control of the Company and are inherent to running a business. The means by which the Company
plans to address certain risks discussed herein are principally presented in the sections of this Prospectus
entitled “Executive Summary” on page 7, “Description of Business” on page 56, and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on page 94.
The risks factors discussed in this section are of equal importance and are only separated into categories
for easy reference.
RISKS RELATED TO THE COMPANY AND THE INDUSTRY
The Company’s prospects are driven largely by consumer preferences and purchasing power.
The Company’s principal customers for its products are individuals in the lower income brackets
comprising over 80% of the Philippine population and account for 66% of domestic liquor consumptions.
The preferences of these consumers change for various reasons driven largely by demographics, social
trends in leisure activities and health effects. Entrants of new competitive and substitute products to
address these customers’ preferences may adversely affect the business prospects of the Company if it
does not adapt or respond to these changes.
In addition, the market of the Company is highly sensitive to price changes given the purchasing power
and disposable income of its customers. Any adverse change in the economic environment of the
Philippines may affect the purchasing power of the consumers and adversely affect the Company’s
financial position and performance.
The Company responds to customer preferences by continuing to monitor market trends and consumer
needs to identify potential opportunities. Its existing product portfolio covers all major liquor category
and price range enabling it to respond quickly to any change in consumer preference. Development of
new products and brands is continuously being undertaken to address the current and emerging
requirements of the customers.
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To address the increase in competition from both local and foreign brands, the Company plans to maintain
its advantage over its competitors in the rum category. In order to remain competitive, various promotional
campaigns continue to be launched. The Company’s competitive advantage lies in the high level of
awareness for its brand name, quality awards and cost-efficient production process.
The Company is dependent on the reliability and price of its major raw materials.
The major raw material of the Company is molasses which comprises 18% of its cost of goods sold. A
shortage in the local supply of molasses and the volatility in its price may adversely affect the operations
and financial performance of the Company.
The Company addresses this risk by regularly monitoring its molasses and alcohol requirements. At the
start of each annual sugar milling season, the Company normally negotiates with major sugar millers for
the purchase in advance of the mill’s molasses output at agreed upon prices and terms. It also imports
raw materials in the event that the local supply is not sufficient or the prices are not favorable.
Furthermore, the Company’s parent company owns a 10% stake in Victorias Milling Company, Inc.
(VMC), the largest sugar producer in the Philippines and currently the Company’s major supplier of
molasses. Together with PNB, the Lucio Tan Group of Companies (LTGC) owns 25% of VMC.
Furthermore, the acquisition of AAC and ACI was designed to control alcohol cost and minimize the
chances of shortage in supply. Adequate storage facilities have been constructed to enable AAC to buy
and stock molasses at a time when sugar centrals are at their production peaks. While AAC is on a
temporary shutdown, alcohol is being sourced from other countries (see “Certain Legal Proceedings” on
the AAC situation on page 82).
The Company is directly controlled by THI.
Tanduay Holdings Inc. (THI) controls and is expected to continue to control the Company. Members of
the Tan Family also serve as directors and executive officers in PAL, Fortune Tobacco, Eton Properties
and other companies forming part of the Tan Group, and these family members may not be able to devote
sufficient time and effort to the management of TDI. There is also nothing to prevent companies that are
controlled by the Tan Family from engaging in activities that compete directly with the Company’s
businesses or activities, which could have a negative impact on the Company’s business. Neither can
there be any assurance that the Tan Family and THI will not take advantage of business opportunities that
may otherwise be attractive to the Company. The interests of THI and the Tan Family, as the Company’s
controlling shareholders, may therefore differ significantly from or compete with the Company’s interests
or the interests of other shareholders, and the Tan Family and THI may vote their shares in a manner that
is contrary to the interests of the Company. There can be no assurance that the Tan Family and THI will
exercise influence over the Company in a manner that is in the best interests of the Company.
The senior management team also includes officers outside of the Tan Family which control the day-today operations of the Company. These officers have the necessary expertise and experience in carryingout their assigned duties for the best interest of the Company. In addition, the Company has adopted
policies on good governance as embodied in its Corporate Governance Manual, including having two
independent directors in its Board.
The Company is highly dependent on certain directors and members of senior management.
The Company’s directors and members of its senior management have been an integral part of its success.
The experience, knowledge, business relationships and expertise of such persons are key in the
Company’s operating efficiency and financial performance. The Company may not be successful in
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attracting and retaining executive talent to replace these directors and officers should they depart. If the
Company loses the services of any such person and is unable to fill any vacant key executive or
management positions with qualified candidates, its business and results of operations may be adversely
affected.
Since it was incorporated, the Company however, has experienced a fairly low turnover rate among its
group of senior officers, executives and management team. A succession planning program is also in
place, which allows the Company to secure business continuity by carefully studying career paths of the
members of the management team and the depth of bench for senior level positions, and identifying and
developing possible replacements as well as the next generation leaders.
The Company is dependent on distributors for the sales of its products.
The Company serves more than 170,000 retail and wholesale outlets throughout the Philippines through
four (4) exclusive distributors and direct sellers of the Company for its liquor products. These distributors
operate a total of twenty one (21) sales offices and fifty two (52) warehouses in the Philippines. In the
international market, the Company has existing arrangements with international distributors in countries
such as, China, Hong Kong, Malaysia, Thailand, Saipan, and USA.
Although these distributors have been dealing with the Company for more than 20 years, any disruption,
dispute or delay in the services of these distributors may adversely affect the operations and financial
performance of the Company.
The operations and financial condition of distributors are monitored daily and directly supervised by the
Company’s sales and marketing group.
The Company has several labor unions in its manufacturing plants.
The Company has four (4) labor unions affiliated with the following:
•

•
•
•

The daily employees at the Company’s Manila Plant have a labor union affiliated with the Associated
Democratic Labor Union (ADLU). The latest collective bargaining agreement (CBA) was signed in
March 2008 effective up to March 2011.
The union of daily employees at Cabuyao is affiliated with the Filipinong Samahang Manggagawa
and is covered by a CBA up to 2011.
The daily employees at the Negros Plants have also recently organized a labor union and are now in
the process of negotiating for a CBA.
The labor union of monthly and daily employees at AAC has an existing CBA effective for five
years from May 2006. The CBA of the daily employees at ACI will expire in April 2010.

There had been no strikes or major labor disputes with the existing labor unions for the past ten (10)
years. Any labor disputes left unresolved may adversely affect the operations and financial performance
of the Company. The Company continues to ensure that the CBA is fulfilled and that negotiations prior to
their expiry are completed.
The Company is susceptible to infringement of its trademarks and proprietary labels.
The Company’s image and sales may be affected by counterfeit products with inferior quality. Its new
product development efforts may also be hampered by the unavailability of certain desired brand names.
The Company safeguards its brand names, trademarks and other intellectual property rights by registering
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them with the Intellectual Property Office in the Philippines and in all countries where it sells or plans to
sell its products. Brand names for future development are also being registered in advance of use to
ensure that these are available once the Company decides to use them. Except for companies belonging
to the LTGC, the Company also does not license any third party to use its brand names and trademarks.
The Company is dependent on its manufacturing and production facilities.
The Company endeavors to enhance efficiency in its manufacturing and production facilities. However,
they may experience challenges in the facilities from time to time. These challenges may cause
production downtime, shortages and delays in deliveries which may affect the operations and financial
performance of the Company.
The Company’s production facilities are located in four strategic locations in the country to ensure
continuity in operations and for cost efficiency. Proximity to markets served and access to raw materials
are the primary factors considered in setting up the production facilities. All physical facilities are also
covered by a preventive maintenance program that aims to minimize downtime and bottle necks in
operations.
The Company has several related party transactions.
The Company has a number of related party transactions with affiliated companies. These transactions
are included among those described in the section of this Prospectus entitled “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions” on page 115 and in the notes to the Company’s financial statements appearing
elsewhere in this Prospectus. The Company’s practice has been to enter into contracts with these affiliate
companies on commercial terms, which are at least as favorable as the terms available to or from nonaffiliated parties.
The Company expects that it will continue to enter into transactions with companies directly or indirectly
controlled by, or associated with, THI. These transactions may involve potential conflicts of interest,
which could be detrimental to the Company and/or its shareholders.
All related-party transactions thus entered into by the Company are fully and properly documented. All
have commercial terms based on market conditions and were entered into at arms-length.
The Company may not successfully implement its growth strategy.
The implementation of the Company’s growth strategy may involve: (i) increasing market share; (ii)
growing and developing other markets; and (iii) entering new markets. The Company’s success in
implementing this strategy will depend on, among other things, its ability to identify and assess potential
growth areas and markets coupled with sufficient operational and financial controls for improved cost
efficiency. The Company’s future growth may be adversely affected if the strategies and corresponding
objectives prove unsuccessful.
A program seeking and hiring the appropriate expertise to build and manage the strategies are currently
underway coupled with the strengthening of the research team.
The Company operates in a highly regulated environment.
The Company is subject to extensive regulatory requirements regarding production, distribution,
marketing, advertising and labeling both in the Philippines and in the countries where it distributes its
products. Specifically in the Philippines, these include the Bureau of Food and Drugs, Department of
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Environment and Natural Resources, Bureau of Internal Revenue and Intellectual Property Office.
Decisions and changes in the legal and regulatory environment in the domestic market and in the
countries in which it operates or seeks to operate could limit its business activities or increase its
operating costs. The government may impose regulations such as increases in sales or specific taxes
which may materially and adversely affect the Company’s operations and financial performance.
To address regulatory risks like the imposition of higher excise taxes, the Company would employ an
increase in its selling prices and make efforts to reduce costs. Other regulatory risks are managed through
close monitoring and coordination with the regulatory agencies on the application and renewal of permits.
The Company closely liaises with appropriate regulatory agencies to anticipate any potential problems
and directional shifts in policy. The Company is a member of the Distilled Spirits Association of the
Philippines which acts as the medium for the presentation of the industry position in case of major
changes in regulations.
The Company operates in an industry with safety, health and environmental laws.
The operation of the Company’s existing and future plants are subject to a broad range of safety, health
and environmental laws and regulations. These laws and regulations impose controls on air and water
discharges, on the storage, handling, employee exposure to hazardous substances and other aspects of the
operations of these facilities and businesses. The Company has incurred, and expects to continue to incur,
operating costs to comply with such laws and regulations. The discharge of hazardous substances or
other pollutants into the air, soil or water may cause the Company to be liable to third parties, the
Philippine government or to the local government units with jurisdiction over the areas where the
Company’s facilities are located. The Company may be required to incur costs to remedy the damage
caused by such discharges or pay fines or other penalties for non-compliance.
There is no assurance that the Company will not become involved in future litigation or other proceedings
or be held responsible in any such future litigation or proceedings relating to safety, health and
environmental matters, the costs of which could be material. Clean-up and remediation costs of the sites
in which its facilities are located and related litigation could materially and adversely affect the
Company’s cash flow, results of operations and financial condition.
It is the policy of the Company to comply with existing environmental laws and regulations. A major
portion of its investment in physical facilities was allocated to environmental protection systems which
have been favorably cited as compliant by the environmental regulators.
The Company’s image is driven by public perception.
The Company’s success is partly driven by the public’s perception of its various brands. Any fault in the
processing or manufacturing either deliberately or accidentally of the products may give rise to product
liability claims. These claims may adversely affect the reputation and the financial performance of the
Company.
The risk of counterfeiting is constantly being monitored and legal action is undertaken against any violators.
The use of tamper proof caps also helps prevent counterfeiting. All brand names, devices, marks and logos
are registered in the Philippines and foreign markets.
The Quality Program of the Company ensures that its people and physical processes strictly comply with
prescribed product and process standards. It has a Customer Complaint System that gathers, analyzes and
corrects all defects noted in the products. Employees are directed to be observant of any defects in
Company products on display in sales outlets and buy the items with defects and surrender these to the
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Company for reprocessing.
The Company is a party to certain legal proceedings.
The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to pending legal proceedings and disagreements on certain
contractual issues. Any adverse rulings or decisions in any of these proceedings or disagreements on
these contractual issues may have a material impact on the Company’s businesses. (see “Certain Legal
Proceedings” on page 82). The Company intends to diligently pursue and exhaust all legal remedies
available to it in the event of any adverse ruling or decision in any of these proceedings.
RISKS RELATED TO THE PHILIPPINES
A slowdown in the Philippines’ economic growth.
Historically, results of operations have been influenced, and will continue to be influenced, to a
significant degree by the general state of the Philippine economy, with demand for power historically
being tied to the level of economic activity in the Philippines. As a result, the Company’s income and
results of operations depend, to a significant extent, on the performance of the Philippine economy. In the
past, the Philippines has experienced periods of slow or negative growth, high inflation, significant
devaluation of the peso and the imposition of exchange controls.
From mid-1997 to 1999, the economic crisis in Asia adversely affected the Philippine economy, causing a
significant depreciation of the peso, increases in interest rates, increased volatility and the downgrading of
the Philippine local currency rating and the ratings outlook for the Philippine banking sector. These
factors had a material adverse impact on the ability of many Philippine companies to meet their debtservicing obligations. While the Philippine economy has generally registered positive economic growth
in the period since 1999, it continues to face a significant budget deficit, limited foreign currency
reserves, a volatile peso exchange rate and a relatively weak banking sector. Real GDP rose by 5.4% in
2006, versus a growth of 4.9% in 2005. In 2007, GDP increased by 7.3%, the fastest in three decades,
due to the robust performance of the industrial and services sector. While the Philippine economy
performed well in 2008, macroeconomic conditions significantly changed in 2009 with the onset of the
financial crisis and global economic downturn.
Fitch Ratings (Fitch) has assigned a long-term foreign currency debt rating to the Philippines of “BB”
(two notches below investment grade), Standard & Poor’s (S&P) has assigned a “BB-“ (three notches
below investment grade) rating and Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) has assigned a “B1” (four
notches below investment grade) rating to the Philippines. In late January 2008, Moody’s changed its
ratings outlook for the Philippines from “stable” to “positive”, citing progress in stabilizing public sector
finances and a lessening dependence on external finances.
Any deterioration in the Philippine economy may adversely affect consumer sentiment and lead to a
reduction in demand for the Company’s products. There is no assurance that current or future
Government administrations will adopt economic policies conducive to sustaining economic growth.
Any political instability in the Philippines.
The Philippines has from time to time experienced political and military instability. Political instability in
the Philippines occurred in the late 1980’s when Presidents Ferdinand Marcos and Corazon Aquino held
office. In 2000, the then-President of the Philippines, Joseph Estrada, was subject to allegations of
corruption, culminating in impeachment proceedings, mass public protests in Manila, withdrawal of
support by the military and his removal from office. The then-Vice President, Gloria Macapagal-Arroyo,
was sworn in as President on January 20, 2001. On July 27, 2003, a group of 70 officers and over 200
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soldiers from the Philippine Army, Navy and Air Force attempted a coup d’etat against the Arroyo
administration which ended after 20 hours of negotiation between the group and the Government. Certain
individuals identified with the administration of former President Estrada have been implicated as
supporters of the failed coup d’etat.
In May 2004, the Philippines held presidential elections as well as elections for the Senate and the House
of Representatives. President Arroyo was elected to a six-year term. However certain opposition
candidates, including defeated presidential candidate Fernando Poe, Jr., questioned the election results,
alleging fraud and disenfranchisement of voters. Allegations of fraud committed during the May 2004
election have intensified since early June 2005 in light of revelations that President Arroyo had spoken
with an official from the independent Commission on Elections during the counting of votes. President
Arroyo has admitted to speaking with an election official, but insists that she did not participate in fraud
or induce the Commission on Elections to tamper with the election. On July 7, 2005, in a speech
broadcast nationwide, President Arroyo called upon her entire cabinet to submit courtesy resignations in
order to rebuild a new administration that could more efficiently implement economic reforms. The next
day, ten of President Arroyo’s senior governmental officials submitted their resignations and urged
President Arroyo to resign as well. Subsequently, three additional presidential advisors resigned.
President Arroyo has since replaced these senior officials. On July 25, 2005, impeachment complaints
against President Arroyo were referred to the House of Representatives’ Committee on Justice and
subsequently dismissed on August 31, 2005. Several cases were filed with the Supreme Court questioning
the constitutionality of the decision but none have been successful. On June 26, 2006, a new impeachment
complaint was filed against President Arroyo in the House of Representatives following the expiration of
the one-year period in which the Philippine constitution allowed only one impeachment proceeding
against the President. Since that time, several additional impeachment complaints have been filed against
President Arroyo. President Arroyo has denied the allegations contained in the impeachment complaints.
There have been media reports of military plots to remove President Arroyo from office. On February 24,
2006, President Arroyo issued Proclamation 1017, which declared a state of national emergency in
response to reports of an alleged attempted coup d’etat. In connection with the proclamation, a number of
opposition members were arrested or threatened with arrest. On March 3, 2006, President Arroyo lifted
the state of national emergency. On May 3, 2006, the Supreme Court ruled that certain acts committed by
law enforcement officials in furtherance of Proclamation 1017 were unconstitutional. There have been
media reports that opposition parties, including former members of the military, continue to call for
President Arroyo’s resignation.
On November 29, 2007, a Philippine Senator and former lieutenant, Antonio Trillanes IV, led a group of
military officers in walking out of a trial for the occupation of the Oakwood Premier Ayala Center and
seizing a hotel in Makati to demand President Arroyo’s resignation. The group peacefully surrendered
after a 6-hour standoff with government forces.
The next presidential elections will be held in May 2010 and a change in administration could possibly
result in instability. Furthermore, there is no assurance that the future administrations will adopt economic
policies conducive to sustaining economic growth. Any future economic, political or social instability in
the Philippines could adversely affect Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.
The occurrence of natural catastrophes or blackouts in the areas of operation of the Company.
The Philippines has experienced natural disasters and catastrophes in the recent past which includes
floods, typhoons and earthquakes related to climate change. These natural disasters impede the economic
progress of the affected areas which in turn, disrupt the ability of the Company to produce and distribute
its products.
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Furthermore, the Philippines has experienced power outages driven by a lack of generation and natural
disasters. Any power interruption in the manufacturing of the products, could adversely affect the
operations and financial performance of the Company.
The Company has positioned its production facilities in more than one location to avoid complete
shutdown of operations in case of natural disasters and power outages. The production capacity has been
designed to address the eventuality that one or two locations will fail to operate because of unforeseeable
and uncontrollable events such as typhoons, earthquakes and power outages.
Any foreign exchange controls imposed by the Philippine government.
The Philippines’ Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) currently does not have foreign exchange controls
hindering the operations of the Company. However, the BSP has authority to affect monetary and fiscal
policies of the government including foreign exchange when needed in order to: (i) suspend temporarily
or restrict sales of foreign exchange, (ii) require licensing of foreign exchange transactions or (iii) require
the delivery of foreign exchange to the BSP or its designee banks for the issuance of foreign currency
borrowings.
The Company may purchase major raw materials and technically advanced equipment globally in a
foreign currency. Any government controls or restrictions imposed could materially and adversely affect
the Company’s ability to purchase its raw materials and consequently affect materially and adversely its
operations and financial performance.
Major portion of the Company’s sales and production inputs are sourced from local sources.
RISKS RELATED TO THE OFFER
Liquidity Risk
The Philippine securities markets are substantially smaller, less liquid, and more concentrated than major
securities markets. As such, the Company cannot guarantee that the market for the Bonds will always be
active or liquid. Even if the Bonds are listed on the PDEx, trading in securities such as the Bonds, may
sometimes be subject to extreme volatility in response to interest rates, developments in local and
international capital markets and the overall market for debt securities and other factors. There is no
assurance the Bonds may be disposed at prices, volumes or at times deemed appropriate by the
Bondholders.
Proper fund management and monitoring is being prudently done so as to avoid the adverse effects in
earnings on financial assets. Cash flows and financial risks are managed to provide adequate liquidity to
the Company.
Pricing Risk
The Bond’s market value moves (either up or down) depending on the change in interest rates. The
Bonds when sold in the secondary market are worth more if interest rates decrease since the Bonds have a
higher interest rate relative to the market. Conversely if prevailing interest rate increases, the Bonds are
worth less when sold in the secondary market. Therefore, an investor faces possible loss if he decides to
sell.
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Retention of Ratings Risk
There is no assurance that the rating of the Bonds will be retained throughout the life of the Bonds. The
rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision, suspension,
or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organization. There is no assurance that the rating will
be maintained throughout the life of the Bonds.
Bonds have no Preference under Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code
No other loan or debt facility currently or to be entered into by the Issuer is notarized, such that no other
loan or debt facility to which the Issuer is a party shall have preference of priority over the Bonds as
accorded to public instruments under Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code of the Philippines, and all banks
and lenders under any such loans or facilities have waived the right to the benefit of any such preference
or priority. However, should any bank or Bondholder hereinafter have a preference or priority over the
Bonds as a result of notarization, then the Issuer shall at the Issuer’s option, either procure a waiver of the
preference created by such notarization or equally and ratably extend such preference to the Bonds.
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The following is a discussion of the material Philippine tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership
and disposition of the Bonds. This general description does not purport to be a comprehensive
description of the Philippine tax aspects of the Bonds and no information is provided regarding the tax
aspects of acquiring, owning, holding or disposing of the Bonds under applicable tax laws of other
applicable jurisdictions and the specific Philippine tax consequence in light of particular situations of
acquiring, owning, holding and disposing of the Bonds in such other jurisdictions. This discussion is
based upon laws, regulations, rulings, and income tax conventions (treaties) in effect at the date of this
Prospectus.
The tax treatment of a holder of Bonds may vary depending upon such holder’s particular situation, and
certain holders may be subject to special rules not discussed below. This summary does not purport to
address all tax aspects that may be important to a Bondholder.
PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF THE BONDS ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX
ADVISORS AS TO THE PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE OWNERSHIP AND
DISPOSITION OF A BOND, INCLUDING THE APPLICABILITY AND EFFECT OF ANY LOCAL
OR FOREIGN TAX LAWS.
As used in this section, the term “resident alien” refers to an individual whose residence is within the
Philippines and who is not a citizen thereof; a “non-resident alien” is an individual whose residence is
not within the Philippines and who is not a citizen of the Philippines. A non-resident alien who is
actually within the Philippines for an aggregate period of more than 180 days during any calendar year
is considered a “non-resident alien doing business in the Philippines,” otherwise, such non-resident alien
who is actually within the Philippines for an aggregate period of 180 days or less during any calendar
year is considered a “non-resident alien not doing business in the Philippines.” A “resident foreign
corporation” is a non-Philippine corporation engaged in trade or business within the Philippines; and a
“non-resident foreign corporation” is a non-Philippine corporation not engaged in trade or business
within the Philippines.
TAXATION OF INTEREST
The Tax Code provides that interest-bearing obligations of Philippine residents are Philippine-sourced
income subject to Philippine income tax. Interest income derived by Philippine resident individuals from
the Bonds is thus subject to income tax, which is withheld at source, at the rate of 20%. Generally,
interest on the Bonds received by non-resident alien individuals engaged in trade or business in the
Philippines is subject to a 20% withholding tax while that received by non-resident alien individuals not
engaged in trade or business is taxed at the rate of 25%. Interest income received by domestic
corporations and resident foreign corporations is taxed at the rate of 20%. Interest income received by
non-resident foreign corporations is subject to a 30% final withholding tax. The tax withheld constitutes
a final settlement of Philippine income tax liability with respect to such interest.
The foregoing rates are subject to further reduction by any applicable tax treaties in force between the
Philippines and the country of residence of the non-resident owner. Most tax treaties to which the
Philippines is a party generally provide for a reduced tax rate of 15% in cases where the interest arises in
the Philippines and is paid to a resident of the other contracting state. However, most tax treaties also
provide that reduced withholding tax rates shall not apply if the recipient of the interest, who is a resident
of the other contracting state, carries on business in the Philippines through a permanent establishment
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and the holding of the relevant interest-bearing instrument is effectively connected with such permanent
establishment.
TAX-EXEMPT STATUS
Bondholders who are exempt from or are not subject to final withholding tax on interest income may
claim such exemption by submitting the necessary documents. Said Bondholder shall submit the
following requirements to the Registrar, or to the Underwriters or selling agents (together with their
completed Application to Purchase) who shall then forward the same to the Registrar: (i) certified true
copy of the tax exemption certificate issued by the Bureau of Internal Revenue; (ii) a duly notarized
undertaking, in prescribed form, declaring and warranting its tax-exempt status, undertaking to
immediately notify the Issuer of any suspension or revocation of the tax exemption certificate and
agreeing to indemnify and hold the Issuer free and harmless against any claims, actions, suits, and
liabilities resulting from the non-withholding of the required tax; and (iii) such other documentary
requirements as may be required under the applicable regulations of the relevant taxing or other
authorities; provided further that, all sums payable by the Issuer to tax-exempt entities shall be paid in full
without deductions for taxes, duties, assessments, or government charges, subject to the submission by
the Bondholder claiming the benefit of any exemption or reasonable evidence of such exemption to the
Registrar.
Bondholders may transfer their Bonds at anytime, regardless of tax status of the transferor vis-à-vis the
transferee. Should a transfer between Bondholders of different tax status occur on a day which is not an
Interest Payment Date, tax-exempt entities trading with non tax-exempt entities shall be treated as non-tax
exempt entities for the interest period within which such transfer occurred. A selling or purchasing
Bondholder claiming tax-exempt status is required to submit the following documents to the Issuer,
within three days from settlement date: (i) a written notification of the sale or purchase, including the tax
status of the selling or buying party, and (ii) an indemnity agreement wherein the new Bondholder
undertakes to indemnify the Issuer for any tax or change that may later on be assessed upon the Issuer on
account of such transfer.
VALUE-ADDED TAX
Gross receipts arising from the sale of the Bonds in the Philippines by Philippine-registered dealers in
securities and lending investors shall be subject to a 12% value-added tax. The term “gross receipt”
means gross selling price less cost of the securities sold.
GROSS RECEIPTS TAX
Bank and non-bank financial intermediaries are subject to gross receipts tax on gross receipts derived
from sources within the Philippines in accordance with the following schedule:
On interest, commissions and discounts from lending activities as well as income from financial leasing,
on the basis of remaining maturities of instruments from which such receipts are derived:
Maturity period is five years or less
Maturity period is more than five years

5%
1%

In case the maturity period referred above is shortened through pre-termination, then the maturity period
shall be reckoned to end as of the date of pre-termination for purposes of classifying the transaction and
the correct rate shall be applied accordingly.
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Net trading gains realized within the taxable year on the sale or disposition of the Bonds shall be taxed at
7%.
DOCUMENTARY STAMP TAX
A documentary stamp tax is imposed upon the issuance of debentures and certificates of indebtedness
issued by Philippine companies, such as the Bonds, at the rate of P1.00 for each P200, or fractional part
thereof, of the offer price of such debt instruments; provided that, for debt instruments with terms of less
than one year, the documentary stamp tax to be collected shall be of a proportional amount in accordance
with the ratio of its term in number of days to 365 days.
The documentary stamp tax is collectible wherever the document is made, signed, issued, accepted, or
transferred, when the obligation or right arises from Philippine sources, or the property is situated in the
Philippines. Any applicable documentary stamp taxes on the original issue shall be paid by the Issuer for
its own account.
No documentary stamp tax is imposed on the subsequent sale or disposition of the Bonds.
TAXATION ON SALE OR OTHER DISPOSITION OF THE BONDS
Income Tax
The holder of the Bonds will recognize gain or loss upon the sale or other disposition (including a
redemption at maturity) of the Bonds in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized
from such disposition and such holder’s basis in the Bonds. Such gain or loss is likely to be deemed a
capital gain or loss assuming that the holder has held Bonds as capital assets.
Under the Tax Code, any gain realized from the sale, exchange or retirement of securities, debentures and
other certificates of indebtedness with an original maturity date of more than five years (as measured from
the date of issuance of such securities, debentures or other certificates of indebtedness) shall not be
subject to income tax.
Therefore, any gains realized by a holder on the trading of the Bonds shall be exempt from income tax.
In case of an individual taxpayer, only 50% of the capital gain or loss is recognized upon the sale or
exchange of a capital asset if it has been held for more than 12 months.
Any gains realized by non-residents on the sale of the Bonds may be exempt from Philippine income tax
under an applicable tax treaty or if they are sold outside the Philippines.
Estate and Donor’s Tax
The transfer by a deceased person, whether a Philippine resident or non-Philippine resident, to his heirs of
the Bonds shall be subject to an estate tax which is levied on the net estate of the deceased at progressive
rates ranging from 5% to 20%, if the net estate is over P200,000.00. A Bondholder shall be subject to
donor’s tax on the transfer of the Bonds by gift at either (i) 30%, where the donee or beneficiary is a
stranger, or (ii) at progressive rates ranging from 2% to 15% if the net gifts made during the calendar year
exceed P100,000.00 and where the donee or beneficiary is other than a stranger. For this purpose, a
“stranger” is a person who is not a: (a) brother, sister (whether by whole or half-blood), spouse, ancestor
and lineal descendant; or (b) relative by consanguinity in the collateral line within the fourth degree of
relationship.
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The estate tax and the donor’s tax, in respect of the Bonds, shall not be collected (a) if the deceased, at the
time of death, or the donor, at the time of the donation, was a citizen and resident of a foreign country
which, at the time of his death or donation, did not impose a transfer tax of any character in respect of
intangible personal property of citizens of the Philippines not residing in that foreign country; or (b) if the
laws of the foreign country of which the deceased or donor was a citizen and resident, at the time of his
death or donation, allows a similar exemption from transfer or death taxes of every character or
description in respect of intangible personal property owned by citizens of the Philippines not residing in
the foreign country.
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Following the offer and sale of up to P4,000,000,000.00 of Fixed Rate Bonds and assuming an oversubscription of up to P1,000,000,000.00, the Company expects that the net proceeds of the Offering shall
amount to approximately P4,935,274,375.00 after fees, commissions and expenses.
Estimated net proceeds of the Offering are computed as follows:
Amount
(in Pesos)
For a P4 Billion Issue Size
Gross Proceeds from the sale of Bonds
Less: Estimated Expenses
Documentary Stamp Tax
SEC Registration Fee
SEC Legal Research Fee
Ad Publication

4,000,000,000.00
20,000,000.00
1,562,500.00
15,625.00
100,000.00

Underwriting and Other Professional Fees
Arranger’s Fee
Legal & Audit Fees
Registry and Paying Agency Fees
Trustee Fees
Rating Agency Fee

24,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
75,000.00
20,000.00
2,000,000.00

Marketing Expenses
Printing Cost
Miscellaneous fees
Sub-total Estimated Expenses

200,000.00
500,000.00
53,473,125.00

Estimated net proceeds for P4 Billion Issue

3,946,526,875.00

For the P1 Billion Over-subscription Option
Gross Proceeds from the sale of Bonds
Less: Estimated Expenses
Documentary Stamp Tax
SEC Registration Fee
SEC Legal Research Fee
Arranger’s Fee
Sub-total Estimated Expenses

1,000,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
250,000.00
2,500.00
6,000,000.00
11,252,500.00

Estimated net proceeds for P1 Billion Over-subscription
Estimated Net Proceeds from the Offering

988,747,500.00
4,935,274,375.00

Note: The above expenses exclude Gross Receipts Tax and Value Added Tax which are for the Issuer’s account.
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Aside from the abovementioned one-time costs, the Company expects the following annual expenses in
relation to the Bonds:
a)
b)
c)
d)

CRISP annual monitoring fee
Registrar’s registration and statement generation fees
Paying agency fee and credit advices
Trustee’s annual fee

300,000.00
260,000.00
400,000.00
150,000.00

The net proceeds from the Offering will be used to refinance the existing debt of the Company and for
working capital and general corporate purposes. The breakdown of the use of proceeds is as follows:
Use of Proceeds
Debt Refinancing
Working Capital

Amount
P4.2 billion
P0.7 billion
P4.9 billion

A material amount of proceeds will discharge the Company’s P4.2 billion syndicated loan. The loan has a
term of five (5) years and six (6) months, or a maturity date of August 15, 2011, with interest rate per
annum that is fixed at the 5-year MART1 rate as of February 13, 2006 plus 1% spread.
No material amount of the Offer proceeds will be used to reimburse any officer, director, employee or
shareholder for service rendered, assets previously transferred, or advanced.
In the event of unfavorable circumstances, the Company may deviate from its intended use of proceeds.
For any deviation or adjustment in the intended use of proceeds, the Company shall inform the Securities
and Exchange Commission and its shareholders within thirty (30) calendar days prior to its
implementation.
Expenses in Relation to the Bond Offering
The estimated fees and expenses in relation to the bond issue are enumerated above. Estimated expenses
include SEC registration fees, documentary stamp tax, marketing expenses, underwriting fees and other
professional fees.
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DETERMINATION OF OFFER PRICE
The Bonds shall be issued at 100% of principal amount or face value.
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THE OFFER
On December 17, 2009, TDI filed a Registration Statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC), in connection with the offer and sale to the public of debt securities with an
aggregate principal amount of up to P 5,000,000,000.00 principal amount of fixed rate bonds comprised
of P 4,000,000,000.00 aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Five Year Bonds with an oversubscription option of up to P 1,000,000,000.00.
THE UNDERWRITERS OF THE OFFER
Allied Banking Corporation, First Metro Investment Corporation, and PNB Capital & Investment
Corporation (each a Joint Lead Manager and collectively, the Underwriters), pursuant to an Underwriting
Agreement with TDI executed on January 28, 2010 (the Underwriting Agreement), have agreed to act as
the Underwriters for the Offer and as such, distribute and sell the Bonds at the Offer Price, and have also
committed to underwrite up to Four Billion Pesos (P 4,000,000,000.00) subject to the satisfaction of
certain conditions and in consideration of certain fees and expenses, with a One Billion Pesos (P
1,000,000,000.00) over-subscription option.
The Joint Lead Managers will receive a fee of 0.60% of the final aggregate nominal principal amount of
the Bonds issued. Such fee shall be inclusive of underwriting and participation commissions.
Each of the Joint Lead Manager and Underwriters has committed to underwrite the Offer up to the
amount indicated below:
Allied Banking Corporation
First Metro Investment Corporation
PNB Capital & Investment Corporation
TOTAL

P 1,333,330,000.00
1,333,340,000.00
1,333,330,000.00
P 4,000,000,000.00

The Joint Lead Managers and Underwriters shall have exclusive rights and priority to exercise the oversubscription option of up to One Billion Pesos (P 1,000,000,000.00) under the terms and conditions
agreed upon among themselves.
There is no arrangement for the Underwriters to return to TDI any unsold Bonds. The Underwriting
Agreement may be terminated in certain circumstances prior to payment of the net proceeds of the Bonds
being made to TDI. There is no arrangement as well giving the Underwriters the right to designate or
nominate member(s) to the Board of Directors of TDI.
The Underwriters are duly licensed by the SEC to engage in underwriting or distribution of the Bonds.
The Underwriters may, from time to time, engage in transactions with and perform services in the
ordinary course of its business for TDI or other members of the Lucio Tan Group of Companies (LTGC)
of which TDI forms a part.
Allied Banking Corporation (Allied Bank or ABC) is a publicly listed universal bank incorporated and
domiciled in the Philippines. Allied Bank and its subsidiaries are engaged in all aspects of banking,
financing and leasing to personal, commercial, corporate and institutional clients through a network of
328 local and international branches and offices.
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First Metro Investment Corporation (First Metro Investment of FMIC) is the publicly-listed investment
banking arm of Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company. Incorporated in 1972, First Metro Investment is
engaged primarily in equity and debt underwriting, project finance, financial and investment advisory,
loan syndication, private equity, government and fixed income securities trading and stock brokerage.
PNB Capital & Investment Corporation (PNB Capital) is a wholly-owned investment house subsidiary of
the Philippine National Bank (PNB). It was formed out of the Bank's highly successful Investment
Banking Group (IBG) and formally began commercial operations on October 8, 1997. PNB Capital is
involved in arranging and managing debt and equity offerings, loan syndications, and financial advisory
assignments.
The LTGC, which effectively owns 99% of TDI, owns more than 75% and 67% of ABC and PNB Capital
respectively. FMIC, on the other hand, has no direct relation with TDI in terms of ownership.
The Joint Lead Managers have no right to designate or nominate any member of the board of directors of
TDI.
SALE AND DISTRIBUTION
The distribution and sale of the Bonds shall be undertaken by the Underwriters who shall sell and
distribute the Bonds to third party buyers/investors. Nothing herein shall limit the rights of the
Underwriters from purchasing the Bonds for their own respective accounts.
There are no persons to whom the Bonds are allocated or designated. The Bonds shall be offered to the
public at large and without preference.
The obligations of each of the Underwriters will be several, and not solidary, and nothing in the
Underwriting and Issue Management Agreement shall be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture
between and among any of the Underwriters. Unless otherwise expressly provided in the Underwriting
Agreement, the failure by an Underwriter to carry out its obligations thereunder shall neither relieve the
other Underwriters of their obligations under the same Underwriting Agreement, nor shall any
Underwriter be responsible for the obligation of another Underwriter.
OFFER PERIOD
The Offer Period shall commence on February 01, 2010 and end on February 05, 2010.
APPLICATION TO PURCHASE
Applicants may purchase the Bonds during the Offer Period by submitting to the Underwriters properly
completed Applications to Purchase, together with two signature cards, and the full payment of the
purchase price of the Bonds in the manner provided in said Application to Purchase.
Individual applicants must also submit, in addition to the accomplished Application to Purchase and its
required attachments, a photocopy of any one of the following identification cards (ID), subject to
verification with the original ID: passport, driver’s license, postal ID, company ID, SSS/GSIS ID and/or
Senior Citizen’s ID.
Corporate and institutional applicants must also submit, in addition to the foregoing, a copy of their SEC
Certificate of Registration, Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws, and the appropriate authorization by their
respective boards of directors and/or committees or bodies relative to the purchase of the Bonds and
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designating the authorized signatory(ies) thereof.
A corporate and institutional investor who is exempt from or is not subject to withholding tax shall be
required to submit the following requirements to the Registrar, subject to acceptance by the Issuer as
being sufficient in form and substance: (i) certified true copy of the tax exemption certificate, ruling or
opinion issued by the Bureau of Internal Revenue; (ii) a duly notarized undertaking, in the prescribed
form, declaring and warranting its tax exempt status, undertaking to immediately notify the Issuer of any
suspension or revocation of the duly-accepted tax exemption certificates and agreeing to indemnify and
hold the Issuer free and harmless against any claims, actions, suits, and liabilities resulting from the nonwithholding of the required tax; and (iii) such other documentary requirements as may be required under
the applicable regulations of the relevant taxing or other authorities; provided that, all sums payable by
the Issuer to tax exempt entities shall be paid in full without deductions for taxes, duties, assessments or
government charges subject to the submission by the Bondholder claiming the benefit of any exemption
of reasonable evidence of such exemption to the Registrar.
Completed Applications to Purchase and corresponding payments must reach the Underwriters prior to
the end of the Offer Period, or such earlier date as may be specified by the Underwriters. Acceptance by
the Underwriters of the completed Application to Purchase shall be subject to the availability of the
Bonds and the acceptance by TDI. In the event that any check payment is returned by the drawee bank for
any reason whatsoever or the nominated bank account to be debited is invalid, the Application to
Purchase shall be automatically canceled and any prior acceptance of the Application to Purchase is
deemed revoked.
MINIMUM PURCHASE
A minimum purchase of Fifty Thousand Pesos (P 50,000.00) shall be considered for acceptance.
Purchases in excess of the minimum shall be in multiples of Ten Thousand Pesos (P 10,000.00).
ALLOTMENT OF THE BONDS
If the Bonds are insufficient to satisfy all Applications to Purchase, the available Bonds shall be allotted
in accordance with the chronological order of submission of properly completed and appropriately
accomplished Applications to Purchase on a first-come, first-served basis, without prejudice to TDI’s
exercise of its right to the acceptance of applications as set out below.
ACCEPTANCE OF APPLICATIONS
TDI and the Underwriters reserve the right to accept or reject applications to subscribe to the Bonds, and
in case of oversubscription, allocate the Bonds available to the applicants in a manner they deem
appropriate. If any application is rejected or accepted in part only, the application money or the
appropriate portion thereof will be returned without interest by the relevant Underwriter.
REFUNDS
If any application is rejected or accepted in part only, the application money or the appropriate unused
portion thereof shall be returned without interest to such applicant through the Underwriters with whom
such application to purchase the Bonds was made.
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PAYMENTS
The Paying Agent shall open and maintain a Payment Account with the Payment Account Bank
designated by the Issuer for the exclusive purpose of effecting payments administered by said Paying
Agent in accordance with the Registry and Paying Agency Agreement, provided that beneficial ownership
of the Payment Account shall always remain with the Bondholders.
The Paying Agent shall maintain the Payment Account for six (6) months from Maturity Date. Upon
closure of the Payment Account, any balance remaining in such Payment Account shall be returned to the
Issuer and shall be held by the Issuer in trust and for the irrevocable benefit of the Bondholders with
unclaimed interest and principal payments. The Paying Agent’s responsibility to effect payments to
Bondholders as provided in the Registry and Paying Agency Agreement shall cease upon closure of the
Payment Account.
PURCHASE AND CANCELLATION
The Issuer may purchase the Bonds at any time in the open market or by tender or by contract at any price
without any obligation to make pro-rata purchases from all Bondholders. Bonds so purchased shall be
redeemed and cancelled and may not be re-issued.
REGISTRY OF BONDHOLDERS
The Bonds shall be issued in scripless form with the Philippine Depository & Trust Corp. (PDTC), and
shall be registered in the electronic Registry of Bondholders maintained by PDTC as the Registrar. A
Master Certificate of Indebtedness representing the Bonds sold in the Offer shall be issued to and
registered in the name of the Trustee, on behalf of the Bondholders.
Legal title to the Bonds shall be shown in the Registry of Bondholders maintained by the Registrar. A
notice confirming the principal amount of the Bonds purchased by each applicant in the Offer shall be
issued by the Registrar to all Bondholders following the Issue Date. Upon any assignment, title to the
Bonds shall pass by recording of the transfers from the transferor to the transferee in the Electronic
Registry of Bondholders maintain by the Registrar. Settlement in respect of such transfer or change of
title to the Bonds, including settlement of any cost arising from such transfers, including , but not limited
to, documentary stamp taxes, if any, arising from subsequent transfers, shall be for the account of the
relevant Bondholder.
.
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The following does not purport to be a complete listing of all the rights, obligations or privileges of the
Bonds. Some rights, obligations or privileges may be further limited or restricted by other documents.
Prospective investors are enjoined to carefully review the Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws and
resolutions of the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company, the information contained in this
Prospectus, the Trust Agreement, Underwriting Agreement, and other agreements relevant to the Offer.
Prospective investors are likewise encouraged to consult their legal counsels and accountants in order to
be better advised of the circumstances surrounding the issued Bonds.
The Board of Directors of Tanduay Distillers, Inc. authorized, through a resolution unanimously passed
and approved, the issuance of up to P5,000,000,000.00 principal amount of fixed rate bonds comprised of
P 4,000,000,000.00 aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Five Year Bonds at 8.055% p.a. and an oversubscription option of up to P 1,000,000,000.00.
The Trustee, as well as the Registrar and Paying Agent have no interest in, or relation to TDI, which may
conflict with its role as Trustee and Registrar and Paying Agent of the Offer.
The Bonds shall be offered and sold through a general public offering in the Philippines. The Bonds shall
be issued in scripless form, with the Philippine Depository & Trust Corp. (PDTC) maintaining the
Electronic Registry of Bondholders as the Registrar of the Bonds. Subsequent to Issue Date, the Bonds
shall be listed on PDEx to facilitate secondary trading. The Bonds will be offered and sold in principal
amounts of P 50,000.00 each as a minimum and in integral multiples of P 10,000.00 thereafter, and traded
in denominations of P 10,000.00 in the secondary market.
The Bonds shall mature on February 13, 2015, unless earlier redeemed by the Issuer pursuant to the terms
thereof and subject to the provisions on redemption and payment as detailed below.
FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE
a) Form, Denomination and Title
The Bonds shall be issued in scripless form, and shall be issued in denominations of Fifty Thousand
Pesos (P 50,000.00) each as a minimum and in integral multiples of Ten Thousand (P 10,000.00)
thereafter, and shall be traded in denominations of P 10,000.00 in the secondary market
b) Title
Legal title to the Bonds shall be shown in the Registry of Bondholders maintained by the
Registrar to all Bondholders following the Issue Date. Upon any assignment, title to the Bonds
shall pass by recording of the transfers from the transferor to the transferee in the Electronic
Registry of Bondholders maintain by the Registrar. Settlment in respect of such transfer or
change of title to the Bonds, including settlement of any cost arising from such transfers,
including , but not limited to, documentary stamp taxes, if any, arising from subsequent transfers,
shall be for the account of the relevant Bondholder.
c) Bond Rating
The Bonds have been rated AAA by CRISP having considered the Company’s strong Tanduay
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brand equity, solid operation and strong financial performance as indicated by historically strong
gross profit averaging 21.4% and average net income of 10.6% over the last five years; and
operating efficiencies characterized by excellent integration of distillation process and
environment-friendly technology that result in cost savings. AAA is the highest rating available.
An AAA rating indicates strongest capacity and very low probability of default by a debt issuer.
The rating is subject to regular annual reviews, or more frequently as market developments may
dictate, for as long as the Bonds are outstanding. After Issue Date, the Trustee shall likewise
monitor compliance by the Issuer with certain covenants in relation to the Bonds through regular
annual reviews.
TRANSFER OF BONDS
a) Registry of Bondholders
The Issuer shall cause the Registry of Bondholders to be kept by the Registrar, in electronic form. The
names and addresses of the Bondholders and the particulars of the Bonds held by them and all
transfers of Bonds shall be entered in the Electronic Registry of Bondholders. As required by Circular
No. 428-04 issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, the Registrar shall send each Bondholder a
written statement of registry holdings at least quarterly (at the cost of the Issuer), and a written advice
confirming every receipt or transfer of the Bonds that is effected in the Registrar’s system (at the cost
of the relevant Bondholder). Such statement of registry holdings shall serve as the confirmation of
ownership of the relevant Bondholder as of the date thereof. Any and/or all requests of Bondholders
for certifications, reports or other documents from the Registrar, except as provided herein, shall be
for the account of the requesting Bondholder.
b) Transfers; Tax Status
Initial placement of the Bonds and subsequent transfers of interests in the Bonds shall be subject to
applicable Philippine selling restrictions prevailing from time to time.
Upon listing of the Bonds on PDEx, trading of the Bonds will be coursed through PDEx in
accordance with PDEx rules and conventions. Transfers and/or settlement of the Bonds shall be
performed in accordance with the PDTC rules and procedures. Upon any assignment, title to the
Bonds will pass by recording of the transfer from the transferor to the transferee in the Electronic
Registry of Bondholders maintained by the Registrar.
Bondholders may transfer their Bonds at anytime, regardless of tax status of the transferor vis-à-vis
the transferee. Should a transfer between Bondholders of different tax status occur on a day which is
not an Interest Payment Date, tax exempt entities trading with non tax exempt entities shall be treated
as non-tax exempt entities for the interest period within which such transfer occurred. A Bondholder
claiming tax-exempt status is required to submit a written notification of the sale or purchase to the
Trustee and the Registrar, including the tax status of the transferor or transferee, as appropriate,
together with the supporting documents specified below under “Payment of Additional Amounts;
Taxation”, within three days of such transfer.
Transfers effected during the period between the Record Date and the relevant Payment Date are
deemed restricted transfers of the Bonds. In addition, Bondholders with deficient documents shall not
be allowed to execute transfers.
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RANKING
The Bonds shall constitute the direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the
Issuer and will rank pari passu and rateably without any preference or priority among themselves and
with all other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, other than
obligations preferred by the law.
INTEREST
a) Interest Payment Dates
Interest shall be payable every three (3) months, computed based on the outstanding balance of the
Bonds.
The Five Year Bonds bear interest on its principal amount from and including the Issue Date at the
rate of 8.055% p.a., payable quarterly in arrears starting on May 13 for the first Interest Payment
Date, and on May 13, August 13, November 13, and February 13 of each year for each subsequent
Interest Payment Date at which the Bonds are outstanding, or the subsequent Business Day, without
adjustment in computation as to the amount of interest payable, if such Interest Payment Date is not a
Business Day.
For purposes of clarity the last Interest Payment Date on the Five Year Bonds shall fall on the
Maturity Date or February 13, 2015 or five years and one day from Issue Date. The interest payable
on the first Interest Payment Date on the Five Year Bonds shall be calculated for a period of 91 days
on the basis of a 360-day year.
b) Interest Accrual
Each Bond shall cease to bear interest from and including the Maturity Date, as defined in the
discussion on “Final Redemption” below, unless, upon due presentation, payment of the principal in
respect of the Bond then outstanding is not made, is improperly withheld or refused, in which case the
Penalty Interest (see “Penalty Interest” below) shall apply.
c) Determination of Interest Amount
Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated on a 30/360 day basis. The interest payable on the first
Interest Payment Date on the Five Year Bonds shall be calculated for a period of 91 days on the basis
of a 360-day year.
If any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a Business Day, such Interest
Payment Date shall be moved to the immediately succeeding Business Day, without adjustment to the
amount of Interest to be paid.
As used herein, the Interest Period shall mean (i) with respect to the first Interest Period, the period
commencing on Issue Date of the Bonds and ending three (3) months plus one day, and (ii) for
subsequent Interest Periods, every three (3) months thereafter.
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REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE
a) Final Redemption
Unless earlier redeemed, the Bonds will be redeemed at par (or 100%) after five (5) years and one (1)
day from Issue Date. However if the Maturity Date is not a Business Day, payment of all amounts
due on such date will be made by the Issuer through the Paying Agent, without adjustment in
computation as to the amount of interest payable, on the succeeding Business Day.
b) Redemption for Tax Reasons
If payments under the Bonds become subject to additional or increased taxes other than the taxes and
rates of such taxes prevailing on the Issue Date as a result of certain changes in law, rule or regulation,
or in the interpretation thereof, and such additional or increased rate of such tax cannot be avoided by
use of reasonable measures available to the Issuer, the Issuer may redeem the Bonds in whole, but not in
part, on any Interest Payment Date (having given not more than 60 nor less than 30 days’ notice) at par
plus accrued interest.
c) Change in Law or Circumstance
If any provision of the Trust Agreement or any of the related documents is or shall become for any
reason, invalid, illegal or unenforceable to the extent that it shall become, for any reason, unlawful for
the Issuer to give effect to its rights or obligations hereunder, or to enforce any provisions of the Trust
Agreement or any of the related documents in whole or in part, or any law shall be introduced to
prevent or restrain the performance by the parties hereto of their obligations under the Trust
Agreement or any other related documents, the Issuer shall provide the Trustee an opinion of legal
counsel confirming the foregoing, such legal counsel being from a reputable law firm reasonably
acceptable to the Trustee. Thereupon the Trustee, upon notice to the Issuer, shall declare the principal
of the Bonds, including all accrued interest and other chargers thereon, if any, to be immediately due
and payable, and upon such declaration, the same shall be immediately due and payable without any
pre-payment penalty, notwithstanding anything in the Trust Agreement or in the Bonds to the
contrary.
d) Purchase and Cancellation
The Issuer may at any time purchase any of the Bonds at any price in the open market or by tender or
by contract at any price, without any obligation to purchase Bonds pro-rata from all Bondholders and
the Bondholders shall not be obliged to sell. Any Bonds so purchased shall be redeemed and
cancelled and may not be re-issued.
PAYMENTS
On each Interest Payment Date and Maturity Date (as applicable), the Issuer shall make available
cleared funds to the Paying Agent for payment to the relevant holders of the Bonds as shown in the
Electronic Registry of Bondholders maintained by the Registrar.
PAYMENT OF ADDITIONAL AMOUNTS - TAXATION
Payments of principal and interest will be made free and clear of any deductions or withholding for or
on account of any present or future taxes, duties or charges imposed by or on behalf of the Republic of
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the Philippines. If such taxes, duties or charges are imposed, the same shall be for the account of the
Issuer. Provided, however, that the Issuer shall not be liable for:
a) The applicable final withholding tax (between 20-30%) on interest earned on the Bonds prescribed
under the Tax Code. A corporate and institutional investor who is exempt from or is not subject to
the aforesaid withholding tax shall be required to submit a tax exemption certificate and other
applicable documents;
(b) Gross Receipts Tax under Section 121 of the Tax Code;
(c) Taxes on the overall income of any securities dealer or Bondholder, whether or not subject to
withholding; and
(d) Value Added Tax (VAT) under Sections 106 to 108 of the Tax Code.
Documentary stamp tax for the primary issue of the Bonds and the execution of the Bond
Agreements, if any, shall be for the Issuer’s account.
FINANCIAL COVENANT
The Issuer shall maintain the following financial ratios:
(i)
with respect to the Issuer’s total liabilities to its total stockholders’ equity, computed in
accordance with PFRS and based on the most recent audited financial statements of the Issuer, a
maximum ratio of 1.75x; and
(ii)
with respect to the Issuer’s current assets to current liabilities, computed in accordance
with PFRS and based on the most recent audited financial statements of the Issuer, a minimum
ratio of 2.0x.
NEGATIVE PLEDGE
The Issuer shall not create or suffer to exist any lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance,
upon or with respect to any of its properties, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, or assign any right
to receive income for the purpose of securing any other debt, unless at the same time or prior thereto, its
obligations under this Agreement are forthwith secured equally and ratably therewith, or have the benefit
of such other security as shall not be materially less beneficial to the Bondholders; provided, however,
that the restrictions shall not apply to:
(i)
any lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance to secure statutory obligations,
surety or appeal bonds, bonds for release of attachment or stay or execution or injunction,
performance of bids, tenders, contracts (other than for the repayment of borrowed money), or
leases in the normal course of the Issuer’s business; or
(ii)
any lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance to secure letters of credit, bid
bonds, performance bonds or similar instruments procured by the Issuer in the ordinary course of
business; or
(iii)
any lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance on the properties and assets of
the Issuer (x) imposed by law, such as carrier’s lien, warehousemen’s and mechanic’s liens and
other similar liens arising in the ordinary course of business, or (y) arising out of pledges or
deposits under workmen’s compensation laws, unemployment insurance, old age pension or other
social security or retirement benefits or similar legislation;
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(iv)
any lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance created for the purpose of
paying current taxes, assessments or other governmental charges which are not delinquent or
remain payable without any penalty, or the validity of which is contested in good faith by
appropriate proceedings upon stay of execution of the enforcement thereof; or
(v)
any lien over any asset created or assumed at the time of the purchase of the asset or to
secure the payment of any indebtedness in respect of borrowed money (including extensions and
renewals and replacements therefore) incurred for the purpose of financing the purchase of such
assets.
EVENTS OF DEFAULT
The Issuer shall be considered in default under the Bonds and the Trust Agreement in case any of the
following events (each an Event of Default) shall occur and is continuing:
a) Payment Default
The Issuer fails to pay when due and payable any amount which the Issuer is obliged to pay to the
Bondholders under the Trust Agreement and the Bonds in the manner, at the place, and in the
currency in which it is expressed to be payable.
b) Representation/Warranty Default
Any representation and warranty of the Issuer hereof or any certificate or opinion submitted
pursuant hereto proves to have been untrue, incorrect or misleading in any material respect as and
when made and the circumstances which cause such representation or warranty to be incorrect or
misleading continue for not less than seven (7) days (or such longer period as the Majority
Bondholders shall approve) after receipt of written notice from the Bondholders through the
Trustee to that effect.
c) Other Default
The Issuer fails to perform or violates any other provision or term of the Trust Agreement and the
Bonds, and such failure or violation is not remediable or, if remediable, continues to be
unremedied after the applicable grace period, or in the absence of such grace period, after thirty
(30) days from the date of occurrence of the said violation; provided that, the Events of Default
constituting a payment default, expropriation, insolvency or closure default, or a violation of a
negative covenant shall not be remediable.
d) Cross Default
The Issuer and / or any of its subsidiaries / affiliates fails to pay or defaults in the payment of any
installment of the principal or interest, or fails to comply or commits a breach or violation of any
term, condition or stipulation, of any other agreement, contract or document with its lenders or
any third party to which the Issuer is a party or privy or under which the Issuer acts as a guarantor
or surety, including any agreement similar or analogous thereto, whether executed prior to or after
the date of the issuance of the Bonds, if the effect of the failure to observe or perform such term,
covenant or agreement is to cause such obligation to become due prior to its stated maturity.
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e) Expropriation Default
The Republic of the Philippines or any competent authority thereof takes any action to suspend
the whole or a substantial portion of the operations of the Issuer and to condemn, seize,
nationalize or appropriate (either with or without compensation) the Issuer or any material portion
of its properties or assets, unless such act, deed or proceedings are contested in good faith by the
Issuer.
f) Insolvency Default
The Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries becomes insolvent or unable to pay its debts when due or
commits or permits any act of bankruptcy, which term shall include, but shall not be limited to:
(i) filing of a petition in any bankruptcy, reorganization (other than a labor or management
reorganization), winding-up, suspension of payment or liquidation proceeding, or any other
proceeding analogous in purpose and effect; (ii) appointment of a trustee or receiver of all or a
substantial portion of its properties; (iii) making of an assignment for the benefit of its creditors;
(iv) the admission in writing by the Issuer of its inability to pay its debts; or (v) the entry of any
order or judgment of any court, tribunal or administrative agency or body confirming the
bankruptcy or insolvency of the Issuer or approving any reorganization (other than a labor or
management reorganization), winding-up, liquidation or appointment of trustee or receiver of the
Issuer or a substantial portion of its property or assets.
g) Cancellation of Licenses, Permits, etc.
Any of the licenses, permits, rights, options, or privileges presently or hereafter enjoyed, utilized
or required in the conduct of the business or operations of the Issuer shall be revoked, cancelled,
or otherwise terminated, or the free and continued use and exercise thereof shall be curtailed or
prevented, in each case in such manner as to materially and adversely affect the ability of the
Issuer to meet its obligations under the Trust Agreement and the Bonds, or any similar events that
occur which materially and adversely affect the ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations under
the Trust Agreement and the Bonds.
h) Judgment Default
Any final judgment, decree or arbitral award for the sum of money, damages or for a fine or
penalty against the Issuer and the enforcement of which is not stayed, and is not paid, discharged
or duly bonded within thirty (30) calendar days after the date when payment of such judgment,
decree or award is due under the applicable law or agreement.
i)

Writ and Similar Process Default
Any judgment, writ, warrant of attachment, injunction, stay order, execution or similar process
shall be issued or levied against any material part of the Issuer’s assets, business or operations
and such judgment, writ, warrant or similar process shall not be released, vacated or fully bonded
within thirty (30) calendar days after its issue or levy.

j)

Closure Default
The Issuer voluntarily suspends or ceases operations of a substantial portion of its business for a
continuous period of thirty (30) calendar days except in the case of strikes or lockouts or when
necessary to prevent business losses or when due to fortuitous events or force majeure.
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k) Non-Payment of Taxes
Non-payment of any Taxes, or any assessments or governmental charges levied upon it or against
its properties, revenues and assets by the date on which such Taxes, assessments or charges
attached thereto, which are not contested in good faith by the Issuer, or after the lapse of any
grace period that may have been granted to the Issuer by the Bureau of Internal Revenue or any
other Philippine tax body or authority
CONSEQUENCES OF DEFAULT
Subject to the terms of the Trust Agreement, the Trustee shall, within ten (10) Business Days after
receiving notice, or having knowledge of, the occurrence of any Event of Default, give to the
Bondholders written notice of such default known to it unless the same shall have been cured before the
giving of such notice.
The written notice required to be given to the Bondholders hereunder shall be published in a newspaper of
general circulation in Metro Manila for two consecutive days, further indicating in the published notice
that the Bondholders or their duly authorized representatives may obtain any information relating to such
occurrence of an Event of Default at the principal office of the Trustee upon presentation of sufficient and
acceptable identification.
If any one or more of the Events of Default shall have occurred and be continuing without the same being
cured within the periods provided in the Trust Agreement and in these Terms and Conditions, the Trustee
may on its own, or, if upon the written direction of the Majority Bondholders, shall, by notice in writing
delivered to the Issuer, with a copy furnished the Paying Agent, Receiving Bank, and Registrar, declare
the principal of the Bonds, including all accrued interest and other charges thereon, if any, to be
immediately due and payable (the Accelerated Amounts), and upon such declaration the same shall be
immediately due and payable.
All the unpaid obligations under the Bonds, including accrued Interest, and all other amounts payable
thereunder, shall be declared to be forthwith due and payable, whereupon all such amounts shall become
and be forthwith due and payable without presentment, demand, protest or further notice of any kind, all
of which are hereby expressly waived by the Issuer.
NOTICE OF DEFAULT
The Trustee shall, within ten (10) days after the occurrence of any Event of Default, give to the
Bondholders written notice of such default known to it, unless the same shall have been cured before the
giving of such notice; provided that, in the case of payment default, the Trustee shall immediately notify
the Bondholders upon the occurrence of such payment default. The existence of a written notice required
to be given to the Bondholders hereunder shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
Philippines for two consecutive days, further indicating in the published notice that the Bondholders or
their duly authorized representatives may obtain an important notice regarding the Bonds at the principal
office of the Trustee upon presentment of sufficient and acceptable identification.
PENALTY INTEREST
In case any amount payable by the Issuer under the Bonds, whether for principal, interest, fees due to
Trustee or Registrar or otherwise, is not paid on due date, the Issuer shall, without prejudice to its
obligations to pay the said principal, interest and other amounts, pay 1% per month on all amounts due
and unpaid, in addition to the Interest Rate from the due date until actual payment.
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PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT
The Issuer covenants that upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, it shall pay to the Bondholders,
through the Paying Agent, the whole amount which shall then have become due and payable on all such
outstanding Bonds with interest at the rate borne by the Bonds on the overdue principal and with Penalty
Interest as described above, and in addition thereto, the Issuer shall pay to the Trustee such further
amounts as shall be determined by the Trustee to be sufficient to cover the cost and expenses of
collection, including reasonable compensation to the Trustee, its agents, attorneys and counsel, and any
reasonable expenses or liabilities incurred without negligence or bad faith by the Trustee.
APPLICATION OF PAYMENTS
Any money collected or delivered to the Paying Agent, and any other funds held by it, subject to any
other provision of the Trust Agreement and the Registry and Paying Agency Agreement relating to the
disposition of such money and funds, shall be applied by the Paying Agent in the order of preference as
follows:
first, to the payment to the Registrar and Paying Agent, the Trustee, of the costs, expenses, fees
and other charges of collection, including reasonable compensation to them, their agents,
attorneys and counsel, and all reasonable expenses and liabilities incurred or disbursements made
by them, without negligence or bad faith;
second, to the payment of the interest in default, in the order of the maturity of such interest with
Penalty Interest;
third, to the payment of the whole amount then due and unpaid upon the Bonds for principal, and
interest, with Penalty Interest; and
fourth, the remainder, if any shall be paid to the Issuer, its successors or assigns, or to whoever
may be lawfully entitled to receive the same, or as a court of competent jurisdiction may direct.
Except for any interest and principal payments, all disbursements of the Paying Agent in relation to the
Bonds shall require the conformity of the Trustee. The Paying Agent shall render a monthly account of
such funds under its control.
PRESCRIPTION
Claims with respect to principal and interest or other sums payable hereunder shall prescribe unless made
within ten (10) years (in the case of principal or other sums) or five (5) years (in the case of interest) from
the date on which payment becomes due.
REMEDIES
All remedies conferred by the Trust Agreement to the Trustee and the Bondholders shall be cumulative
and not exclusive and shall not be so construed as to deprive the Trustee or the Bondholders of any legal
remedy by judicial or extra judicial proceedings appropriate to enforce the conditions and covenants of
the Trust Agreement, subject to the discussion below on “Ability to File Suit”.
No delay or omission by the Trustee or the Bondholders to exercise any right or power arising from or on
account of any default hereunder shall impair any such right or power, or shall be construed to be a
waiver of any such default or an acquiescence thereto; and every power and remedy given by the Trust
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Agreement to the Trustee or the Bondholders may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be
necessary or expedient.
ABILITY TO FILE SUIT
No Bondholder shall have any right by virtue of or by availing of any provision of the Trust Agreement to
institute any suit, action or proceeding for the collection of any sum due from the Issuer hereunder on
account of the principal, interest and other charges, or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for
any other remedy hereunder, unless (i) such Bondholder previously shall have given to the Trustee written
notice of an Event of Default and of the continuance thereof and the related request for the Trustee to
convene a meeting of the Bondholders to take up matters related to their rights and interests under the
Bonds; (ii) the Majority Bondholders shall have decided and made the written request upon the Trustee to
institute such action, suit or proceeding in the latter’s name; (iii) the Trustee for 60 days after the receipt
of such notice and request shall have neglected or refused to institute any such action, suit or proceeding;
and (iv) no directions inconsistent with such written request shall have been given under a waiver of
default by the Bondholders, it being understood and intended, and being expressly covenanted by every
Bondholder with every other Bondholder and the Trustee, that no one or more Bondholders shall have
any right in any manner whatever by virtue of or by availing of any provision of the Trust Agreement to
affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of the holders of any other such Bonds or to obtain or seek to obtain
priority over or preference to any other such holder or to enforce any right under the Trust Agreement,
except in the manner herein provided and for the equal, ratable and common benefit of all the
Bondholders.
WAIVER OF DEFAULT BY THE BONDHOLDERS
The Majority Bondholders may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any
remedy available to the Trustee or exercising any trust or power conferred upon the Trustee, or the
Majority Bondholders may decide for and on behalf of the Bondholders to waive any past default, except
the events of default specified in “Events of Default” indicated above. In case of any such waiver, the
Issuer, the Trustee and the Bondholders shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder;
provided however that, no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other default or impair any right
consequent thereto. Any such waiver by the Majority Bondholders shall be conclusive and binding upon
all Bondholders and upon all future holders and owners thereof, irrespective of whether or not any
notation of such waiver is made upon the certificate representing the Bonds.
TRUSTEE; NOTICES
a) Notice to the Trustee
All documents required to be submitted to the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement and this
Prospectus and all correspondence addressed to the Trustee shall be delivered to:
To the Trustee:
Attention:
Subject:
Address:
Facsimile:

Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company
Trust Banking Group
Mr. Antonio C. Danao, Assistant Vice President
Ms. Adelina V. Hife, Manager
TDI Retail Bonds due 2015
18th Floor, GT Tower International Bldg.
Ayala Avenue cor. De las Costa St.
Makati City
858-8010
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All documents and correspondence not sent to the above-mentioned address shall be considered as
not to have been sent at all.
b) Notice to the Bondholders
The Trustee shall send all notices to Bondholders to their mailing address as set forth in the Electronic
Registry of Bondholders. Except where a specific mode of notification is provided for herein, notices
to Bondholders shall be sufficient when made in writing and transmitted in any one of the following
modes: (i) registered mail; (ii) surface mail; (iii) by one-time publication in a newspaper of general
circulation in the Philippines; or (iv) personal delivery to the address of record in the Electronic
Registry of Bondholders. The Trustee shall rely on the Electronic Registry of Bondholders in
determining the Bondholders entitled to notice. All notices shall be deemed to have been received: (i)
ten (10) days from posting if transmitted by registered mail; (ii) fifteen (15) days from mailing, if
transmitted by surface mail; (iii) on date of publication or (iv) on date of delivery, for personal
delivery (v) on date of transmission from the electronic mail server of the Trustee; and (vi) on the
date that the disclosure is uploaded on the website of the PDEx, respectively.
c) Binding and Conclusive Nature
Except as provided in the Trust Agreement, all notifications, opinions, determinations, certificates,
calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed, made or obtained by the Trustee for the
purposes of the provisions of the Trust Agreement, shall (in the absence of willful default, bad faith or
manifest error) be binding on the Issuer and all Bondholders. No liability to the Issuer, the Paying
Agent or the Bondholders shall attach to the Trustee in connection with the exercise or non-exercise
by it of its powers, duties and discretions under the Trust Agreement resulting from the Trustee’s
reliance on the foregoing.
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TRUSTEE
a) The Trustee is appointed as trustee for and on behalf of the Bondholders and accordingly shall
perform such duties and shall have such responsibilities as provided in the Trust Agreement. The
Trustee shall, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Trust Agreement, monitor the
compliance or non-compliance by the Issuer with all its representations and warranties, and the
observance by the Issuer of all its covenants and performance of all its obligations, under and
pursuant to the Trust Agreement. The Trustee shall observe due diligence in the performance of
its duties and obligations under the Trust Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, notwithstanding
any actions that the Trustee may take, the Trustee shall remain to be the party responsible to the
Bondholders, and to whom the Bondholders shall communicate with in respect to any matters that
must be taken up with the Issuer.
b) The Trustee shall have custody of and hold in its name, for and in behalf of the Bondholders, the
Master Certificate of Indebtedness for the total issuance of the Bonds.
c) The Trustee shall promptly and faithfully carry out the instructions or decisions of the Majority
Bondholders issued or reached in accordance with the Trust Agreement.
d) The Trustee shall, from time to time, request the Issuer to submit such certification of its officers,
reports of its external auditors, and other documents relating to the Issuer’s ability to comply with
its obligations under the Bonds and this Agreement, as well as to examine such records of the
Issuer as may be related to the Issuer’s obligations under the Bonds and this Agreement.
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The request shall be reasonable, made not less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the intended
date of examination and shall be in writing to the Issuer which shall include, in reasonable detail,
the purpose for such request and the intended use of the requested documents or information.
The Issuer may require the Trustee, its directors, officers, employees, representatives, agents,
partners, consultants and advisors to hold in confidence such documents and information
furnished to the Trustee pursuant to said request or to limit the use thereof for the purpose
intended as stated in the request provided such limitation shall not apply if in conflict with the
duties and responsibilities of the Trustee under any provision of this Agreement.
e) The Trustee shall inform the Bondholders of any event which has a Material Adverse Effect on
the ability of the Issuer to comply with its obligations to the Bondholders, breach of
representations and warranties, and Events of Default within a reasonable period from the time
that the Trustee learns of such events.
f) The Trustee shall, prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default or after the curing of all such
defaults which may have occurred, perform only such duties as are specifically set forth in the
Trust Agreement. In case of default, the Trustee shall exercise such rights and powers vested in it
by the Trust Agreement, and use such judgment and care under the circumstances then prevailing
that individuals of prudence, discretion and intelligence, and familiar with such matters, exercise
in the management of their own affairs.
g) The Trustee shall perform such other powers and functions as provided for in the Trust
Agreement.
h) None of the provisions contained in the Trust Agreement or Prospectus shall require or be
interpreted to require the Trustee to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur personal
financial liability in the performance of any of its duties or in the exercise of any of its rights or
powers.
RESIGNATION AND CHANGE OF TRUSTEE
a) The Trustee may at any time resign by giving ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to the Issuer
and to the Bondholders of such resignation.
b) Upon receiving such notice of resignation of the Trustee, the Issuer shall immediately appoint a
successor trustee by written instrument in duplicate, executed by its authorized officers, one (1)
copy of which instrument shall be delivered to the resigning Trustee and one (1) copy to the
successor trustee. If no successor shall have been so appointed and have accepted appointment
within thirty (30) days after the giving of such notice of resignation, the resigning Trustee may
petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor, or any
Bondholder who has been a bona fide holder for at least six months (the “bona fide Bondholder”)
may, for and on behalf of the Bondholders, petition any such court for the appointment of a
successor. Such court may thereupon after notice, if any, as it may deem proper, appoint a
successor trustee.
c) A successor trustee should possess all the qualifications required under pertinent laws, otherwise,
the incumbent trustee shall continue to act as such.
In case at any time the Trustee: (i) has or acquires conflicting interest as defined in the Trust
Agreement, and fails to comply with the procedure prescribed therein; or (ii) ceases to be eligible
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to act as such in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement and fails to resign after
written request therefor by the Issuer or by any Bona Fide Bondholder; or (iii) becomes incapable
of acting, or is adjudged as bankrupt or insolvent, or a receiver for the Trustee or of its property is
appointed, or any public officer takes charge or control of the Trustee or of its properties or
affairs for the purpose of rehabilitation, conservation or liquidation, then the Issuer may, within
thirty (30) days therefrom, remove the Trustee concerned, and appoint a successor trustee, by
written instrument in duplicate, executed by its authorized officers, one (1) copy of which
instrument shall be delivered to the Trustee so removed and one (1) copy to the successor trustee.
If the Issuer fails to remove the Trustee concerned and appoint a successor trustee, any Bona Fide
Bondholder may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the removal of the Trustee
concerned and the appointment of a successor trustee. Such court may thereupon after such
notice, if any, as it may deem proper, remove the Trustee and appoint a successor trustee.
d) The Majority Bondholders may at any time remove the Trustee for cause, and appoint a successor
trustee, by the delivery to the Trustee so removed, to the successor trustee and to the Issuer of the
required evidence supporting the Bondholders’ action in that regard taken by the Majority
Bondholders.This is without prejudice to whatever remedies may be available to the Majority
Bondholders under the Law or in equity.
e) Any resignation or removal of the Trustee and the appointment of a successor trustee pursuant to
any of the provisions the Trust Agreement shall become effective upon the earlier of: (i)
acceptance of appointment by the successor trustee as provided in the Trust Agreement; or (ii) the
effectivity of the resignation notice sent by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement (a) (the
“Resignation Effective Date”) provided, however, that after the Resignation Effective Date and,
as relevant, until such successor trustee is qualified and appointed (the “Holdover Period”), the
resigning Trustee shall discharge duties and responsibilities solely as a custodian of records for
turnover to the successor Trustee promptly upon the appointment thereof by the Issuer.
SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE
a) Any successor trustee appointed shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to the Issuer and to its
predecessor Trustee an instrument accepting such appointment, and thereupon the resignation or
removal of the predecessor Trustee shall become effective and such successor trustee, without
further act, deed or conveyance, shall become vested with all the rights, powers, trusts, duties and
obligations of its predecessor in the trusteeship with like effect as if originally named as trustee in
the Trust Agreement. The foregoing notwithstanding, on the written request of the Issuer or of
the successor trustee, the Trustee ceasing to act as such shall execute and deliver an instrument
transferring to the successor trustee, all the rights, powers and duties of the Trustee so ceasing to
act as such. Upon request of any such successor trustee, the Issuer shall execute any and all
instruments in writing as may be necessary to fully vest in and confer to such successor trustee all
such rights, powers and duties.
b) No successor trustee shall accept appointment as provided in this Section unless at the time of
acceptance, such successor trustee shall be qualified and eligible under the provisions of the Trust
Agreement and has no conflicting interest as defined in the Trust Agreement.
c) Upon acceptance of the appointment by a successor trustee, the Issuer shall notify the
Bondholders in writing of the succession of such trustee to the trusteeship. If the Issuer fails to
notify the Bondholders within 10 days after the acceptance of appointment by the trustee, the
latter shall cause the Bondholders to be notified at the expense of the Issuer.
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REPORTS TO THE BONDHOLDERS
a) The Trustee shall submit to the Bondholders on or before February 28 of each year from the
relevant Issue Date until full payment of the Bonds a brief report dated as of December 31 of the
immediately preceding year with respect to:
(i)

The property and funds, if any, physically in the possession of the Paying Agent held
in trust for the Bondholders on the date of such report; and

(ii)

Any action taken by the Trustee in the performance of its duties under the Trust
Agreement which it has not previously reported and which in its opinion materially
affects the Bonds, except action in respect of a default, notice of which has been or is
to be withheld by it.

b) The Trustee shall submit to the Bondholders a brief report within ninety (90) days from the
making of any advance for the reimbursement of which it claims or may claim a lien or charge
which is prior to that of the Bondholders on the property or funds held or collected by the Paying
Agent with respect to the character, amount and the circumstances surrounding the making of
such advance; provided that, such advance remaining unpaid amounts to at least ten percent
(10%) of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Bonds at such time.
c) The following pertinent documents may be inspected during regular business hours on any
Business Day at the principal office of the Trustee:
(i)
Trust Agreement
(ii)
Paying Agency and Registry Agreement
(iii)
Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Company
(iv)
Registration Statement of the Company with respect to the Bonds
MEETINGS OF THE BONDHOLDERS
A meeting of the Bondholders may be called at any time for the purpose of taking any actions authorized
to be taken by or on behalf of the Bondholders of any specified aggregate principal amount of Bonds
under any other provisions of the Trust Agreement or under the law and such other matters related to the
rights and interests of the Bondholders under the Bonds.
a) Notice of Meetings
The Trustee may at any time call a meeting of the Bondholders, or the holders of at least twentyfive percent (25%) of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of Bonds may direct in writing
the Trustee to call a meeting of the Bondholders, to take up any allowed action, to be held at such
time and at such place as the Trustee shall determine. Notice of every meeting of the
Bondholders, setting forth the time and the place of such meeting and the purpose of such
meeting in reasonable detail, shall be sent by the Trustee to the Issuer and to each of the
registered Bondholders not earlier than forty five (45) days nor later than fifteen (15) days prior to
the date fixed for the meeting. Each of such notices shall be published in a newspaper of general
circulation as provided in the Trust Agreement. All reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the
Trustee for the proper dissemination of the requested meeting shall be reimbursed by the Issuer
within ten (10) days from receipt of the duly supported billing statement.
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b) Failure of the Trustee to Call a Meeting
In case at any time the Issuer or the holders of at least twenty five percent (25%) of the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the Bonds shall have requested the Trustee to call a meeting of
the Bondholders by written request setting forth in reasonable detail the purpose of the meeting,
and the Trustee shall not have mailed and published, in accordance with the notice requirements,
the notice of such meeting, then the Issuer or the Bondholders in the amount above specified may
determine the time and place for such meeting and may call such meeting by mailing and
publishing notice thereof.
c) Quorum
The Trustee shall determine and record the presence of the Majority Bondholders, personally or
by proxy. The presence of the Majority Bondholders shall be necessary to constitute a quorum to
do business at any meeting of the Bondholders.
d) Procedure for Meetings
a. The Trustee shall preside at all the meetings of the Bondholders, unless the meeting shall
have been called by the Issuer or by the Bondholders, in which case the Issuer or the
Bondholders calling the meeting, as the case may be, shall in like manner move for the
election of the chairman and secretary of the meeting.
b. Any meeting of the Bondholders duly called may be adjourned for a period or periods not to
exceed in the aggregate of one (1) year from the date for which the meeting shall originally
have been called and the meeting as so adjourned may be held without further notice. Any
such adjournment may be ordered by persons representing a majority of the aggregate
principal amount of the Bonds represented at the meeting and entitled to vote, whether or not
a quorum shall be present at the meeting.
e) Voting Rights
To be entitled to vote at any meeting of the Bondholders, a person shall be a registered holder of
one (1) or more Bonds or a person appointed by an instrument in writing as proxy by any such
holder as of the date of the said meeting. Bondholders shall be entitled to one vote for every Ten
Thousand Pesos (P 10,000.00) interest. The only persons who shall be entitled to be present or to
speak at any meeting of the Bondholders shall be the persons entitled to vote at such meeting and
any representatives of the Issuer and its legal counsel.
f) Voting Requirement
All matters presented for resolution by the Bondholders in a meeting duly called for the purpose
shall be decided or approved by the affirmative vote of the Majority Bondholders present or
represented in a meeting at which there is a quorum except as otherwise provided in the Trust
Agreement (please refer to the preceding discussion on “Quorum”). Any resolution of the
Bondholders which has been duly approved with the required number of votes of the Bondholders
as herein provided in the Trust Agreement shall be binding upon all the Bondholders and the
Issuer as if the votes were unanimous.
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g) Role of the Trustee in Meetings of the Bondholders
Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Trust Agreement, the Trustee may make such
reasonable regulations as it may deem advisable for any meeting of the Bondholders, in regard to
proof of ownership of the Bonds, the appointment of proxies by registered holders of the Bonds,
the election of the chairman and the secretary, the appointment and duties of inspectors of votes,
the submission and examination of proxies, certificates and other evidence of the right to vote and
such other matters concerning the conduct of the meeting as it shall deem fit.
AMENDMENTS
The Issuer and the Trustee may, without notice to or the consent of the Bondholders or other parties,
amend or waive any provisions of the Agreements if such amendment or waiver is of a formal, minor, or
technical nature or to correct a manifest error or inconsistency provided in all cases that such amendment
or waiver does not adversely affect the interests of the Bondholders and provided further that all
Bondholders are notified of such amendment or waiver.
The Issuer and the Trustee may amend the Terms and Conditions of the Bonds without notice to every
Bondholder but with the written consent of the Majority Bondholders (including consents obtained in
connection with a tender offer or exchange offer for the Bonds). However, without the consent of each
Bondholder affected thereby, an amendment may not:
1)
2)
3)
4)

reduce the amount of Bondholder that must consent to an amendment or waiver;
reduce the rate of or extend the time for payment of interest on any Bond;
reduce the principal of or extend the Maturity Date of any Bond;
impair the right of any Bondholder to receive payment of principal of and interest on such
holder’s Bonds on or after the due dates therefore or to institute suit for the enforcement of any
payment on or with respect to such Bondholders;
5) reduce the amount payable upon the redemption or repurchase of any Bond under the Terms and
Conditions or change the time at which any Bond may be redeemed;
6) make any Bond payable in money other than that stated in the Bond;
7) subordinate the Bonds to any other obligation of the Issuer;
8) release any security interest that may have been granted in favor of the Bondholders;
9) amend or modify the Payment of Additional Amounts, Taxation, the Events of Default of the
Terms and Conditions or the Waiver of Default by the Bondholders; or
10) make any change or waiver of this Condition.
It shall not be necessary for the consent of the Bondholders under this Condition to approve the particular
form of any proposed amendment, but it shall be sufficient if such consent approves the substance thereof.
After an amendment under this Condition becomes effective, the Issuer shall send a notice briefly
describing such amendment to the Bondholders in the manner provided in the section entitled “Notices”.
EVIDENCE SUPPORTING THE ACTION OF THE BONDHOLDERS
Wherever in the Trust Agreement it is provided that the holders of a specified percentage of the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the Bonds may take any action (including the making of any demand or
requests and the giving of any notice or consent or the taking of any other action), the fact that at the time
of taking any such action the holders of such specified percentage have joined therein may be evidenced
by: (i) any instrument executed by the Bondholders in person or by the agent or proxy appointed in
writing or (ii) the duly authenticated record of voting in favor thereof at the meeting of the Bondholders
duly called and held in accordance herewith or (iii) a combination of such instrument and any such record
of meeting of the Bondholders.
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NON-RELIANCE
Each Bondholder also represents and warrants to the Trustee that it has independently and, without
reliance on the Trustee, made its own credit investigation and appraisal of the financial condition and
affairs of the Issuer on the basis of such documents and information as it has deemed appropriate and that
he has subscribed to the Issue on the basis of such independent appraisal, and each Bondholder represents
and warrants that it shall continue to make its own credit appraisal without reliance on the Trustee. The
Bondholders agree to indemnify and hold the Trustee harmless from and against any and all liabilities,
damages, penalties, judgments, suits, expenses and other costs of any kind or nature with respect to its
obligations under the Trust Agreement, except for its gross negligence or wilful misconduct.
GOVERNING LAW
The Bond Agreements are governed by and are construed in accordance with Philippine law.
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LEGAL MATTERS
All legal opinion/matters in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, which are subject to this Offer
shall be passed upon by Picazo Buyco Fider Tan and Santos, for the Joint Lead Managers and
Underwriters. Picazo Buyco Fider Tan and Santos has no direct or indirect interest in TDI. Picazo Buyco
Fider Tan and Santos may, from time to time be engaged by TDI to advise in its transactions and perform
legal services to the same basis that Picazo Buyco Fider Tan and Santos provides such services to other
clients.
TDI’S LEGAL COUNSEL
Roxas De Los Reyes Laurel & Rosario Law Office, the legal counsel for the Issuer in this Offer, is
retained as legal counsel of Tanduay Holdings Inc., the parent company of the Issuer, since 1999.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
SGV & Co., independent certified public accountants, audited the Company’s consolidated financial
statements without qualification as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 and
reviewed the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2009 and for the ninemonth periods ended September 30, 2009 and 2008. SGV & Co. has acted as the Company’s external
auditors since 1995. The Company has not had any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors for the same periods or any subsequent interim period. Furthermore,
during the past two (2) most recent fiscal years or any subsequent interim period, no independent
accountant was previously engaged as the principal accountant to audit the Company’s financial
statements and no independent accountant who was previously engaged to audit a significant subsidiary,
ceased performing services for the Company. SGV & Co. has neither shareholdings in the Company nor
any right, whether legally enforceable or not, to nominate persons or to subscribe for the securities in the
Company. SGV & Co. will not receive any direct or indirect interest in the Company or in any securities
thereof (including options, warrants or rights thereto) pursuant to or in connection with the Offer. The
foregoing is in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines set by
the Board of Accountancy and approved by the Professional Regulation Commission.
In relation to the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements, the Company’s Corporate
Governance Manual provides that the audit committee shall, among other activities (i) evaluate any
significant issues reported by the external auditors in relation to the adequacy, efficiency and
effectiveness of policies, controls, processes and activities of the Company; (ii) ensure that any of the
other non-audit work provided by the external auditors are not in conflict with their functions as external
auditors; and (iii) ensure the compliance of the Company with acceptable auditing and accounting
standards and regulations. The following table sets out the aggregate fees billed for each of the last two
years for professional services rendered by SGV & Co., excluding fees directly related to the Offer.
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2007
Audit and Audit-Related Fees (exclusive of VAT):
Fees for services that are normally provided by the
external auditor in P connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements
Tax Fees
Fees for services rendered by the external auditor
for tax accounting, compliance, advice, planning
and any other form of tax services
Total

2008

1,870,000.00

1,960,000.00

60,000.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

1,930,000.00

1,960,000.00

At the time the aforementioned services were rendered, the Audit Committee of the Company had not been
in existence.
SGV & Co. does not have any direct or indirect interest in the Company.
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CORPORATE HISTORY
TDI is one of the Philippines’ leading distilled spirits producers. The Company provides a wide range of
alcoholic products, namely: rum, brandy, gin, vodka, and wine. It’s major product is rum which is
produced from alcohol distilled from molasses (the brown, sticky fluid that is the by-product of the sugar
production process).. The Company controls over 95% of the local rum market and is the second largest
seller of rum in the world next to Bacardi of Puerto Rico.
In 1854, Don Joaquin Elizalde, his uncle Juan Bautista Yrissary and Spanish financier Joaquin Ynchausti
formed a trading partnership, which they called Ynchausti Y Cia. The partnership initially operated a
shipping firm on the north bank of the Pasig River, then largely used as the main route of Manila’s trade
and commerce.
The merger soon expanded with the creation of the Manila Steamship Company that fielded a steamboat
servicing the major islands of the archipelago. Later, Valentin Teus, a cousin of Elizalde joined the
partnership and brought in a distillery in Hagonoy, Bulacan. By the end of the 19th century, Ynchausti Y
Cia had expanded its operations to include abaca plantation in Bicol and sugar centrals in Negros.
In 1893, management of the Company passed into the hands of Don Joaquin Elizalde, along with his
brothers Tiburcio and Santiago. In 1934, the Company name was changed to Elizalde and Co., when the
Elizaldes bought out the Ynchausti’s for P5 million. By 1936, the Company became one of the country’s
biggest conglomerates with a work force of 10,000 and its business had expanded to include mining,
insurance and broadcasting.
The distillery brought into the partnership by Valentin Teus adopted the corporate name Tanduay
Distillery and was among the biggest contributors to the Elizalde Group’s coffers. The use of Tanduay as
a trademark for the Elizalde’s liquor products started in the early 20th century when the American
colonizers required the use of brand names on all alcoholic products.
On May 10, 1988, Tanduay Distillery was acquired by the Lucio Tan Group of Companies (LTGC) from
the Elizalde family through one of the group’s holding companies, Twin Ace Holdings, Inc. Under the
management of the LTGC, TDI’s facilities were modernized and expanded with the establishment of new
bottling plants in Laguna in 1991 and Negros in 1995. This resulted in a vastly expanded capacity of
100,000 cases a day from 2,000 cases a day under the previous owners.
On July 8, 1999, Asian Pacific Equity Corporation (APEC), a publicly listed company also owned and
controlled by another Lucio Tan company, acquired 100% ownership of Twin Ace via a share swap with
the Twin Ace’s existing shareholders, Tangent Holdings Corporation. On July 30, 1999, the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the change in the corporate name of Twin Ace to
Tanduay Distillers Inc. (TDI) and its authorized capital increased from P 2.0 million to P 2.0 billion at a
par value of P 1.00 per share. Similarly, APEC also changed its corporate name to Tanduay Holdings Inc.
(THI).

o C. Tan

On July 31, 2005, TDI acquired the operating assets of Cabuyao Packaging Corporation (CPC) for a total
consideration of P 204.9 million. The assets acquired included CPCs bottle-washing plant located in
Cabuyao Laguna. CPC is TDI’s major supplier of washed second hand bottles.
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In June 2005, TDI acquired a controlling stake in distillery firms Asian Alcohol Corp. (AAC) and
Absolut Chemicals, Inc. (ACI) for P 1.7 billion. AAC is the second biggest distillery in the Philippines
located in Negros Occidental while ACI is a medium-sized distillery in Batangas. Both distillers are the
principal alcohol suppliers of TDI. TDI used existing credit lines with local banks totaling P 3.0 billion to
finance the deals. TDI paid P 1.171 billion for the stake in AAC and P 562.7 million for ACI. As a result
of the deal, TDI amassed a 90% equity stake in the two companies.
In December 2006, TDI converted certain advances to AAC and ACI amounting to P 200 Million and P
185 million, respectively, into equity in the subsidiaries. This increased TDI’s ownership in AAC and
ACI to 93% and 96%, respectively. In March 2008, TDI bought additional shares in AAC amounting to P
150 million which increased TDI’s ownership from 93% to 95%.
In January 2008, TDI’s fourth plant started operations. The plant is located in El Salvador City, Misamis
Oriental in Mindanao. The plant was built at an estimated cost of P 1 Billion pesos and will directly serve
the Mindanao market.
COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
The Company believes that its principal strengths are the following:
Respected Brand Equity and Market Leader with Export Potential. TDI is a top-notch Filipino company
with a brand that is associated with quality and total customer satisfaction. Since 1854, Tanduay has been
synonymous not only with quality rum but also with liquor in general. In effect, it has garnered tremendous
name recognition and brand loyalty for its wide variety of products. To date, TDI has garnered 140
international awards including 58 gold medals from the acclaimed Monde Selection competition and other
international wine and spirit competitions since 1876. This is a testament to its world-class quality.
Rum is one of the biggest product categories in the distilled spirits industry, accounting for 28% of industry
sales. In this segment, TDI has established itself as the undisputed market leader, capturing over 95% of rum
sales and possessing a 33% market share in the local distilled spirits industry. With the volume it produces
and sells, four liters of Tanduay rum is effectively consumed every second. Numerous competing products
have entered and exited, unable to shake TDI’s dominance in its segment.
On the global stage, TDI rum is second to Bacardi of Puerto Rico in sales volume despite catering primarily
to the Philippine market. With a rich heritage and tradition of excellence behind it, Tanduay asserts itself as
the leading Philippine rum with a potential to become an internationally recognized brand. Currently, sales
of TDI are still predominantly domestic. Export sales comprise approximately 1% of total sales, mostly
coming from the Company’s distributor in Malaysia. TDI seeks to further develop this untapped market and
enhance its international presence.
Market Dominance in Visayas and Mindanao. The distilled spirits market in the Philippines has been
historically dominated by two companies - TDI and Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. (GSMI) – which have
products ranging from the rum, gin and brandy category. GSMI’s dominance in Luzon has helped it to
accumulate a market share of 46% in the distilled spirits industry while TDI is the clear market leader in
Visayas and Mindanao. Emperador Distillers, Inc. (EDI) entered the local spirits market in 2003 and has
captured 17% of the local spirits industry as of June 2009. EDI recently became a market force but only in
the brandy category and with Manila and Pampanga as major markets only. TDI’s dominance over the
Visayas and Mindanao markets gives it a stable foothold in the industry.
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Competitive Pricing in a Mass-based Market. Price competition is very tight between the major producers
of local spirits. In line with this, TDI offers products with low prices relative to its competitors. The
Company’s product prices range from P23.00 to P27.00 for a 375ml bottle and P45.00 to P55.00 for a
750ml with premium products in higher price ranges.
Price competitiveness is an important factor for TDI’s consumers, who are in the mass-based bracket
comprising over 80% of the Philippine population, (ranging from 18-55 years old and predominantly male)
and accounts for 66% of domestic liquor consumption. TDI’s pricing allows it to cater to a very large and
price-sensitive market.
Strong Shareholder Group. TDI is majority-owned by the Tan Family. Mr. Lucio Tan is considered one
of the wealthiest industrialists in the country. The Tan Family has vast interests in agribusiness, aviation,
banking, beverages, chemicals, construction, distillery, education, food, hotel, insurance, real estate
development, securities, tobacco, travel and tourism.
Synergy with the Lucio Tan Group of Companies (LTGC). As part of the LTGC, is one of the largest
conglomerates in the country, TDI enjoys a substantial financial base, bolstering its solid and stable image.
More importantly, the diversity of LTGC and the market and financial strength of companies within the
group provides the Company significant potential to harness financial support for sustainable operations.
State-of-the-art Production Facilities. TDI operates four bottling plants with a total effective capacity of
120,800 cases per day. They are strategically located to best address the market demand.
As the industry matures, major market participants compete in the area of production efficiency, identifying
ways to reduce costs while increasing yield. To address this, the Company embarked on a multi-million
peso plant expansion and modernization program. TDI’s state-of-the-art German made bottling facilities in
Laguna, Negros and Cagayan De Oro feature fully automated bottling lines. Each of these automated
bottling lines can produce 24,000 bottles an hour with a manpower complement of only 12. An older
production line would typically produce 6,000 bottles per hour and need to employ 22 workers per line. The
lines are also equipped with depalletizers, wrap-around packing machines, check-weighers and electronic
bottle quality inspectors that further reduce the need for human intervention.
The Cabuyao plant also has two automated bottle washing lines for second hand bottles with a capacity of
40,000 bottles per hour. The Negros and Cagayan De Oro Plant have bottle washing lines that are
integrated with the bottling lines.
Established Distribution Network. The Company serves more than 170,000 retail and wholesale sales
outlets throughout the Philippines through 4 exclusive distributors for its liquor products and direct sales by
the Company’s sales staff to wholesalers and retailers. These 4 distributors have been with the Company
since 1988. The Company’s distributors operate 21 sales offices and 52 warehouses located throughout the
Philippines. The Company generally contracts with third parties for transportation services, thereby
minimizing overhead expenses such as maintenance of vehicles and employment of laborers. In addition,
this enables the Company to service a large portion of its market through various distribution channels.
Efficiency of Production Process. TDI reaps the benefits of vertical integration throughout its production
process:
•

•

Supply of Raw Materials: Victoria Milling Company (VMC) is 10% owned by THI and
together with Philippine National Bank, the LTGC owns 25% of VMC. VMC is the country’s
largest sugar producer and TDI’s major supplier of molasses.
Alcohol distillation: TDI has 95% and 96% shareholdings in Asian Alcohol Corp. (AAC) and
Absolut Chemicals, Inc. (ACI), respectively. AAC is the Philippines’ second biggest distillery
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•

and it provides 70% of TDI’s ethyl alcohol requirement. ACI, on the other hand, is a mediumsized distillery in Batangas which provides 30% of TDI’s ethyl alcohol requirement.
Bottles: Asia Brewery, Inc., TDI’s major supplier for new bottles, belongs to the LTGC.

Strong Financial Position. TDI maintains a strong financial position as evident in its key performance
indicators (see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
on page 94).
Current and liquidity ratios registered consistently above acceptable levels from 2007 to 2008 as current
assets mostly consisting of receivables and inventories more than adequately covered current liabilities.
With regard to leverage, debt-to-equity ratio improved to 1.45x as of September 2009 from 1.55x in
December 2008 boosted by strong earnings.
Net sales increased from P 6,933 million for the nine months ended September 2008 to P 7,474 million in
2009 of the same period. In addition, net income increased to P419 million for the period January to
September 2009, growing by 42% from the 2008 net income of P296 million of the same period. The
increase in net income was due to the decrease in the cost of goods sold and operating expenses. TDI has
consistently posted positive earnings per share, from P 0.24 per share in 2006 to P 0.69 per share for the
said 9-month period.
BUSINESS STRATEGY
The Company’s principal strategy is to gain and increase its market share by introducing new products to
cater to the current and emerging preferences of the market and strengthen its distribution capability:


Product Portfolio. The continued success of the Company relies on its ability to produce high quality
yet affordable products. Even though many of the products are low priced as a strategy to position
itself at the lower end of the market, said products must still be high quality in the eyes of the
consumer. Low price is not an excuse for poor packaging, inconsistent quality and bad customer
service. The Company’s product excellence initiative is anchored on its Quality Program that is
centered on a dynamic and empowered workforce, customer-focus, business processes, and a working
environment of continuous Quality Improvement.
The Company plans to lessen its dependence on rum by “owning” the growing vodka market and
flavored spirits category. At the same time, it will revive consumer excitement on existing product
lines by the introduction of variants that will address the needs of the younger market.
Marketing activities will continue to be focused on enhancing existing strengths and introducing
programs that will position Tanduay’s core brands as leading names in their respective markets.
Various promotional and advertising programs geared towards the young and traditional drinkers
through music and sports will be emphasized.

•

Distribution Capacity. The distribution dominance in the Visayas and Mindanao will be preserved
through localized marketing campaigns and dealers incentive schemes. The Company will intensify
its penetration of areas with high potential for market growth through the expansion of the dealership
base and synergize with distribution channels belonging to the LTGC.

•

Facilities and Processes. To ensure customer satisfaction, the Company’s strategy has been to work
under “world class standards” using “world class” equipment. Over the recent two years, the
production sites have undergone extensive modernization with the installation of the very best of
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packaging equipment from Europe. The efficiency of these plants will be ensured through an effective
preventive maintenance program.
•

People Empowerment. Quarterly strategic program reviews will continue to be part of Tanduay’s
regular activities since this is an excellent forum for gathering together department head and key plant
personnel to participate in focused discussions on structured environmental and market scans,
developmental goal accomplishment, and issues affecting performance. Skills and behavioral training
will progress to the more advanced levels.

•

Supply of Molasses. The Company will continue to strengthen its alcohol supplier base as a
countermeasure against the volatility of the price of molasses. Adequacy of storage facilities will be
continually assessed to ensure enough buffer stock of molasses and alcohol at all times. The ongoing
study on alternative base material will be pursued towards implementation.

•

Distillation Capacity. AAC is currently embarking on an expansion program that will modernize and
increase its distilling capacity by an additional 100,000 liters per day. The project is 60% complete as
on September 2009.

•

Corporate Image. The Tanduay image will be transformed from that of a rum company to a “House
of Tanduay” with a wide range of products across all liquor categories. Its environment-friendly
operations using world class facilities will be emphasized through a strong corporate campaign.

SUBSIDIARIES
Asian Alcohol Corporation (AAC)
AAC is the second largest distillery located in the Philippines, with a ten-hectare plant located in Negros
Occidental, the center of the country’s sugar industry. AAC has a distillation process that uses molasses,
yeast, water and other ingredients. It has a ten-hectare plant in Negros which is the center of the country’s
sugar industry. Plant facilities include a modern wastewater treatment plant which converts distillery waste
into biogas energy for its power requirements. The Plant has a daily rated capacity of 210,000 liters of fine
quality ethyl alcohol. AAC sells 100% of its output to Tanduay Distillers, Inc. (TDI), and accounts for 70%
of TDI’s ethyl alcohol requirements. AAC also has a methane gas capture system that enables it to use the
methane generated from distillation as power to fire up its boilers. It is currently embarking on an expansion
program that will modernize and increase its distilling capacity by an additional 100,000 liters per day of
extra neutral alcohol for high premium liquor products.
Absolut Chemicals, Inc. (ACI)
ACI has a daily rated capacity of 75,000 liters of fine ethyl alcohol located in a nine-hectare distilling plant
in Lian, Batangas. The plant site also houses a water treatment facility, which converts distillery wastes into
environment-friendly form. ACI also sells all of its output to Tanduay Distillers, Inc. (TDI). This output
comprises 30% of TDI’s ethyl alcohol requirements. ACI is upgrading its distillation plant to enable it
increase its production of extra neutral alcohol.
ACI, in a joint undertaking with Mitsubishi Corporation of Japan, installed a high-rate thermophilic
anaerobic digester and lagoon system that will capture methane from the distillation process and use it for
the plant’s power requirements. This will enable ACI to reduce its power cost by an estimate of 50% of
current consumption levels. The project with Mitsubishi is being undertaken under the Clean Development
Mechanism (CDM) Project of the 1997 Kyoto Protocol – a United Nations sponsored program that aims to
reduce the emissions into the atmosphere of harmful gases like methane. These emissions are the primary
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cause of global warming. Under the Protocol, developed countries are mandated to reduce their carbon
emission levels by 2012. As an alternative compliance mechanism, developed countries may invest in CDM
projects in developing countries like the Philippines. Mitsubishi provided the funding for the project in
exchange for the certified emission reduction (CER) credits to be generated from the project. The CERs are
the alternative compliance mechanisms under the Kyoto Protocol.
The foregoing subsidiaries have not entered into any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings.
MARKETS
Target Market
The Company’s principal customers are individuals in the lower income brackets (comprising over 80%
of the Philippine population), approximately 18-50 years old and predominantly male. They are primarily
located in Visayas and Mindanao, and they have a strong preference for spirits (especially rum) over other
alcoholic drinks. The Company’s target market drinks primarily to celebrate special occasions, to enjoy
the company of friends and family, and to unwind after a hard day’s work.

Market Profile
The local distilled spirits market is estimated at 60 million 9-liter cases annually. Tanduay has an
estimated market share of approximately 33% of the local distilled spirits market, and in the local rum
market, Tanduay controls over 95% of the market for rum. Gin and brandy account for most of the liquor
sales in Luzon, while rum accounts for most of the sales in Visayas and Mindanao.
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Sales History
In the last five years, the Company has averaged an annual sales volume of around 15 million 9-liter cases
or P 9.0 billion in 2008 (with an average selling price per case of P527). TDI’s sales are predominantly
generated in the local market, with exports accounting for only 1% of total sales. Within the local market,
around 85% of TDI sales come from the Southern Philippines. Annual peso sales amounted to P9.0
billion in 2008 or an average selling price per case of around P527.

From 2004 to 2008, TDI’s sales have been predominantly generated in the local market, with exports
accounting for less than 1% on the average. Within the local market, around 85% of 2004-2008 sales have
come from the Southern Philippines. The pie chart below illustrates this.
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The Company posted double digit growth rates in sales of 13% and 14% for the last two years compared
to the historical average of 5%. The uptick in sales in the last two years can be attributed, on a macroeconomic level, to the favorable economic performance of the Philippine economy, as shown by the Real
GDP growth of 4.6% and 7.2% in 2007 and 2008, respectively. The table below us shows that TDI’s
Sales have outperformed the country’s real GDP. TDI has an average sales volume growth of 5.2% from
1988 to 2008, well above the 4.0% average growth of real GDP.

Year
1988
1989
1900
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008

Sales Volume
(in millions of cases)
6.99
7.48
9.19
8.65
6.8
7.74
8.35
8.24
9.94
11.14
12.7
13.89
15.16
14.29
14.01
14.35
15.59
14.42
13.5
15.25
17.35

Sales Volume Growth
Rate
7.0%
22.9%
-5.9%
-21.4%
13.8%
7.9%
-1.3%
20.6%
12.1%
14.0%
9.4%
9.1%
-5.7%
-2.0%
2.4%
8.6%
-7.5%
-6.4%
13.0%
13.8%

Average growth rate

5.2%

Real GDP
(in millions PHP, constant
1990 prices)*
984,400
1,045,485
1,077,237
1,071,006
1,074,622
1,097,365
1,145,513
1,199,108
1,269,206
1,335,019
1,327,320
1,372,401
1,454,312
1,479,845
1,545,691
1,621,889
1,725,359
1,810,793
1,908,580
2,045,748
2,140,584

Real GDP Growth
6.2%
3.0%
-0.6%
0.3%
2.1%
4.4%
4.7%
5.8%
5.2%
-0.6%
3.4%
6.0%
1.8%
4.4%
4.9%
6.4%
5.0%
5.4%
7.2%
4.6%
4.0%

*Source: Statistical Databases of the United Nations Statistics Division

The pie chart below illustrates a breakdown of TDI’s average sales in the past five years in terms of liquor
category. Rum, the Company’s primary product, accounts for 93% of the total sales volume. The top
selling brand is the Five Years Brand, which accounts for 79% of total sales. The Company’s brandy,
gin, vodka, and wine/others product lines account for a very small percentage of its total sales.
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PRODUCTS AND BRANDS
The Company’s major product is rum. It is produced from alcohol distilled from molasses, the brown,
sticky fluid that is the by-product of the sugar production process.
As part of its strategic plan to transform from being a rum company into a major alcoholic drinks
company, the Company recently launched two new major products outside the rum category, namely
Cossack Vodka and the Embassy Whiskey. TDI also launched a re-invented Barcelona Brandy. Within
the rum category, it launched two new premium brands, namely the Primiero 8 Year Old Rum and the
1854 15 Year Old Rum, to enable it to capture all price levels of the rum category.
In 2006, the Company hired a foreign consultant with a 30-year experience with a multinational drinks
company who will spearhead the Company’s research and development efforts and to implement best
practices in all areas of operations under the Quality Program.
With the exception of additional promotional expenses which are within budget, the Company does not
need to allocate a significant amount of funds for the development and marketing of these new products.
Primary Rum Products
The Company’s primary rum products consist of the following:
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Tanduay Five Years Fine Dark Rhum
80 proof - 250ml, 375ml, 750ml
This rhum reflects the hallmark of Tanduay’s rich
and lively heritage. The ageing process of this extra
special blend is extended for five long years. As a
result, the aged rhum reveals a lush shade of
mahogany and a lasting aroma of sweet nutty
smoked flavor.
The brand accounts for 79% of TDIs total sales
volume.

Tanduay Rhum 65 Fine Dark Rhum
65 proof - 375ml, 750ml
Exuding a well-rounded character with a smooth
mellow finish, this exciting dark rhum exhibits a
grand array of flavors that is full-bodied yet with an
edge of sweetness on the tail.

Tanduay E.S.Q. Fine Dark Rhum
65 proof - 375ml, 750ml
This extra smooth rhum is expertly blended to
obtain a more robust, pronounced flavor, with just
the right amount of sweetness and aroma.

65

Description of Business

Tanduay White Premium Rhum
72 proof - 375ml, 750ml
Exquisitely blended and flawlessly light, this
special rhum is meticulously filtered resulting in a
sparkling clear spirit with a subtle sweet and spicy
tang, enhancing any drink it is mixed with.

Tanduay Philippine Rhum
In mini oak wood barrels
80 proof - 1.5 liters, 3.0 liters
This 18-year-old rhum is poured and sealed in an
authentic mini oak wood barrel that preserves the
exclusive and exquisite blend of the best Philippine
sugarcane varieties.

Tanduay Primiero Ron 8 Anos
80 proof - 700ml
The Premium Rum. From Tanduay's rare collection
of aged spirits reserved for premium brands,
Tanduay's master blender developed Tanduay
Primiero Ron Ocho Años, a rich blend of varying
vintages as long as eight years, exuding a smooth
flavor and a nutty smoky aroma without much
woody notes.
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Tanduay Superior Dark Rhum
80 proof - 750ml
This is considered the “Cognac” of rhum. Aged in
oak wood barrels for twelve years, this superb
rhum boasts of a compelling flavor with a hint of
smokiness and a long well rounded finish.

Tanduay Rum 1854
80 proof - 700ml
Tanduay's rich 150 year history in distilling and
blending fine rums is captured in Tanduay Rum
1854, specially prepared in celebration of
Tanduay's 150th year anniversary. It comes from
Tanduay's collection of reserved aged rum,
masterfully blended to acquire an aura of festivity
and flavor.

Tanduay Centennial Dark Rhum
80 proof - 1 liter
Exclusive to the Philippine Centennial celebration,
this distinctive rhum was produced from 100
carefully selected barrels aged to perfect the
bouquet and aroma of a 20-year-old rhum.
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Other Products
Barcelona Brandy
In 2001, Tanduay entered the fast growing local
brandy market by introducing its first brandy
product, Barcelona. It also went into a joint venture
with Allied Domecq for the production of premium
brandy products, Don Pedro and Guerrero Brandy.
The said joint venture was terminated in 2004 with
Tanduay retaining the rights to the Guerrero brand.

London Gin and Gin Kapitan
In the gin category, Tanduay produces London Gin
and Gin Kapitan to address the preferences of local
drinkers for strong alcoholic drinks, particularly in
Northern Philippines.

Cossack Vodka
The Pure Spirit. This vodka is treated through
carbon and force-filtered in the true Russian
tradition to produce a premium, high quality vodka
that captures the spirit of Russian brands. In 2009,
a 65 proof vodka was introduced, Cossack Blue, to
address the growing preference by young drinkers
for smooth and easy to drink liquor.
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Vino Agila and Vino Blanco
In the wine category, Tanduay has a Chinese
medicinal wine called Vino Agila and a table wine
named Vino Blanco, a favorite cooking and baking
ingredient.

Embassy Whiskey
A smooth, mellow mix of imported malt whiskey
and fine spirits that has been skillfully and
meticulously blended together to achieve the
character and rich depth of flavour associated with
whiskies aged in oak barrels.

PRODUCTION
Tanduay operates four (4) liquor-bottling plants with a total capacity of about 120,800 cases per day. It
also operates two (2) distillation plants. The Company’s head office and main plant are both located in
San Miguel District, Manila, in a street formerly known as Calle de Tanduay, now J. Nepomuceno. The
main plant is bounded by Malacañang in the east, Ayala Bridge in the southwest and San Sebastian
Church in the northwest. The other plants are in Laguna, Negros Occidental and Misamis Oriental.
The bottling plants have the following common facilities:
1. Bottling Lines. Each line consists of a conveyor system that moves glass bottles through
cleaning, drying, filling, labeling and capping machines and on to the packaging in cases. Each
separate process of the bottling line has an inspector who checks the quality of the product/bottle
as it passes through. The Cabuyao, Murcia and Cagayan De Oro Plants have fully automated
bottling machines that are four times faster than conventional machines.
2. Liquor Aging Facilities. Alcohol is diluted with demineralized water and aged in oak barrels for
a number of years. The Company has ageing facilities with a total capacity of approximately 40
million gauge liters or approximately 200,000 barrels.
3. Storage Tanks. The plant also includes storage tanks for demineralized water and alcohol.
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4. Other Facilities. These include warehouses for empty bottles and finished products, a testing
laboratory, and administration offices and employees canteen. Electricity is provided by the local
utility, but the plant is equipped with power generating facilities capable of sustaining operation
in case of power outages.
Rum Production Process
The four main ingredients of rum are distilled alcohol, demineralized water, sugar and flavoring
agents/essences.
1. Ageing. Alcohol distilled from sugar cane molasses is diluted with demineralized water and aged
in oak barrels for 2 years or longer depending on the intended strength and quality of the rum.
Ageing smoothens the taste of rum and adds the distinctive brown color and flavor to the drink.
2. Compounding. The rum to be used for production is a blend of demineralized water, sugar,
essences and aged distilled alcohol of different vintages until it reaches the desired product
quality and alcohol content. The mixture is then filtered and stored in compounding tanks that are
connected to the bottling line via pipes through which the blended liquor is pumped.
3. Bottling. Empty bottles are fed into the lines by automatic depalletizers. Then, the bottles go
through an automated bottle washing process, which uses a high combination of steam and
detergents to wash bottles. The clean bottles pass through visual bottle inspection to further check
for cleanliness or for defects. Fully automated lines are further equipped with electronic sensors
that detect any foreign matter / irregularity in the bottle.
The clean bottles then pass through a machine that fills the bottles with rum. The contents are
manually and electronically inspected to ensure that no foreign particles are in the product. A
capping machine installs the crown or cap and seals the bottle and a labeling machine attaches the
labels.
4. The bottles are then automatically placed into cardboard cases by wrap-around machines and
forwarded by forklifts to the plant warehouse for shipment.
Principal raw materials in the rum production process are the following:
1. Alcohol: The most important raw material in rum is the distilled alcohol. The Company obtains
most of its distilled alcohol from its two subsidiaries - Asian Alcohol Corp. in Negros Occidental
and Absolut Chemicals, Inc. in Batangas. Alcohol is delivered directly to the plant by tanker. The
quality of the alcohol is checked prior to acceptance. Alcohol accounts for 35% of product cost.
Specific tax on alcohol is presently P 13.59 per proof liter and accounts for 20% of the total cost.
The tax is generally included as part of the cost charged by the alcohol supplier.
2. Sugar: Victorias Milling Co., Inc. is the primary supplier of the Company’s refined sugar
requirements.
3. Water: The plants use significant amounts of water for blending liquor products and cleaning
bottles. The water is supplied by the local utility. Each of the plants has its own water storage and
demineralization facilities at the plant site.
4. Flavoring Agents: Essences and other flavoring agents are used in the production of rum.
International Flavors supplies 75% of the Company’s requirements.
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5. Bottles: The Company’s liquor products are bottled in glass bottles, which are manufactured by
its affiliate, Asia Brewery. Glass bottles account for 25% of cost of goods sold for the Company’s
products. The cost is managed in part by recycling the bottles.
The Company maintains a network of secondhand bottle dealers across the nation that retrieves
the bottles from the market and sells them back to the Company. The cost of reprocessing the
bottles is 50% lower than the cost of purchasing new bottles.
6. Caps: All products are sealed with tamper-proof resealable aluminum caps which average 3%
of the total product cost. The main supplier of caps is Lapu-Lapu Packaging Corporation. The
aluminum closure sheets being used by the main supplier in the manufacture of caps is being
imported from Italy.
7. Labels: A major supplier of the labels used by the Company is Parity Packaging Corporation
which uses imported base coated paper as its main raw material. Label cost accounts for 1% of
product cost.
8. Processing cost: Labor cost and overhead average at P55 per case and represent 12% of product
cost. The components of manufacturing overhead are as follows :
Fuel and Lubricants
Depreciation
Personnel Costs
Breakages and Spoilages Repairs and Maintenance Freight and Handling
Miscellaneous
-

33%
15%
15%
8%
7%
5%
17%

Distillation Process
The primary base material used for the manufacture of alcohol used in the production of most local liquor
products is molasses which is a by–product of the sugar milling process. The Company sources its
molasses from sugar millers and sugar traders located in the Negros Islands. The Company’s parent
company, THI, owns 10% of the largest sugar miller in the country, Victorias Milling Co. With
Philippine National Bank, the Lucio Tan Group of Companies owns 25% of Victorias.
The manufacture of alcohol from molasses involves two general steps; namely, fermentation and
distillation. Fermentation is the biochemical process of the conversion of invert sugar (C6H12O6) into
ethanol (C2H5OH) through the action of enzymes from yeasts. Distillation is the physical separation of
alcohol from the lesser wanted constituents through their boiling point difference. The successive steps of
the distillation process are outlined below:
1. Wort Preparation. Cane molasses from the storage tank is pumped for batching to the automatic
batch weigher, preset at a desired weight. The weighed molasses is then diluted with water using
an automatic blending system which discharges the blended molasses (wort) at the desired sugar
concentration (brix).
2. Fermentation. Wort coming from the blender is pumped to the fermenter and mixed with the
acid-treated yeast cream separated from the previously fermented batches. Heat is generated
(exothermic) during the conversion of invert sugar into alcohol and carbon dioxide (CO2) so that
the fermented liquor (beer) is cooled using external cooling through plate heat exchanger (PHE)
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in order to maintain the optimum temperature. Fermentation is normally completed after 14 hours
and the beer is ready for separation.
3. Yeast Separation and Treatment. Yeast is separated in the form of cream using a centrifugal
separator then collected and treated with acid in a pre-fermenter tank where it is continuously
stirred for a few hours. Nutrients for yeast, like urea, are also added at this stage.
4. Distillation. The clarified beer (raw beer after passing the separator) is first preheated using the
hot distillery wastes (slops). The pre-heated beer is fed to the top of the beer/stripping column
evaporating the alcohol and producing an alcohol–rich alcohol-water vapor mixture.
The vapor is condensed and fed to the aldehyde column where the “low-boilers” are extracted and
condensed; after which the “low-boilers” is fed to the concentrating column where it is further
concentrated and finally extracted as by-product.
The bottom stream of aldehyde column on the other hand is introduced to the “feed-tray” of the
rectifying column where it is further concentrated and the final product of alcohol is produced.
Alcohol quality is enhanced by purging the rectifying column with aldehydes, fusel oils and
unwanted alcohols.
Heat requirements of the distillation process are supplied to the columns in the form of saturated
steam through heat exchangers (reboilers).
The distillation equipment comprises six (6) sets of columns. The first five (5) sets operate on the
principle as described previously while the 6th column operates on the following sequence of
operation:
The clarified beer (raw beer after passing the separator) is preheated using the hot distillery
wastes (slops). The preheated beer is fed to the top of the stripping column evaporating the more
volatile alcohol and producing an alcohol-rich alcohol-water vapor mixture.
The vapor coming from the stripping column goes to the rectifying column after passing through
a cyclone separator. A portion of the liquid is pumped to a decanter for the removal of fusel oil
and other high boiling point impurities and the balance recycled back to the stripping column. A
small portion of the condensate from the final condenser is fed to the aldehyde column in order to
reduce the low boilers present in the system.
Wastewater Treatment Process
As part of the Company’s corporate responsibility initiatives and to comply with governmental
regulations, distillery wastewaters (slops) undergo a treatment process to minimize adverse effects on the
environment. The successive steps of this process are outlined below:
1. Yeast Separation. The solids, mostly yeast, are separated using centrifugal separators. This
significantly lowers the biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) load of the slops.
2. Slops Cooling. Hot slops coming from the beer/stripping column is cooled by using it to pre-heat
the clarified beer as it is fed to the beer/stripping column.
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3. Equalization. Cooled slops is pumped to the equalization tank and allowed to stay for a few
hours in order for the properties of the wastes, like pH and temperature, to stabilize before being
pumped to the methane reactors (MR).
4. Anaerobic Bio-Digestion. From the equalization tank, the slops is fed to the MR where it is biodigested by the anaerobic bacteria producing methane (CH4) and carbon dioxide (CO2) gas
(biogas) in the process.
The biogas passes through a carbon dioxide and hydrogen sulfide scrubbers in series, in order to
reduce the carbon dioxide and hydrogen sulfide, respectively, present in the biogas. A blower
conveys the scrubbed biogas to the boiler where it is fired as fuel. One normal cubic meter of
biogas has a heating value of 5,400 kcal, equivalent to approximately 1.5 kg wood or 0.6 liter
bunker fuel. In cases when biogas cannot be fired to the boiler, an emergency flare is on stand-by
to burn the biogas.
5. Primary Settling. The effluent coming from the MR flows to the primary settling tank for the
removal of settleable solids. Settled sludge is pumped out of the tank and dewatered using a
decanter.
6. Aerobic Treatment. The effluent from the primary settling is further biodigested aerobically with
oxygen requirements supplied by atmospheric air and augmented with the use of surface aerators.
7. Final Settling. Settleable solids are further removed through quiescent settling.
8.

Treated Waste Disposal. Treated wastewater is discharged intermittently to the Guimaras Strait
using a submarine outfall. Pumping out of treated wastewater is done only during high tides going
low tides in order to eliminate the possibility of the effluent being washed back to the shoreline.

DISTRIBUTION
The Company serves close to 170,000 retail and wholesale sales outlets throughout the Philippines
through four (4) marketing companies that act as major distributors in their assigned areas.

Wholesalers
Marketing
Companies

TANDUAY

Retailers
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The marketing companies are assigned the exclusive right to distribute the products in specifically agreed
upon territories as follows:

Marketing company A

(1)
(2)
(3)
(1)
(2)
(1)
(1)

Marketing company B
Marketing company C
Marketing company D

Territories
National Capital Region
Southern Tagalog Region
Central Luzon Region
Northern Luzon Region
Bicol Region
Visayas Region
Mindanao Region

The marketing companies, in turn, have branches in key cities and municipalities that sell directly to
wholesalers and also directly to retailers in their assigned territories. Direct sales to retailers like sari-sari
stores are also being done in areas where large wholesalers are not present. Each branch has a sales fleet
of salesmen and vehicles. Each branch also has one or more warehouses to ensure that there are always
goods available.
The Company has existing arrangements with international distributors for the distribution of its products
in other countries such as China, Hongkong, Malaysia, Thailand, Saipan, USA, and Canada.
PRICING STRUCTURE
Tanduay defines the pricing for the product to be sold by the marketing companies to their wholesalers
and retailers. The pricing includes a certain mark-up or commission that covers freight cost, salesmen
commissions and reasonable profit. TDI also provides logistical support like advertising and delivery
vehicles.
ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONS
Tanduay makes extensive use of radio, TV and print advertisements to promote the Company and its
products. The Company also utilizes local sales promotional activities and civic projects to enhance the
public’s awareness of the Company’s products. These activities include bottle cap redemption
promotions, second hand bottle collection drives and fiestas and sporting events. The Company is one of
the largest advertisers in the Philippines. Advertising expenses average P 300 million a year.
MANPOWER RESOURCES
Total number of employees and number of full time employees as of September 30, 2009:

Regular monthly
Regular daily
Contractual
Total

TDI

AAC

ACI.

TOTAL

263
265
1,083
1,611

60
37
97

33
30
172
235

356
332
1255
1943

The Regular Daily Employees of TDI-Quiapo plant (193 employees) have a labor union affiliated with
Associated Democratic Labor Union (ADLU) and are under a collective bargaining agreement (CBA),
which was renewed for another 3 years on March 04, 2008. There were no strikes or labor disputes in the
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past three (3) CBA’s. Daily employees of Cabuyao (57 employees) have also formed a labor union
affiliated with the Filipinong Samahang Manggagawa. The CBA was signed in October 2008, which took
effect in August 2008 and will remain binding upon the Company up to 2011.
The CBA of AAC for its regular monthly and daily employees expired on December 20, 2005. A new
CBA, which is good for five years, was signed on May 3, 2006. There has been no strike since AAC was
incorporated in 1973. AAC had a retrenchment program in September and October 2009 as a result of the
temporary shut down of its operations. The CBA of ACI for its regular daily employees will expire on
April 30, 2010. The last strike took place on June 4, 1998.
In June 2009, Asian Alcohol temporarily stopped its operations in view of the complaints filed by local
residents on the pollution allegedly being caused by the operations of the Plant. Further, the water line to the
Plant was allegedly damaged during a road improvement project of the municipality. In view of the
possibility that the stoppage of operations may be prolonged, AAC offered an early retirement program to
its daily employees of which 132 employees have availed as of September 30, 2009. (see “Certain Legal
Proceedings” on page 82)
The Group has existing labor supply contracts with seven (7) manpower agencies and one (1) labor
cooperative covering its four plants.
TDI and ACI expect to maintain its average number of employees in the next twelve months while AAC
expects to hire new employees when it resumes normal operations.
There are no supplemental benefits or incentive arrangements that the Group has or will have with its
employees. There have been no strikes or major labor disputes with the existing labor unions for the past ten
(10) years.
OTHER MATTERS
Names of principal suppliers
Tanduay Distillers, Inc.
ALCOHOL
1. Asian Alcohol Corporation
2. Absolut Chemicals, Incorporated

BOTTLES
1. Asia Brewery, Inc.
2. JJPS General Merchandising

LABELS
1. Parity Packaging Corp.
2. Able Printing Co., Inc.

CARTONS
1. Package World Inc.
2. Megapack Container Corp.
3. Dowell Container & Packaging Corp.

CAPS
1. Lapu-Lapu Packaging Corporation
2. Nice Products Company

ESSENCES
1. International Flavors & Fragrances
2. Matrix Flavor And Essence Center

Asian Alcohol Corp. and Absolut Chemicals, Inc.
Molasses
1. Victorias Milling Company, Inc.
2. Binalbagan-Isabela Sugar Co., Inc.

Fuel
1. Petron Corporation
2. Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corp.
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3. Tate & Lyle
4. Lopez Sugar Corporation

3. Nexus Petroleum
4. Nieves Leonor Coal Mining Corp.
5. SMV S.S. Coal Mining Developer

There are no long-term purchase commitments as purchases are made through purchase orders on a per
need basis from a list of accredited suppliers.
Dependence on one or two major customers
TDI has a large network of wholesale customers all over the Philippines through its four (4) major
distributors. The Company has been dealing with the distributors for 20 years and there had no major
problems ecountered with them. Besides, the distributors have a wide network covering around 170,000
wholesale and retail outlets and are not dependent on a few customers only. AAC and ACI sell majority of
its alcohol to TDI. AAC sells its entire production output to TDI. Although the Company buys most of its
alcohol from AAC and ACI, it has a network of secondary suppliers locally and abroad which it can tap in
case of supply problems from AAC and ACI.
Transactions with and/or dependence on related parties
Please refer to Certain Relationships and Related Transactions for the significant transactions with related
parties.
Patents, trademarks, licenses, franchises, concessions, royalty agreements or labor contracts
All product names, devices and logo being used by the Company are registered with or are covered by
pending Applications for Registration with the Intellectual Property Office.
The Company and its subsidiaries also have Environmental Compliance Certificates issued by the DENR
and a license to operate from the Bureau of Foods and Drug. All products currently being produced are
registered with the Bureau of Food and Drug and the BIR.
All of the following brand names are registered with the Intellectual Property Office and are valid up to five
years from the date of registration.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.

Tanduay 5 yrs
Tanduay Rhum Dark
Tanduay Rhum ESQ
Tanduay Rhum 65
Tanduay White Premium Rhum
Premium Dry London Gin Barcelona Brandy
Cossack Vodka
Armada Brandy De Jerez
Gin Kapitan
Ban De Vendange Red Wine
Chardon Blanc White Wine
Cuvee De La Californie White Wine

The Group has an existing agreement with London Birmingham Distillers, Ltd. London, England for the
use of the Barcelona and London Gin brands.
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Need for any government approval of principal products
The approval of the Bureau of Food and Drugs is required before the Company can advertise or promote a
new product. In addition, all new products must be registered with the BIR prior to production.
Effect of existing or probable governmental regulations on the business
Increase in value-added and excise taxes will affect manufacturing costs, which may require an increase in
selling prices. Higher selling prices can lower volume of sales.
The foreign alcohol market, coupled with new technologies on alcohol production and lower tariffs, can
make the price of imported alcohol cheaper than those produced locally.
With the comprehensive review of the Clean Water Act Law through its IRR, the government had
recognized and exempted distilleries with liquid fertilization program from the mandatory discharge fees.
Research and development activities
The Company incurred the following in relation to its research and development activities:
=
Amount in P
2006
2007
2008

% to Net Sales

5,270,178
5,583,946
10,882,822

0.08
0.08
0.12

Costs and effects of compliance with environmental laws
The Group has wastewater treatment facilities in all its plants. In order to maintain said facilities, additional
costs for labor, chemicals, and power supply are being charged to overhead expenses. The plants have a
permit to operate from the DENR.
Last November 27, 2007, TDI, ACI and Japan’s Mitsubishi Corp. signed a Clean Development
Mechanism (CDM) Project Agreement. Under this agreement, Mitsubishi Corp. completed the
construction of a “high-rate” thermophilic anaerobic digestor and covered lagoon to capture methane gas
from the wastewater generated at ACI’s plant in Lian, Batangas. The project is being undertaken under
the Kyoto-Protocol – a United Nations–sponsored program that aims to reduce the emission of
greenhouse gases to the atmosphere.
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ALCOHOL AGEING FACILITIES
The Company has alcohol ageing facilities in all of its four (4) plants including Asian Alcohol which is
located in Pulupandan, Negros Occidental. The Company’s ageing facilities have a capacity of
approximately 40 million gauge liters or approximately 200,000 barrels.
BOTTLING FACILITIES
Details of the Company’s Liquor-bottling plants are shown below:

Location
Manila

Area per
square
meters
26,587

No. of
lines
8

Capacity/day
24,000 cases

75,223

8

49,200 cases

Laguna

Address
J. Nepomuceno St., San Miguel
District
Brgy. Sala, Cabuyao, Laguna

Negros

Murcia, Negros Occidental

29,583

5

31,600 cases

Cagayan De Oro

El Salvador , Misamis Oriental

100,000

1

16,000 cases

The lots owned by TDI are located in the following areas:

Location
Quiapo, Manila
Lanang, Davao
Talisay, Negros

Area
(square meters)
Usage
26,587 Plant
3,000 Being leased out
3,813 For bottle sorting

2007 Valuation
Land
Improvements
P 744,439,000
P 117,283,000
27,000,000
4,878,000
1,642,000

TDI does not own the lots of its Cabuyao and Bacolod Plants and its warehouses. All equipment however
is owned by TDI.
The following are the leased properties of TDI:
Location
Cabuyao
Cabuyao
Cabuyao
Quiapo
Paco
Paco
Paco
Sucat
Murcia, Negros
Bacolod
Bacolod

Nature
Plant
Plant
Plant
Gym
Warehouse
Warehouse
Warehouse
Warehouse
Plant
Warehouse
Warehouse

Amount per month
=
P 172,931.00
53,735.00
600,787.00
66,550.00
829,555.00
687,374.00
435,699.00
420,482.00
300,000.00
231,700.00
429,225.00
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Expiry*
12/31/2009
12/31/2009
12/31/2009
12/31/2009
02/28/2014
12/31/2009
12/31/2009
12/31/2009
09/30/2010
02/28/2010
02/01/2009
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Cabuyao
Cabuyao
Cagayan de Oro

Washing
Washing
Plant

279,670.00
594,293.00
72,600.00

12/31/2009
12/31/2009
12/31/2009

The leases are subject to automatic renewal options every year except for the Paco warehouse, which is
renewable every 15 years.
TDI also has a lease agreement with Flor de Cana Corporation for the use of an alcohol tanker which is
used, to ship alcohol from Pulupandan to Manila, renewable yearly at a rate of approximately P70,000.00 a
day.
The Company’s plants and equipment are located as follows:
Location
Quiapo plant
Cabuyao plant
Bacolod plant
Cagayan de Oro

Condition
In good condition
In good condition
In good condition
In good condition

There are no mortgages or liens or other encumbrance over the properties and there are no limitations as to
its ownership and usage. TDI has a negative pledge on its assets in connection with its P
= 4.2 billion
syndicated loan with local banks.
There are no expected major acquisitions for 2010 as the various machineries and equipment for the
Cagayan de Oro Plant and the AAC expansion project have already been acquired.
DISTILLATION PLANTS
Asian Alcohol Corporation
AAC has its distillery plant at Pulupandan, Negros Occidental and owns the buildings, machinery and
equipment and other structures in it. AAC has alcohol and molasses storage facilities at Pulupandan, Cebu
and North Harbor, Manila. Land owned by AAC are located in Pulupandan and Cebu. The Plant and
equipment located in Negros plant and the storage facilities are all in good condition. Certain assets of
AAC are mortgaged to secure its standby credit line with Allied Banking Corp.
In 2008, AAC started construction of additional columns to expand its capacity by an additional of 100,000
liters per day. As of Sept. 2009, construction cost on the project has reached P400 million and is 60%
complete. Construction will continue in 2010 in order to produce extra neutral potable alcohol. Funds for
the project were provided mainly by the P1.0 billion credit facility with Allied Bank.
Absolut Chemicals, Inc.
ACI, on the other hand, owns a distillery plant in Lian, Batangas. All transportation equipment owned by
ACI is in good condition. There are no mortgages or liens or encumbrances over the properties and there
are no limitations as to its ownership and usage.

79

Description of Properties

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FACILITIES
Bottle Recycling
A major component of the Company’s environmental friendly operations is the retrieval of second hand
bottles and reusing these in its production process. The cost of a second hand bottle, including washing
costs, is 50% of the cost of a brand new bottle. Apart from its helping minimize organic wastes, the
Company also benefits from the reduced cost of bottling. A bottle can be reused at an average of 3 to 4
times.
The Company relies on a nationwide network of junk shops all over the country. The buying of bottles
also helps in the attractiveness of the products to the consumers as they can cash in on the bottles after
consuming the contents.
The Company has invested in automated bottle washing facilities in all its bottling plants.
Bottling Plants
A major investment in all bottling plants is wastewater treatment facilities that screen, collect and
neutralize all wastes from the bottling process before these are discharged. The wastes generally come
from the bottle washing process that use strong chemicals to thoroughly clean the bottles. Regulatory
agencies like the Department of Environment Resources (DENR) and Laguna Lake Development
Authority (LLDA) conduct yearly inspection of the wastewater treatment process. The Tanduay plants in
Quiapo and Cabuyao have been given Blue ratings by the LLDA while the Negros Plant has been granted
a 5 year discharge permit by the DENR, the only company given so in Region VI.
Distillation Plants
Distillery wastewater (slops) is lodged in lagoons where these undergo a treatment process to minimize
adverse effects on the environment. Treated slops are also usable as liquid fertilizers.
Asian Alcohol and Absolut Chemicals have methane recovery systems that prevent emissions of harmful
gases into the atmosphere and utilize the methane as biogas fuel for the distillation process. Absolut’s
system was implemented in a joint venture with Mitsubishi Corp. of Japan and is registered with the
United Nations-sponsored Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) Program.
Distillery wastes are also being utilized as liquid fertilizer for crops like sugar cane and tobacco.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
TDI and its subsidiaries have the following investment properties:
Tanduay Distillers, Inc.
Type of Property
Condominium unit

Address
Units 807 and 808 of Building
108 Benavidez St., Legaspi
Village, Makati City
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# of sq. m
71.733
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Absolut Chemicals, Inc.
Type of Property
Condominium unit

Address
Unit 1105 Security Bank Center,
11th floor, Ayala Ave., Makati
City

# of sq. m
89.395

Address
Brgy. Bayungyungan Talisay
Batangas
Gov. Drive Brgy. Quintana
Tanza Cavite
Gov. Drive Brgy. Quintana
Tanza Cavite
Brgy. Silangan San Mateo Rizal

# of sq. m
139,299.07

Asian Alcohol Corporation
Type of Property
Land
Land
Land
Land
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67,507.00
53,920.00
11,401.00

CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
In the ordinary course of business, TDI is contingently liable for lawsuits and claims, which are either
pending with the courts or are being contested, the outcomes of which are not presently determinable. In
the opinion of the Group’s management and legal counsel, the eventual liability under these lawsuits and
claims, if any, would not have a material or adverse effect on the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.
GSMI vs. TDI – MANDALUYONG RTC
AP
= 100 million civil infringement suit was filed against TDI last August 2003 by Ginebra San Miguel, Inc.
(GSMI) for the launching of Ginebra Kapitan, a gin product which allegedly has a “confusing similarity”
with GSMI’s principal gin product. On September 23, 2003, the Mandaluyong Regional Trial Court issued
a Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) preventing TDI from manufacturing, selling and advertising Ginebra
Kapitan. TDI filed a P
= 112-million countersuit for the losses and damages incurred as a result of the halt of
sales of its product. On November 11, 2003, the Court of Appeals issued a 60-day TRO against the
Mandaluyong RTC, effectively allowing TDI to resume making and selling Ginebra Kapitan. The Court of
Appeals affirmed the Mandaluyong RTC TRO on January 9, 2004. On January 28, 2004, the Company
filed a motion for reconsideration with the Court of Appeals.
On May 29, 2008, TDI’s legal counsel filed a Manifestation with the respective courts citing the IPO ruling
(see below) in the pending cases regarding the Ginebra brand name (i.e., before the: Court of Appeals- P
=
100M trademark infringement case and unfair competition filed by GSMI against TDI; before the Supreme
Court- TDI petition for review on certiorari to question the CA ruling in favor of GSM, Inc. and granting
the latter’s petition for the issuance of a TRO on TDI’s use of the brand name Ginebra).
GSMI vs. TDI – IPO
GSMI filed an opposition to TDI’s application for registration of the trademark “Ginebra Kapitan”. The
Bureau of Legal Affairs of the Intellectual Property Office (IPO) ruled on April 23, 2008 that the word
“Ginebra” is a generic term that is not capable of exclusive appropriation. The decision paves the way for
the registration with the IPO of TDI’s brand name “Ginebra Kapitan”. On March 4, 2009, the IPO denied
GSMI’s motion for reconsideration but the latter filed its appeal memorandum on April 7, 2009. The
Company on the other hand filed its comment to said appeal last May 18, 2009.
As of September 30, 2009, the Company is waiting for the decision of the aforementioned courts.
DENR vs. AAC – POLLUTION CONTROL AND ABATEMENT CASE
On July 22, 2008, the DENR issued a Cease and Desist Order (CDO) against AAC upon the
recommendation of the Pollution Adjudication Board (PAB) for failure to meet the effluent standards.
AAC filed a Motion for the issuance of a Temporary Lifting Order (TLO) on August 4, 2008 whereby
AAC requested for a period of time, or until August 2011 to implement immediate and long term
remedial measures.
On August 8, 2008, the PAB issued a 3-month TLO to AAC to allow AAC to operate and implement the
committed remedial measures. The said TLO was subsequently extended for successive 3-month periods
based on the favourable results of PAB’s inspection and samplings of the wastewater discharged
(effluents) by the AAC plant.
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In May 2009, the residents of Pulupandan complained to the local government on the alleged pollution
being caused by AAC’s operation on the marine and aerial environment. The roads to the Plant were
barricaded and some portions of the road were dug up to prevent access to the Plant. AAC was able to
obtain a court TRO to lift said barricades.
On June 1, 2009, the water pipeline to the AAC Plant was damaged allegedly during a road improvement
project. This forced AAC to temporary stop its operations as water is a necessary element in its
operations. The local government openly supported the protests of the residents and on September 8,
2009, the town’s Environment Officer recommended to the town mayor the permanent closure of AAC.
In the meantime and while the protests were ongoing, the existing TLO of AAC expired on June 16,
2009. AAC filed for a renewal of the TLO and this time AAC requested for a one-year term of the TLO.
The Regional Office of the PAB favourably endorsed said application to the PAB Head Office. The PAB
Head Office resolved to issue a TLO in favour of AAC initially for a period of two months to enable it to
repair its damaged water pipeline so that operations can resume and PAB can perform inspections and
samplings of its effluent as a basis for acting upon AAC’s motion for a one-year TLO.
AAC has advised the local government of Pulupandan on the PAB resolution and has requested for a
permit to repair the damaged water pipeline. To date, the Pulupandan local government has not acted
upon the AAC’s request.
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REGULATORY MATTERS
Various government agencies in the Philippines regulate the different aspects of the Company’s alcoholic
beverages manufacturing, sales, and distribution business.
Bureau of Food and Drugs
The Bureau of Food and Drugs (under the Department of Health) administers and enforces the law, and
issues rules and circulars, on safety and good quality supply of food, drug, and cosmetic to consumers;
and regulation of the production, sale, and traffic of the same to protect the health of the people.
Pursuant to this, food manufacturers are required to obtain a license to operate as such. The law further
requires food manufacturers to obtain a certificate of product registration for each product.
Furthermore, all products require a permit to advertise which principally validates the product claims on
the labels and promo materials under the Truth in Advertising Act.
Department of Trade and Industry
The Consumer Act of the Philippines, the provisions of which are principally enforced by the Department
of Trade and Industry, seeks to protect consumers against hazards to health and safety and against
deceptive, unfair and unconscionable sales acts and practices; and provide information and education to
facilitate sound choice and the proper exercise of rights by the consumer.
This law imposes rules to regulate such matters as (i) consumer product and safety; (ii) the production,
sale, distribution and advertisement of food, drugs, cosmetics and devices as well as substances hazardous
to the consumers’ health and safety; (iii) fair, honest consumer transactions and consumer protection
against deceptive, unfair and unconscionable sales acts or practices; (iv) practices relative to the use of
weights and measures; (v) consumer product and service warranties; (vi) compulsory labeling and fair
packaging; (vii) liabilities for defective products and services; (viii) consumer protection against
misleading advertisements and fraudulent sales promotion practices; and (ix) consumer credit
transactions.
Intellectual Property Office
The Intellectual Property Office is a government agency involved in the registration of the Company’s
brand names, trade marks and materials.
Philippine Advertising Board
The Standards of Trade Practices and Conduct in Advertising Industry as formulated by the Philippine
Advertising Board, a voluntary association of various companies and groups engaged in the fields of
advertising, marketing, and media in the Philippines, prescribe rules on the advertising activities of its
members.
Securities and Exchange Commission
Under the Securities Regulation Code, the SEC has jurisdiction and supervision over all corporations,
partnerships or associations that are grantees of primary franchises, license to do business or other
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secondary licenses. As the government agency regulating the Philippine securities market, the SEC issues
regulations on the registration and regulation of securities exchanges, the securities market, securities
trading, the licensing of securities brokers and dealers and reportorial requirements for publicly listed
companies and the proper application of SRC provisions, as well as the Corporation Code, and certain
other statutes.
Bureau of Internal Revenue
The Bureau of Internal Revenue issues permits to sell and administers the collection of excise taxes and
required permits.
Excise Tax on Distilled Spirits is defined under Section 141 of the National Internal Revenue Code. The
tax structure is set by the Philippine Congress. The last revision of the tax rates on Distilled Spirits was in
January 2005 which imposed a 30% increase. Products are categorized according to the materials from
which the alcohol was derived. The tax is based on the alcohol content or proof liter (a proof liter is a liter
of 100% proof alcohol).
Section 141(a) applies to alcohol derived from sugar cane, nipa palm, coconut, camote, cassava and buri
palm. These are the materials that are abundant in the Philippines and from which most local spirits are
produced. Tax under this section accrues upon the production of the alcohol and must be paid upon
removal of the alcohol from the distillation site.
Section 141(b) applies to alcohol derived from materials other than those listed in 141(a) such as grapes,
wheat, grains, etc. which is the alcohol base of most imported brands. Tax on imported brands is paid
upon arrival in the Philippines at the port of entry.
The tax is computed based on the alcohol content or proof liter (a proof liter is a liter of 100% proof
alcohol).The Philippine excise tax on alcohol was last increased by Congress in January 2005 by 30% and
by 8% every 2 years thereafter.

Tax per bottle = Tax rate x 0.80 proof x 750 mL

85

Regulatory Environment

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
The operations of the Company are subject to various Philippines legislation promulgated for the
protection of the environment.
The Company is required to comply with the provisions of the Philippine Environmental Impact
Statement System (EIS Law). The EIS Law is the general regulatory framework for any project or
undertaking that is either (i) classified as environmentally critical; or (ii) is situated in an environmentally
critical area. The law is implemented by the Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR).
Under the EIS Law, an entity that will undertake any such declared environmentally critical project or
operate in any such declared environmentally critical area is required to submit an Environmental Impact
Statement and secure an Environmental Compliance Certificate (ECC). This ECC requirement is
applicable to each of the four (4) bottling plants and two (2) distillation plants that the Company operates
throughout the Philippines.
The provisions of the Philippine Clean Air Act and its implementing rules and regulations (Clean Air
Act) are likewise applicable to the Company. The Clean Air Act provides that before any business may be
allowed to operate facilities and equipment, which emit regulated air pollutants, the establishment must
first obtain a Permit to Operate Air Pollution Source and Control Installations. The Environmental
Management Bureau is responsible for issuing permits to operate air pollution source and control
installations as well as for monitoring and inspecting the facilities of the grantee of the permit.
Other regulatory environmental laws and regulations applicable to the Company are as follows:
 The Water Code, which governs the appropriation and use by any entity of water within the
Philippines. Water permits are issued by the National Water Resources Board.
 Toxic Substances and Hazardous and Nuclear Wastes Control Act of 1990 and its implementing
rules and regulations, which requires waste generators to register with the Environmental
Management Bureau. The law aims to regulate the management of hazardous wastes generated by
various establishments such as the Company.
The Company is also subject to the provisions of the Philippine Clean Water Act of 2004 (Clean Water
Act) and its implementing rules and regulations. The Clean Water Act requires the Company to secure a
wastewater discharge permit, which authorizes it to discharge liquid waste and/or pollutants of specified
concentration and volume from its bottling and distillation plants into any water or land resource.. The
Environmental Management Bureau is responsible for issuing discharge permits and monitoring and
inspection of the facilities of the grantee of the permit.
The Company is also subjected to the implementing rules and regulations of the Laguna Lake
Development Authority (LLDA) which was established under R.A. 4850 and was given jurisdiction over
environmental management over the Laguna de Bay Region. EO 927 however, placed the LLDA under
the administrative jurisdiction of the DENR. The Company’s operations fall within the LLDA jurisdiction
and is therefore subject to all the rules and regulations prescribed by the LLDA, particularly in relation to
Discharge Permit. A Discharge Permit is a clearance or legal authorization to discharge liquid waste or
wastewater of specified concentration and volume into any sewer system or any water body that directly
or eventually drains into the Laguna de Bay for a specified period of time.
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Enumerated herewith are the requisites for a Discharge permit:
a.) A copy of applicant's LLDA Clearance;
b.) Engineer's Report – declaring production capacity, nature of waste, total daily volume of
discharged wastewater, treatment process(es), and estimated treatment efficiency;
c.) Statement of the final cost incurred in the installation of pollution control device, or the
WWTP;
d.) A copy of the Certificate of Accreditation of the Pollution Control Officer duly issued by the
Authority, or appointment/designation as such by the Chief Executive Officer;
e.) Payment of the User Fees as assessed by the Authority;
f.) Other documents as may be required by the Authority.
The LLDA has also implemented the Environmental User Fee System which seeks to actively protect and
improve the environment by promoting further pollution load reduction by industries and other
dischargers by making them pay for the residual pollution that they release to the environment.
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The information and data contained in this Prospectus relating to the Philippine Alcoholic Beverage
Industry and the Distilled Spirits subsector has been provided by Euromonitor International, a leading
global market research company, and is taken from Euromonitor’s database and other sources. The
Company does not have any knowledge that the information provided by Euromonitor is inaccurate in
any material respect.
THE PHILIPPINE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES INDUSTRY
The Philippine Alcoholic Beverages is a stable, growing industry. Volume consumption of alcoholic
drinks has shown positive growth in recent years, despite the global economic slowdown. The following
tables show the historical sales figures of the industry in terms of volume (millions of liters) and value
(millions of PHP). The entire industry grew 5.2% in volume terms from 2007 to 2008, and had a
Compounded Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 5.5% from 2003 to 2008. In terms of sales value, it grew
by 8.5% from 2007 to 2008, and averaged a CAGR of 8.9% from 2003 to 2008.
Sales of Alcoholic Drinks by Sector: Total Volume 2003-2008
Million litres
2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

Beer
1,146.8
1,225.8
1,304.1
1,379.7
1,454.0
1,526.2
Cider/perry
RTDs/High-strength
2.8
3.3
3.7
4.1
4.6
5.2
premixes
Wine
6.5
7.5
8.4
9.2
10.1
10.9
Spirits
448.0
452.6
457.3
475.5
521.4
551.2
Total
1,604.2
1,689.1
1,773.5
1,868.6
1,990.2
2,093.5
Source:
Official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, store checks, trade
interviews, Euromonitor International estimates
Sales of Alcoholic Drinks by Sector: Total Value 2003-2008
Ps million
2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

Beer
73,283.9 82,730.4 93,645.1 106,290.1 119,045.2 131,728.1
Cider/perry
RTDs/High-strength
872.0
1,027.8
1,189.1
1,365.4
1,543.4
1,720.5
premixes
Wine
4,243.6
4,877.5
5,543.7
6,279.0
7,018.1
7,757.7
Spirits
101,532.6 105,683.0 111,141.0 117,967.6 126,234.5 134,122.8
Total
179,932.1 194,318.7 211,518.8 231,902.2 253,841.2 275,329.1
Source:
Official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, store checks, trade
interviews, Euromonitor International estimates
The Alcoholic Beverages Industry can be subdivided into five main sub-industries – Beer, Distilled
Spirits, RTDs/High-strength premixes, Wines, and Cider/perry. The sectoral breakdown of the average
sales of the industry from 2003 to 2008 is shown by the pie graph below. Beer remains the favorite
alcoholic drink of Filipinos, accounting for 73% of all volume sales of the local market from 2003 to
2008. Distilled Spirits come in second at 26%. Wine accounts for 1% of the market, while RTDs/High
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strength premixes, and Cider/Perry make up less than 1% each.

THE DISTILLED SPIRITS INDUSTRY
Distilled Spirits is one of the dominant subsectors of the local Alcoholic Beverages Industry. In 2008,
total volume sales of Spirits was estimated at 551 million liters (approximately 60 million 9-liter cases),
up 5.7% over 2007’s volume sales of 521 million liters. The 2008 total value sales amounted to roughly P
134 billion, up 6.25% from P 126 billion in 2007. The industry has grown steadily from 2003 to 2008,
with volume sales CAGR of 4.2% and value sales CAGR of 5.7% over the aforementioned period.

The Philippines is one of the leading producers of spirits in the Southeast Asian region. Sugar is a major
industry in the Philippines, so local spirits are mostly based on alcohol derived from molasses, the residue
of the sugar refining process. The main selling distilled spirit products in the Philippines - rum, gin,
brandy, and whisky - are all produced either from molasses or by blending sugar based alcohol with other
ingredients.
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In 2008, Gin was the most popular spirits product, accounting for around 37% of sales volume. Brandy
and Rum are close runners up with 31% and 28% of sales volume, respectively. The remaining 4%
consisted of other spirits such as Whiskey. The top selling brands among all distilled spirits products are
Ginebra San Miguel Gin with a 36% market share, Tanduay Rum Five Years at 19%, and Emperador
Brandy with 13% of the market.

According to a Usage, Attitude, Image (UAI) study, the consumers of distilled spirits in the Philippines
come mostly from the DE income classes (66% to 68% of those surveyed) and are usually in the 18-30
year old age range (43% to 46%). A summary of the results of this study is presented by the two charts
below. This customer profile partly explains why domestic liquor sales are dominated by local
“economy” brands with retail prices ranging from P 23.00 to P 70.00 per bottle. Sales of these “economy”
products account for about 90% of local sales volume.
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KEY INDUSTRY TRENDS
Trend towards marketing to younger age groups, women. The Philippine population has a relatively
young median age of 23. Firms see the opportunity to tap this growing segment (with increasing
disposable incomes) and broaden their consumer base. The female segment is also getting some attention.
This trend is the driving force behind firms’ marketing efforts which use young celebrities, actors, and
music bands.
Consumers shifting to lower-cost spirits. Consumers are shifting to cheaper and lighter versions of spirits
(low alcohol content – from 40% to as low as 25%) in the light of lower disposable incomes. This trend is
also fueled by the taste preferences of the younger market segments being targeted by firms.
Local brands dominate the market. This is due to price advantage and responsiveness to Filipino
preferences and changing market trends. Consumers are expected to trade down to more affordable
alcoholic drinks as a result of the economic slowdown. This, combined with aggressive marketing efforts
of local firms, is expected to strengthen their dominance in the industry.
Expansion of modern grocery retailers. The rapid expansion of modern grocery retailers in 2008 helped
manufacturers to improve product availability. This helped to support an increase in volume sales of
alcoholic drinks, with the contribution from supermarkets/hypermarkets and convenience stores adding an
extra 28 million litres combined in 2008. This expansion is expected to continue in Euromonitor’s
forecast period.
COMPETITIVE LANDSCAPE
The domestic spirits market is dominated by local firms. In 2008, Ginebra San Miguel was the market
leader with a share of 46%, Tanduay Distillers Inc. followed with a 33% market share, and Emperador
Distillers controlled 17% of the market. Together, these three local players control almost 96% of the
market. The dominance of local firms is supported by their advantages in brand loyalty, pricing, and
distribution capabilities.

The same is true for the broader alcoholic beverages industry, as shown in the pie chart below. In 2007,
San Miguel Corp. held a commanding 77% share of the market. TDI was the second biggest firm with 7%
of the market, while Asia Brewery Inc., belonging to the Lucio Tan Group of Companies, held 4%.
Alliance Global Group and SAB Miller Plc had a 5% and a 4% market share, respectively. The rest of the
industry is divided up among smaller firms.
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DISTRIBUTION
The Philippines is composed of 7,000 islands that renders distribution a highly complex and expensive
business. The difficulties inherent in distribution create a significant barrier to entry for any potential
entrants into the Alcoholic Beverages market. Luzon, in general, accounts for a greater percentage in the
consumption of alcoholic beverages than Visayas or Mindanao.
Firms in the alcoholic beverage industry usually distribute direct to retailers through a large network of
independent, exclusive distributors. In the provinces, these distributors work with a large number of subdistributors known as bookers.
OUTLOOK
Euromonitor expects the Alcohlic Drinks industry to exhibit stable growth from 2008 to the year 2013.
Their forecasts are illustrated in the bar graph below. Volume sales is expected to grow at a CAGR of
4.2% from 2008 to 2013. The Distilled Spirits sector is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4.5% over the
same period. In 2009 and 2011, expected increases in excise taxes will put pressure on manufacturers’
pricing strategies, tapering volume growth over the forecast period. This, coupled with the economic
slowdown, results in slower expected volume growth compared to the past few years. Fortunately, the
upcoming general election is expected to help sales to pick up in 2009 and 2010.
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MARKET PRICE OF AND DIVIDENDS ON TDI’S COMMON
EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
MARKET INFORMATION
The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ common shares are not publicly traded and are not listed in any
public market and/or exchanges.
HOLDERS
The number of shareholders of record as of December 7, 2009 was 8. Common shares outstanding as of
December 7, 2009 were 600,000,000 shares. The stockholders as of December 7, 2009 are as follows:
Stockholder’s Name

No. of Common Shares Held

Tanduay Holdings, Inc.
Lucio C. Tan
Harry C. Tan
Lucio K. Tan, Jr.
Domingo T. Chua
Wilson T. Young
Peter P. Ong*
Carlos R. Alindada*
Total
*Independent directors elected as of December 2009

599,999,993
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
600,000,000

% to Total
100.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
100.0%

TDI has no preferred shares.
DIVIDENDS
1. Dividend declarations
On April 20, 2007, TDI declared cash dividends of P 0.60 per share (totaling P 360 million) to Tanduay
Holdings, Inc (THI). In a meeting held February 19, 2008, TDI declared and distributed cash dividends
of P 0.50 per share to THI. On March 24, 2009, TDI declared cash dividends of P 0.50 per share (totaling
P 300 million).
2. Restrictions that limit the ability to pay dividends on common equity or that are likely to happen in the
future.
“ Dividends shall be declared and paid out of the unrestricted retained earnings which shall be payable in
cash, property, or stock to all stockholders on the basis of outstanding stock held by them, as often and at
such times as the Board of Directors may determine and in accordance with law and applicable rules and
regulations.” (Article VII Sec. 3 By-Laws)
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities or Exempt Securities, including recent issuance of securities
constituting an exempt transaction
There was no recorded sale of unregistered securities during the past three years.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
PLAN OF OPERATION FOR 2010
•

To enable the Company to grow in terms of volume, TDI is focused on increasing its market share
not only in Tanduay brands but also in the growing brandy market and white spirits.
Marketing activities are focused on enhancing existing strengths and introducing programs that will
position Tanduay’s core brands as leading names in their respective markets. Various promotional
and advertising programs are geared towards the young and traditional drinkers through music and
sports.

•

To improve cost efficiency, Management is also monitoring increases in the cost of molasses while
improving internal alcohol supply and finding ways to challenge the increasing cost of fuel, labor
and other production inputs.

•

Tanduay expects to remain committed to its Quality policies and programs. Quarterly strategic
program reviews continues to be part of Tanduay’s regular activities since this is an excellent forum
for gathering together department head and key plant personnel to participate in focused discussions
on structured environmental and market scans, developmental goal accomplishment, and issues
affecting peformance.

•

AAC is currently embarking on an expansion program that will modernize and increase distilling
capacity by an additional 100,000 liters per day of extra neutral alcohol for high premium liquor
products.

•

There are no expected major acquisitions for 2010 as the various machineries and equipments for
the Cagayan de Oro Plant have already been acquired.

•

The Company does not require additional funding for these plans of operations since most of these
activities are already in place. The Company has a yearly budget for its advertising and
promotional expenses. Some of these activities are just undergoing normal maintenance. The
expansion of AAC started in 2008. All payments for the project requirements have been made and
almost 60% of the budget has been used. Except for AAC which is expected to normalize
operations in the next six months, the Company does not expect to have significant changes in
number of employees.
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INTERIM PERIOD (Unaudited September 30, 2009 vs. Unaudited September 30, 2008)
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS:
The Company uses the following major performance measures. The analyses are based on comparisons
and measurements on financial data of the current period against the same period of the previous year. The
discussion on the computed key performance indicators can be found in the “Results of Operations” in the
MD & A below.
Key Performance Indicator
Sales volume
Net income, in Php (attributable to equity holders of
the company)
Current ratio
Debt-to equity ratio
Basic/Diluted earnings per share attributable to
equity holders of the parent, in Php

Particulars
volume per case
actual
current asset / current liabilities
total liabilities / total equity
net income / shares outstanding

30-Sep-09

30-Sep-08

13,432,702

13,603,323

413,923,734 301,791,899
3.13
4.19
1.45
1.33
0.69

0.50

Actual sales volume for September 2009 is 13.4 million cases, which is lower by 1% from September
2008’s 13.6 million cases. Consolidated Net Income for 2009 amounted to P 419 million higher by 41%
from last period’s P 296 million. Current Ratio for 2009 is 3.13 a decline from last period’s 4.19. Debt-toequity ratio increased from 1.33 in September 2008 to 1.45 in September 2009 as additional short-term
loans were availed during the period. Tanduay’s basic/diluted earnings per share attributable to equity
holders of the parent company for 2009 is P 0.69, and P 0.50 in 2008.
Results of Operations
The Company posted consolidated net sales of P 7.5 billion for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009, higher by 8% from the previous period’s P 6.9 billion. Despite the decline in sales
volume, the average increase of 6% in selling price in January 2009 resulted in the increase in sales as of
September 30, 2009. The production facility in Cagayan De Oro, Misamis Oriental made a positive
contribution in meeting the higher demand in the Mindanao region, which captures 42% of the total sales
volume. Cost of goods sold increased by 6% and gross profit rate improved by a minimal 1% from 18%
to 19%. This is on account of higher cost of alcohol, packaging materials and manufacturing overhead on
account of higher fuel operating costs and the depreciation of the new plant facilities in Cagayan De Oro.
Consolidated net income amounted to =
P419 million, an increase of 41% from last year’s consolidated net
income of P
=296 million. This is on account of the P 115 million gain on changes in fair values of
investment properties recognized as part of other income. Interest expense increased by 10% due to the
short-term loans availed during the period. There was a drop in foreign exchange gain as the exchange
rates did not significantly fluctuate in the current period compared to the previous year. Interest income
decreased by 76% since the 2008 figures include interest income from advances to THI. Total operating
expenses increased by 14% on account of higher selling expenses which also increased by 14% due to
higher advertising and promotion expenses as a result of Tanduay’s ongoing activities in celebration of its
155 year-anniversary this year. One of the highlights of the celebration was the launching of the biggest
nationwide concert last March 2009 that ran until December 2009 participated in by the country’s top 5
most popular bands. This marketing effort was geared towards attracting the young drinkers. TDI also
launched a new product called “Cossack Blue” in August 2009.

95

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The effect of the other comprehensive income particularly revaluation increment of property, plant and
equipment and changes in fair value of AFS financial assets coupled by the increase in consolidated net
income led to the increase in total comprehensive income by 116% from P221 million in 2008 to P479
million in the current period.
Financial Condition
Tanduay’s consolidated total assets as at September 30, 2009 amounted to =
P11.1 billion. Current ratio
increased to 3.13 in September 2009 from 2.84 in December 2008. The increase in current ratio is on
account of lower cash and cash equivalents by 38% due to various payments made during the period,
increase in receivables by 38% due to higher sales, lower inventories by 15% on account of lower
purchases due to higher material consumption, and increase in prepayments and other current assets by
55% due to higher prepaid taxes, importation charges, input VAT and creditable withholding taxes.
Current liabilities on the other hand decreased by 10% on account of the decrease in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities by 41% due to payment of various accounts. Increase in income tax payable is in
relation to TDI's accrual of tax liability for the third quarter of 2009.
Property plant and equipment - cost increased by 10%. This can be attributed to the various construction
projects of TDI, AAC and ACI in line with their expansion projects. ACI’s on-going construction and
installation of the Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) project is in partnership with Japan’s
Mitsubishi Corporation. This also increased the deposit for future certified emission reduction by 76%
due to the advances made by Mitsubishi Corporation in accordance with their agreement.
Significant changes in the equity account are the net changes in fair values of available-for-sale
investments which decreased by 60% since the market values of TDI’s government bonds have
appreciated by 21% and the increase in retained earnings by 10% on account of the income reported
during the period.
Key Performance Indicators: 2006 to 2008
Key Performance Indicator
Sales volume
Net income, in Php (attributable to equity holders of
the company)
Current ratio
Debt-to equity ratio
Basic/Diluted earnings per share attributable to
equity holders of the parent, in Php

Particulars
volume per case

31-Dec-08

31-Dec-07

31-Dec-06

17,346,701

15,252,846

13,498,926

actual
current asset / current liabilities
total liabilities / total equity

191,115,153
2.84
1.55

319,110,893
5.44
1.24

146,735,181
6.82
1.28

net income / shares outstanding

0.32

0.53

0.24

Actual sales volume for year 2008 is 17.3 million cases, which is higher by 13% from year 2007 of 15.3
million cases and higher by 13% from year 2006. Double digit growths were posted in the last two years to
offset the negative growth rates in 2006 and 2005. As a consumer product, the sales performance could also
be attributed on a macro-economic level to the performance of the Philippine economy which posted the
lowest GNP growth rates in 2005 and 2006 at 5.4% and 5.5%, respectively. On the other hand, the
Philippines posted its best economic performance in 2007 at 8% GNP growth and a respectable 6.1% in
2008. If not for the global economic slowdown in 2008, the 2008 figure would have been much better than
2007. Visayas and Mindanao which are the stronghold markets are predominantly agricultural areas. Thus,
the Company’s sales also tend to ride on the performance of the agricultural sector of the economy which
posted favorable growth rates in 2007 (4.9%) and 2008 (3.2%) compared to the 2005 and 2006 figures of
2% and 3.7%, respectively.
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Consolidated Net Income for 2008 amounted to P 186 million, lower by 40% from the 2007 figure of P 308
million and higher by 38% from 2006’s P 135 million. Sales prices were increased by an average of 6%
during the period. However, costs increased at a much faster rate of 7% thus, gross profit margins decreased
from 22% in 2006 to 16% in 2008. No selling price adjustments were made in 2005 and 2007. However,
prices were adjusted starting in June 2008 and January 2009 by a total of 12% thus gross profit rates in 2009
are expected to improve to 20%. Average cost of alcohol increased by 60% from P 25 per liter in 2004 to P
40 per liter in 2008. This was primarily attributable to the significant increase in the cost of molasses, the
primary raw material for the production of alcohol, from P 3,800.00 mt in 2004 to P 5,800.00 mt in 2008 or
by 53%. Overhead costs and expenses were also affected by the annual inflation increases of 6% during the
period which was triggered by the rise in fuel prices starting in 2005 up to mid-2008 when the price per
barrel rose from $36 to as high as $132. Crude oil has dropped to $38 in December 2008.
Current Ratio for 2008 was 2.84, while in 2007 it was 5.44 and 6.82 in 2006. Debt-to-equity ratio improved
from 1.28 in 2006 to 1.24 in 2007 but went up again to 1.55 in 2008 due to the short-term loans availed
during the period. Tanduay’s basic/diluted earnings per share attributable to holders of the parent company
for 2008 is P0.32, P0.53 for 2007 and is P0.24 for 2006.
Results of Operations
Comparisons of key operating results for the last two years are summarized in the following tables.
(In millions)
Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Operating expenses
Other charges-net
Income before income tax
Net income

2008

2007

P 9,046
7,587
671
377
410
186

P 7,650
6,053
749
333
515
308

2008 vs 2007
TDI’s consolidated net sales for 2008 amounted to P 9.0 billion or an increase of 18% from P 7.6 billion in
2007. Despite the global financial turmoil in the second half of the year, TDI still managed to post growth
in sales volume by 14% as a result of the favorable economic performance in the Southern Philippines. The
impressive growth can also be attributed to the all year round advertising and promotional campaigns,
which pushed brand awareness and patronage to TDI’s liquor products. On the other hand, the opening of
TDI’s new production facility in Cagayan de Oro, Misamis Oriental also contributed to the sales growth.
This made Tanduay products more accessible and readily available in the Mindanao region. The Cagayan
de Oro plant has served 50% of the region’s requirements for 2008.
Cost of goods sold increased by 25% and gross profit rate dropped by 5% from 21% in 2007 to 16% in
2008. This is on account of the higher cost of imported alcohol, packaging materials like brand new bottles,
and manufacturing overhead as a result of higher fuel operating costs and the depreciation of the new plant
facilities in Cagayan de Oro.
Total Operating expenses decreased by 10% on account of lower selling expenses, which decreased by
14%. TDI spent more in its various promotional and advertising activities in 2007, which positively resulted
in the growth of liquor sales in 2008 despite lower advertising expenses. TDI also focused in the
implementation and enhancement of its various Quality Improvement Programs so as to respond to the
preferences of customers and enabling it to maintain market leadership.
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Other Charges- net of other income, resulted in an increase of 13%. This is due to the decrease in interest
income by 58% as a result of lower money market placements as compared to the previous year. Foreign
exchange transactions resulted in a gain of P 56 million which is a reversal of the previous years’ loss of the
same figure as the peso to dollar exchange rate appreciated in value from P 41.28 as of December 31, 2007
to P 47.52 as of December 31, 2008. TDI’s interest expense increased by 12% as a result of the additional P
500 million short-term loans availed in October and December 2008. The impairment loss of AFS financial
assets and property, plant and equipment was due to the decline in value of TDI’s investment in debt
securities and the impairment loss as a result of the revaluation of AAC’s land, land improvements, building
and building improvements and machinery and equipment.
Consolidated net income decreased by 40% from P 308 million in 2007 to P 186 million in 2008.
Financial Condition
2008
Tanduay’s consolidated total assets amounted to P 11.1 billion as of December 31, 2008, an increase of 9%
from the previous years’ P 10.2 billion. Current ratio dropped to 2.8 in 2008 compared to 5.4 in 2007.
Items affecting the current ratio are the decrease in cash and cash equivalents by 33%, prepayments and
other current assets by 17% and increase in inventories by 26%
The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was due to payments made to various suppliers on account of
bigger production to meet higher demands and interest expense on TDI’s syndicated loan. The decrease in
prepayments and other current assets was due to the reclassification to property plant and equipment and
inventories the marginal deposits on the importation of machinery and equipment used in the Cagayan de
Oro plant, raw materials particularly alcohol, spare parts and other inventory items such as base coated
paper, aluminum closure sheets and aluminum caps. This was one of the reasons why inventories increased
by 26% apart from higher demand.
Available-for-sale investments decreased by 51% on account of the Company’s decline in value of its AFS
debt securities as of December 31, 2008.
Property, plant and equipment increased by 11%. This can be attributed to AAC’s and ACI’s expansion
and modernization program. ACI has started the construction and installation of the Clean Development
Mechanism (CDM) project, with Japan’s Mitsubishi Corporation as its partner, which aims to reduce the
emission of greenhouse gases to the atmosphere as a way to help lessen the ill-effects of global warming.
Investment properties decreased by 22% on account of AAC’s disposal of a parcel of land and it’s building
for P14 million.
Consolidated total liabilities amounted to P 6.8 billion in 2008 or an increase of 20% from the previous
years’ P 5.7 billion. This was due to the increase in accounts payable by 55% caused by purchases of
alcohol and other raw materials to sustain bigger production. Another factor was the increase in short-term
bank loans as the Company and AAC availed of short-term loans amounting to P 500 million and P 200
million, respectively, for additional working capital and expansion programs during the last quarter of 2008.
Income tax payable decreased by 98% since most of the income taxes were paid during the 2nd and 3rd
quarters of the year.
The deposits for future Certified Emission Reduction, which amounted to P 40 million as of December 31,
2008, was the result of the advances made by Mitsubishi Corporation with regard to the CDM Project of
ACI.
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The significant changes in the equity portion of TDI are the effects of the decline in value of TDI’s AFS
debt securities, which led to the decrease in the net changes in fair values of available-for-sale financial
assets by 397%. The revaluation increment in property, plant and equipment resulted in a decrease of 5%
since there were fully depreciated appraised properties in 2002 that were realized in 2008. The effect of
acquisition of minority interests was the result of TDI’s increase in its ownership interest in AAC and ACI.
From 90% ownership, TDI now owns 94.74% of AAC and 95.52% of ACI, respectively.
Addendum to the December 31, 2008 Consolidated Financial Statements
The 2008 consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the following revised
disclosures which are referenced to the 2008 notes to financial statements:
Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Financial Reporting Practices (page 12)
Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods, shown as “Net sales”, is recognized when goods are delivered to and
accepted by the customers. Net sales is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, excluding discounts, returns and value-added tax.
Note 11, Property, Plant and Equipment (page 30)
In 2007, the Company capitalized interest expense amounting to =
P40.2 million (see Note 15), which
relates to the construction of plant facilities of the Company, using a capitalization rate of 9.34%. There
was no capitalized interest expense in 2008.
Note 16, Related Party Transactions (pages 33 and 34)
The Group, in the normal course of business, has the following significant transactions with related
parties:
Companies belonging to the Lucio Tan Group of Companies
Asia Brewery, Incorporated (ABI)
• Purchases of bottles and other materials amounting to =
P1,263.4 million and =
P878.2 million in 2008
and 2007, respectively; and sale of cullets and other materials amounting to =
P36.0 million and P
=63.7
million in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Fortune Tobacco Corporation (FTC)
• Sales amounting to P
=51.4 million and =
P51.5 million in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The sales to and purchases from the above related parties are made at terms equivalent to those that
prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at December 31, 2008 and 2007 are unsecured,
interest free and are settled through cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any
related party receivables or payables.
THI, parent company, and THC, ultimate parent company
In February 2006, prior to the acquisition by THI of Unimark Investments (SPV-AMC) Corporation or
Unimark (now a wholly owned subsidiary of THC), the Company advanced P
=750.0 million to THC
which bears interest at 9.8% per annum. On September 13, 2006, THI acquired Unimark for P
=800.0
million on account, by recognizing such liability to the previous owners of Unimark of the same amount.
Subsequently in September 2006, THI assumed THC’s liability to the Company amounting to P
=750.0
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million in exchange for THC’s assumption of THI’s liability to the previous stockholders of Unimark.
The Company recognized interest income relating to these advances amounting to =
P19.3 million and P
=
55.4 million for the years December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
In 2008 and 2007, dividends declared by the Company due to THI amounting to =
P300.0 million and
=360.0 million, respectively, were paid by way of application against the Company’s advances to and
P
interest receivable from THI amounting to =
P261.0 million and =
P39.0 million in 2008, respectively, and
=272.6 million and P
P
=87.4 million in 2007, respectively (see Notes 20 and 24). Also, the Company
collected advances amounting to P
=4.0 million in 2007.
On October 13, 2008, the Company’s dividends payable to THI amounting to =
P261.0 million were paid
by way of application against the Company’s advances to THI (see Note 24). The Company also received
advances from THI amounting to =
P50.0 million included under “Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities” account in the 2008 consolidated balance sheet.
Note 24, Notes to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (page 46)
Non-cash Financing Activities:
The Company’s dividends payable to THI amounting to =
P300.0 million in 2008 and =
P360.0 million in
2007 were paid by way of application against the Company’s advances to and interest receivable from
THI amounting to P
=261.0 million and =
P39.0 million in 2008, and =
P272.6 million and =
P87.4 million in
2007, respectively.
Had the dividends payable not been applied against the Company’s advances to THI, the cash flows in the
proforma consolidated statements of cash flows would have been presented as follows:
Year Ended December 31, 2008
Proforma
Adjustment Cash Flows in
Cash Flows as
Presented in the
relating to the
the Proforma
Non-cash
Consolidated
Consolidated
Statements
Financing
Statements of
of Cash Flows
Activities
Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2007
Proforma
Adjustment Cash Flows in
Cash Flows as
Presented in the
relating to the
the Proforma
Non-cash
Consolidated
Consolidated
Statements
Financing
Statements of
of Cash Flows
Activities
Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment loss on AFS financial assets

P
=– P
= 409,960,798 P
= 514,568,788

P
= 409,960,798

P
=– P
= 514,568,788

417,212,748
408,791,234

–
–

417,212,748
408,791,234

371,272,419
329,620,260

–
–

371,272,419
329,620,260

59,955,509

–

59,955,509

23,192,667

–

23,192,667

(48,301,227)

–

(48,301,227)

(113,760,743)

–

(113,760,743)

(41,881,446)

–

(41,881,446)

55,730,061

–

55,730,061

and
property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Unrealized foreign exchange losses
(gains) - net
Loss on sale of investment properties and
property and equipment - net
Changes in fair values of investment
properties
Operating income before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables
Inventories
Prepayments and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities

786,072

–

786,072

788,610

–

788,610

163,636
1,206,687,324

–
–

163,636
1,206,687,324

96,637
1,181,508,699

–
–

96,637
1,181,508,699

–
(643,426,309)
– (1,123,084,364)
–
74,949,806

(643,426,309)
(1,123,084,364)
74,949,806
415,312,073

–

100

415,312,073

(85,123,980)
(258,695,406)
(35,768,286)

–
–
–

(85,123,980)
(258,695,406)
(35,768,286)

(176,767,296)

–

(176,767,296)
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Retirement benefits cost
Contributions to retirement fund
Provisions for (reversal of allowance for):
Inventory obsolescence and losses
Doubtful accounts
Cash generated from (used in) operations
Interest received
Income taxes paid, including creditable
withholding and final taxes
Net cash from (used in) operating activities

8,027,927
(7,680,000)

–
–

8,027,927
(7,680,000)

15,286,400
(11,769,500)

–
–

15,286,400
(11,769,500)

1,091,501
–
(68,122,042)
41,884,087

–
–
–
39,011,594

1,091,501
–
(68,122,042)
80,895,681

(261,156)
13,591,465
642,000,940
142,275,526

–
–
87,357,806

(261,156)
13,591,465
642,000,940
229,633,332

(330,428,554)
(356,666,509)

–
39,011,594

(330,428,554)
(317,654,915)

(128,986,661)
655,289,805

–
87,357,806

(128,986,661)
742,647,611

–
260,988,406

–
(549,092,112)
562,424,386

(693,761,006)
–

–
272,642,194

(693,761,006)
272,642,194

–
–
260,988,406

14,008,928
(64,926)
27,276,276

8,415,000
(2,149,486)
(687,495,492)

–
–
272,642,194

8,415,000
(2,149,486)
(414,853,298)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
(549,092,112)
Collection of advances to Parent Company
301,435,980
Proceeds from sale of investment properties and
property and equipment
14,008,928
Increase in other noncurrent assets
(64,926)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities
(233,712,130)

Year Ended December 31, 2008
Proforma
Adjustment Cash Flows in
Cash Flows as
Presented in the
relating to the
the Proforma
Consolidated
Non-cash
Consolidated
Financing
Statements
Statements of
of Cash Flows
Activities
Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2007
Proforma
Adjustment Cash Flows in
Cash Flows as
Presented in the
relating to the
the Proforma
Consolidated
Non-cash
Consolidated
Financing
Statements
Statements of
of Cash Flows
Activities
Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Availment of bank loans
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Advances from Parent Company
Deposits for future Certified Emission Reduction
Payment of bank loans (Note 15)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

P
=– P
= 700,000,000

P
= 700,000,000
–
(416,879,097)
50,000,000
40,165,200
(10,000,000)
363,286,103

(300,000,000)
–
–
–
–
(300,000,000)

2,069,975

–

(300,000,000)
(416,879,097)
50,000,000
40,165,200
(10,000,000)
63,286,103
2,069,975

P
=–
–
(371,647,100)
–
–
(10,000,000)
(381,647,100)

P
=–
(360,000,000)
–
–
–
–
(360,000,000)

P
=–
(360,000,000)
(371,647,100)
–
–
(10,000,000)
(741,647,100)

(11,712,091)

–

(11,712,091)

(425,564,878)

–

(425,564,878)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

(225,022,561)

–

(225,022,561)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

680,340,053

–

680,340,053

1,105,904,931

–

1,105,904,931

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

=455,317,492
P

=–
P

P
=455,317,492

P
=680,340,053

=–
P

=680,340,053
P

Non-cash Investing Activities
2008
Additions to construction in progress and other property, plant and equipment accounts amounting to
=12.2 million and P
P
=12.1 million were not yet paid as of December 31, 2008, and the related liabilities are
included as part of “Accounts payable and accrued liabilities” in the 2008 consolidated balance sheet.
2007
Construction in progress and other property, plant and equipment accounts amounting to =
P8.3 million
were not yet paid as of December 31, 2007, and the related liability is included as part of “Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities” in the 2007 consolidated balance sheet. This was subsequently paid in
2008.
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Results of Operations
(In millions)
Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Operating expenses
Other charges-net
Income before income tax
Net income

2007
P 7,650
6,054
749
333
515
308

2006
P 6,575
5,115
964
221
276
135

2007 vs 2006
The Company’s consolidated net sales for 2007 increased by 16% from P 6.6 billion in 2006 to P 7.7 billion
in 2007. This can be attributed to the overall economic growth of 7% due to improved farm income as the
agricultural sector posted a 4.68% growth in 2007. The national and local elections in May 2007 also
contributed to higher consumer spending. TDI went through an aggressive advertising campaign with the
launching of “100-MILLION SWER-T SA TANSAN” Promo and a nationwide concert tour by a popular
band designed to attract the younger drinking generation.
Cost of goods sold increased by 18% primarily due to the increase in sales volume by 13% and higher costs
of molasses and brand new bottles. The cost of alcohol increased by 9%, while the price of brand new
bottles increased by an average of 12%.
Total Operating expenses decreased by 22% on account of the significant decrease in selling expenses by
38% due to an agreement made with the Company’s distributors that they will bear the freight charges on
the goods shipped to them. General and administrative expenses increased by 27%, due to higher electrical
and water consumption for the construction of Cagayan de Oro plant, higher cost of repairs and
maintenance, lease payments and utilization of petroleum products.
Other Charges-net increased by 51% as against last years’ mainly due to the increase in Foreign exchange
loss by 84% as a result of the appreciation of the Philippines peso against the US dollar from P 49.03 as of
December 2006 to P 41.28. Changes in fair value of investment properties resulted from a gain of P 46
million in 2006 to a minimal loss of P 0.1 million since the 2006 figures were determined by an
independent firm of appraisers based on market values of those dates.
Consolidated net income increased by 128% from P 135 million in 2006 to P 308 million in 2007.
Financial Condition
2007
Consolidated total assets increased by 8% from P 9.5 billion in 2006 to P 10.2 billion in 2007. The increase
was the result of the overall impact of the increase in total noncurrent assets by 24%. Total current assets on
the other hand decreased by 4% this on account of the decrease in cash and cash equivalents by 38% and
receivables by 5%. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was related to the financing of the
construction of Cagayan de Oro Plant. Increase in the property, plant and equipment of TDI by 30% was
mainly due to the construction of the Cagayan de Oro Plant, which started operations in January 2008.
Various machineries and equipments were acquired and installed for the said Plant. Payments of interest
related to bank loans for TDI was another reason for the decline in cash and cash equivalents. Prepayments
and other current assets increased by 6% due to importation charges paid in relation to the acquisition of
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imported machinery and equipment of TDI and the increase in ACI’s specific tax in relation to its purchase
of alcohol.
Available-for-sale investments decreased by 20% as the value of TDI’s investment in government bonds
declined. Investment properties decreased by 11% due to TDI’s disposal of one of its real estate properties
located in Cainta, Rizal.
Consolidated total liabilities amounted to P 5.7 billion in 2007 or 6% higher than the P 5.3 billion registered
in 2006. This was due to the increase in accounts payable by 9% and income tax payable by 100%. Another
significant factor was the increase in deferred tax liabilities by 49%. The increase in accounts payable was
related to the increase in purchases of raw materials –alcohol by 15% in 2007, which was evident in the
increase in sales volume by 13%.
Revaluation increment in property, plant and equipment of a subsidiary, net of related deferred tax liability
increased by 71%. This was due to the valuation performed by an independent firm of appraisers as of
December 2007 on the different property, plant and equipment of TDI, AAC and ACI. The increase in
valuation of these assets was credited to this account.
Results of Operations
(In millions)
Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Operating expenses
Other charges-net
Income before income tax
Net income

2006
P 6,575
5,115
964
221
276
135

2005
P 6,852
5,262
832
170
929
703

2006 vs. 2005
Consolidated net sales for 2006 dropped by 4% as the net sales from liquor products declined due to the
decrease in sales volume by 6%. This was due to weak consumer demand as the purchasing power was
severely affected by increase in fuel cost, value-added tax and the adverse impact of the typhoons that hit
the country. Shift in consumer preference to brandy also further decreased rum market share particularly in
the Luzon area. A new and improved brandy product was launched in the last quarter of 2006 to be able to
regain market share in the area.
Cost of goods sold decreased by 3% due to the decrease in volume by 6%, in manufacturing overhead by
4% and direct labor by 15%. Decrease in overhead was primarily due to the change in the accounting of
bottle washing costs upon the acquisition of the bottle washing operations of Cabuyao Packaging Corp. in
late 2005. The decrease in labor cost was the effect of Tanduay’s retrenchment program in October 2005
and May 2006. Gross profit rate was lower by 1% at 22% from last year’s 23% due to higher cost of
molasses and energy.
Operating expenses increased by 16% on account of higher selling expenses by 11% and general and
administrative expenses by 36%. Freight and handling increased by 2% which was due to additional bunker
surcharges charged by the shipping companies effective February 2006. Taxes and licenses increased due
to the documentary stamp taxes paid and arranger’s fees on the P4.2 billion syndicated loan from various
local banks.
Apart from higher operating expenses, interest expense significantly increased by 167% representing the
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interest on TDI’s borrowing of P 4.2 billion. Interest income also increased by 150% as interest was
collected from advances given to Tangent Holdings Corporation, which was eventually assigned to
Tanduay Holdings, Inc. The decrease in net income by 81% was due to the effect of the acquisition of Asian
Alcohol and Absolut Chemicals in 2005, which resulted in a negative goodwill of P 279 million. Under
existing accounting rules on business combinations, the fair value of the net assets of the acquired
subsidiary share is determined on acquisition date. In case the fair values of net asset exceed the cost of
acquisition of the subsidiary, the excess shall be booked to profit or loss.
Financial Condition
2006
Tanduay’s consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2006 increased by 7% from P8.9 billion in 2005 to
P9.5 billion in 2006. This is primarily due to the increase in total current assets by 9% and noncurrent
assets by 5%.
The increase in cash and cash equivalents by 17% and the decrease in receivables by 26% can be attributed
to TDI’s aggressive collection efforts, which shortened the average collection period from 78 days to 52
days. Inventories increased by 23% which can be attributed to the increase in raw alcohol in anticipation of
the increase in specific tax in January 2007 by 8%. Prepayments and other current assets increased by
100% due to the importation of various machineries for the Cagayan de Oro Plant.
The available-for-sale investments decreased by 6% as a result of the decline in fair values of the
investments in US dollar–denominated government bonds. Deferred tax assets-net decrease by 76% due to
AAC’s net changes in fair values of investment properties and gains on settlement of investment.
Property, plant and equipment increased by 3% due to the construction of the Cagayan de Oro Plant and the
acquisition of new machinery for the Bacolod Plant. Various transportation equipment were also purchased
during the year. Investment properties increased by 505% and other investments and noncurrent assets by
92% as a result of AAC’s settlement of its investment by a local affiliated bank through cash payment and
transfer of ownership of various assets including non-performing loans and investment properties.
The increase in net retirement assets represent the excess of the value of TDI’s plan assets over the present
value of its defined benefit obligations, which was based on the results of the actuarial valuations made as
of December 31, 2006.
Consolidated total liabilities increased by 19% due to the loan availment by TDI of a P 4.2 billion long term
debt from a consortium of local banks, which was used to pay-off its short-term loans amounting to P3.65
billion. The increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities by 74% can be attributed to the build up of
alcohol inventory.
The decrease in revaluation increment in property, plant and equipment by 12% was due to the transfer of
the portion of revaluation increment that has been realized through depreciation and sale to retained
earnings. The net changes in fair values of available-for-sale investments on the Group’s investments in US
dollar-denominated bonds resulted in a cumulative gain thus increasing the account by 72%.
OTHER MATTERS
(i) On February 10, 2006, TDI availed of a =
P 4.2 billion syndicated loan from a consortium of local banks
for the purpose of extending the maturity of its existing short term loans and for general corporate funding
requirements, including plant expansion. The loan is payable in nine semi-annual installments of P
=5
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million starting on February 15, 2007, and a final payment of =
P 4.155 billion on August 15, 2011. The
loan carries an annual interest of MART 1 plus 1% spread.
In October and December 2008, TDI availed of short-term loans amounting to =
P300 million and P
=200
million, respectively, for working capital purposes. AAC also availed of a =
P200 million loan for its plant
expansion. As of September 30, 2009 TDI has the P 300 million debt, and the P 200 million short-term
loans outstanding.
Except for the above transactions, there are no other trends or any known demands, commitments, events
or uncertainties that will result in or that are reasonably likely to result in the Group’s increasing or
decreasing liquidity in any material way. The Group is not in default or breach of any note, loan, lease
or other indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring it to make payments. The Company does not
have any liquidity problems.
(ii) There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to
the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.
(iii) There are no known material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period.
(iv) There are no known material commitments for capital expenditures for the Company.
(v) TDI’s major subsidiary, AAC has temporarily shut down its operations as a result of the protest of the
local residents due to the alleged pollution being caused by AAC’s operations. The immediate cause of the
shut down however was the protesters’ actions of preventing access to the alcohol plant. Further, the
waterline to the plant was damaged during a road improvement project by the local government. Renewal
of AAC’s Environmental Compliance Certificate (ECC) is in process with the Pollution Adjudication Board
of the Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) and to date, a Temporary License to
Operate has been issued by the DENR. AAC is working on the permit from the local government to resume
operations and to repair the damage to the water lines.
(vi) There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.
(vii) The causes for any material change from period to period which shall include vertical and horizontal
analyses of any material item;
Results of our Horizontal (H) and Vertical (V) analyses for the interim period September 30, 2009
and September 30, 2008 showed the following material changes:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Cash and cash equivalents –H- (38%)
Receivables – H- 38%
Inventories– H- (15%) V- 29%
Prepayments and other current assets- H- 55%
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets H- 21%
Property plant and equipment- at cost – H-10%
Investment Properties – H- 216%
Other non-current assets H – (44%)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities –H-(41%)
Income tax payable – H- 2023%
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11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.

Long-term bank loans-net of current portion – H- (0%) V- 37%
Deposits for future certified emission reduction- H-76%
Net retirement benefits liability – H - 114%
Net changes in FV of AFS financial assets- H- (60%)
Retained earnings- H- 10%
Net sales- H- 8%
Cost of goods sold- H-6%
Gross profit- H– 14%
Selling expenses – H- 14%
General and administrative expenses – H 15%
Interest expense – H- 10%
Gain on changes in fair values of investment properties – H - 93,569%
Impairment loss on PPE of subsidiary - H-100%
Interest income – H- (76%)
Gain on sale of AFS financial assets -H-100%
Foreign exchange gains – H- (100%)
Loss on sale of investment properties- H- (100%)
Others -net– H- 89%
Net income- H- 41%
Total comprehensive income – H-116%

The causes for these material changes in the balance sheet and income statement accounts are all
explained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MDA) –Results of Operations and
Financial Condition above.
(viii) There are no seasonal aspects that have a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations of the Company.
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CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
There are no changes in and disagreements with accountants on any accounting and financial disclosures
during the past two years ended December 31, 2008 or during any subsequent interim period.
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DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND
CONTROL PERSONS
The following table sets forth the persons who served as a Director and/or Executive Officer of TDI, as at
the date of this Prospectus:
Name

Age

Position

Citizenship

Lucio C. Tan
Harry C. Tan
Lucio K. Tan, Jr.
Peter P. Ong
Carlos R. Alindada
Domingo T. Chua
Wilson T. Young
Faustino Munarriz
Nestor C. Mendones
Andres C. Co
Randy L. Cailles
Miguel C. Khao
Teddy C. Ong
Joseph E. Tcheng, Jr.
Ma. Irma B. Tan
Juanita Tan Lee

75
63
43
61
70
67
53
88
54
56
53
67
50
50
50
66

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Director, President & CEO
Independent Director
Independent Director
Treasurer
Chief Operating Officer
Executive Vice President
Senior Vice President and CFO
Senior Vice President
Senior Vice President
Senior Vice President
Senior Vice President
Vice President
Vice President
Corporate Secretary

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

The following describes the background and business experience of the Issuer’s Directors and Executive
Officers during the last five years:
Lucio C. Tan, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of TDI since 1998. He is also Chairman of
Philippine Airlines Inc., Asia Brewery, Inc., Himmel Industries, Inc., Fortune Tobacco Corp., PAL
Holdings, Inc., Eton Properties Philippines, Inc., Grandspan Development Corp., and Lucky Travel Corp.
He also serves as Director of Philippine National Bank, Century Park Hotel and Charter House, Inc. and
is a Majority Stockholder of Allied Banking Corp. He graduated from Far Eastern University with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical Engineering.
Harry C. Tan, is the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of TDI since July 2009. He is also Vice
Chairman of Eton Properties Philippines, Inc.; Managing Director of Charter House; Director of Basic
Holding Corp., Philippine Airlines, Inc., Fortune Tobacco Corp., Tobacco Recyclers Corp., Asia
Brewery, Inc., Allied Banking Corp., PAL Holdings, Inc. and Tanduay Distillers, Inc. He is also President
of Century Park Hotel and Landcom Realty Corp., Chairman of Tobacco Board, and Vice President of
Lucky Travel Corp. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical Engineering from the Mapua
Institute of Technology.
Lucio K. Tan, Jr., is the President and CEO of TDI. He assumed the position of President in July 2009.
He is also a Director of Allied Bankers Insurance Corp., Philippine Airlines, Inc., Air Philippines, Inc.,
Philippine National Bank, PAL Holdings, Inc. and Macroasia Corporation. He is also the Executive Vice
President of Fortune Tobacco Corporation and Foremost Farms, Inc. Mr. Tan graduated from the
University of California, Davis in 1991 with a Bachelors degree in Civil Engineering and has Masters
Degree in Business Administration from the Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University.
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Peter P. Ong, is an Independent Director of TDI since December 2009. He is also an Independent
Director of Tanduay Holdings, Inc., Director/Sales Director of PDM Philippine Industries, Inc., Director
of Luna RioLand Holdings and Industrial Products Sales Manager of Kimberly-Clark Philippines, Inc. He
holds a degree in Bachelor of Science Major in Management from the University of the East.
Carlos R. Alindada, is an Independent Director of TDI since December 2009. He is also an Independent
Director of Tanduay Holdings, Inc., East West Banking Corporation and Citibank Savings, Inc.,
Chairman of the Financial Reporting Standards Council and the Accounting Standards Council, and
Member of the Rehabilitation Receiver Team of Philippine Airlines, Inc. He is also Commissioner of the
Energy Regulatory Commission; Chairman of the Board of Trustees of SGV Foundation, and Trustee of
Philippine Business for Social Progress. He is a Certified Public Accountant with a Bachelor in Business
Administration from University of the East and Masters in Business Administration from New York
University.
Domingo T. Chua, is Treasurer of TDI since July 2009 . He is also Chairman and Director of Allied
Banking Corp. He is a member of the Board of Directors of various firms, including Eton Properties
Philippines, Inc., PAL Holdings, Inc., Asia Brewery, Inc., Pan Asia Securities Corporation, Alliedbankers
Insurance Corporation, Foremost Farms, Inc., Maranaw Hotel & Restaurant Corporation, Eurotiles
Industries Corporation, PNB General Insurers Co. Inc., PNB Corporation Guam, Eton Properties
Philippines, Inc. and PNB Life Insurance Inc. He also serves as President of Allied Leasing and Finance
Corporation, Manufacturing Services and Trade Corporation and Lucky Travel Corporation, as Chairman
of Air Phils. Corp. and PNB Securities Inc., and as Managing Director of Himmel Industries, Inc. He
holds a degree in Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering from Mapua Institute of Technology.
Wilson T. Young, is the Chief Operating Officer of TDI since 1988. He is President and Director of
Tanduay Holdings Inc., and Director of Victorias Milling Corp., Tanduay Brands International Inc., and
Eton Properties Phils., Inc. He is a member of the Board of Trustees of the University of the East (UE)
and the Vice Chairman of UE - Ramon Magsaysay Memorial Medical Center. He also serves as COO of
Asian Alcohol Corp., Total Bulk Corp., Flor de Cana Shipping, and Absolute Chemicals Inc. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accountancy from the University of the East and has a Masters degree in
National Security from the National Defense College. He is a Certified Public Accountant and worked
with SGV & Co. before joining the Lucio Tan Group.
Faustino Munarriz, is the Executive Vice President, Research and Development and Chief Chemist of
TDI. Mr. Munarriz has served as Head of Research and Development since 1988. He is in his fiftieth year
with Tanduay serving in various positions in the Research and Development department. He has a degree
in Bachelor of Science Major in Chemical Engineering from Adamson University.
Nestor C. Mendones, is the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of TDI. Mr. Mendones has
served the TDI since 1999. He is also the Chief Financial Officer of Tanduay Holdings, Inc.
Before
joining the Lucio Tan Group of Companies (LTGC), he worked with Eastwest Banking Corp., Bank of
the Philippine Island, Family Bank and SGV and Co. He is a Certified Public Accountant and holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accountancy (Magna Cum Laude) from the University of the East.
Andres C. Co. is the Senior Vice President for Marketing of TDI. He is also a director of Tanduay
Holdings, Inc. He has served the Company since 2003 but prior to his current position, he has been the
President of Mindar Trading Corporation and a Director of Wellform Trading Corporation. He holds a
degree in Bachelor of Science in Commerce major in Accounting.
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Randy L. Cailles, is the Senior Vice President, Production and Chief Production Officer of TDI. Mr.
Cailles has served as Head of Production since 1989. Prior to assuming his current duties, he was Plant
Manager at Paramount Vinyl Products from 1978-1990. He holds a degree in Bachelor of Science in
Electrical Engineering from the Mapua Institute of Technology-Manila.
Miguel C. Khao, is the Senior Vice President, Engineering of TDI. Mr. Khao has served as Engineering
Head since 1988. Mr. Khao is in his fortieth year with LTGC heading various constructions and
engineering projects.
Teddy C. Ong, is the Senior Vice President and Chief Purchasing and Logistics Officer of the TDI group.
Mr. Ong is a director of Tanduay Holdings, Inc. He has served the LT Group since 1983. He is also
concurrently the Purchasing Officer of Philippine Airlines, Inc. and Special Assistant to the
Chairman/CEO. He has a degree in Metallurgical Engineering from the Mapua Institute of Technology.
Joseph E. Tcheng, Jr., is the Vice President-Administration and Assistant to the Chief Operating Officer
of TDI. Mr. Tcheng has served as Assistant to the Chief Operating Officer from 1997-2008. Prior to that,
he has been the Plant Manager of TDI-Cabuyao from 1990-1997. He has been with the LTGC since 1981.
He holds a degree in BSBA major in Accounting from the Holy Angel University.
Ma. Irma B. Tan, is the Vice President, Corporate Planning of TDI. Ms. Tan joined the Company in
2007. She worked with Filinvest Land, Inc. and SGV and Co. before joining the Company. She finished
her MBA degree from the University of the Philippines. She graduated from the same school with a
degree in Bachelor of Science major in Economics (Cumlaude).
Juanita Tan Lee, is the Corporate Secretary of TDI since 1998. She is also Director of PAL Holdings,
Inc., Eton Properties Philippines, Inc.; Director/Corporate Secretary of Asia Brewery, Inc., Asian Alcohol
Corp., Charter House, Inc., Dominium Realty & Construction Corp., Foremost Farms, Inc., Fortune
Tobacco Corp., Fortune Tobacco Int’l Corp., Himmel Industries, Inc., Landcom Realty Corp., Lucky
Travel Corp., Manufacturing Services & Trade Corp. Marcuenco Realty & Development Corp., Tobacco
Recyclers Corp., Total Bulk Corp., Zebra Holdings, Inc., Tanduay Brands International, Inc. and Asst.
Corp. Secretary of Basic Holdings, Inc. and Tanduay Holdings, Inc. She holds a degree in Bachelor of
Science in Business Administration major in Accounting from the University of the East.
SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES
Except for the executive officers stated above, there are no other significant employees who are expected
to make a significant contribution to the business.
FAMILY RELATIONSHIP
Messrs. Lucio C. Tan, Chairman of Tanduay Distillers, Inc. is the father of Mr. Lucio K. Tan, Jr. Mr.
Lucio C. Tan and Mr. Harry C. Tan are brothers and Mr. Domingo T. Chua is their brother-in-law.
INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS DURING THE PAST 5 YEARS
None of the directors and executive officers of the Corporation are; (1) involved in any bankruptcy
petition filed by or against any business of which such director or officer was a general partner or
executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time; (2) involved in
any conviction by final judgment, in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or (3) subject to a
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;
(4) subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any
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court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring,
suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities or
banking activities; or (5) found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction(in a civil action),
the Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or other organized
trading market or self regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or
regulation, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The Company pays a fixed amount of management fees for all the executive officers and directors
seconded by THI to TDI, except for one. From 2007 to 2009 the Company paid P36 million per year in
management fees and expects to pay the same amount in 2010 for services rendered by the following:
Name
Lucio C. Tan
Harry C. Tan
Domingo T. Chua
Lucio K. Tan, Jr.
Wilson T. Young
Faustino Munarriz
Nestor C. Mendones
Andres C. Co
Randy L. Cailles
Miguel C. Khao
Teddy C. Ong
Yu Tiong Will*
Joseph E. Tcheng, Jr.
Ma. Irma B. Tan
Juanita Tan Lee

Position
Chairman
Vice Chairman
Treasurer
President & CEO
Chief Operating Officer
Executive Vice President
Senior Vice President & CFO
Senior Vice President
Senior Vice President
Senior Vice President
Senior Vice President
Senior Vice President
Vice President
Vice President
Corporate Secretary

*Retired in July 31, 2007
There are no arrangements to which the directors of the Company are compensated, or are to be
compensated, directly or indirectly, for any services provided as a director, including any additional
amounts payable for committee participation or special assignments, for the last completed fiscal year and
the ensuing year.
There are no other arrangements, employment contract, compensatory plan, arrangement nor outstanding
warrants and options in place with the Company’s CEO, executive officers and all officers and directors
as a group.
The CEO and the senior officers are seconded by THI and do not receive compensation from TDI.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN
RECORD AND BENEFICIAL OWNERS
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN RECORD AND BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF MORE
THAN 5% AS OF DECEMBER 7, 2009
Title of
Class

Common

Name, Address of
record owner and
relationship with
Issuer
Tanduay Holdings,
Inc.

Name of Beneficial
Owner and
Relationship with
Record Owner
-ditto-

Citizenship

No. of Shares
Held

Percent

Filipino

599,999,993 /
Record Owner

100.00%

348 J. Nepomuceno
St. San Miguel,
Manila
Controlling
Stockholder
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AS OF DECEMBER 7, 2009
Title of
Class
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
-

Name of Beneficial Owner

Lucio C. Tan
Harry C. Tan
Lucio K. Tan, Jr.
Peter P. Ong
Carlos R. Alindada
Domingo T. Chua
Wilson T. Young
Faustino Munarriz
Nestor C. Mendones
Andres C. Co
Randy L. Cailles
Miguel C. Khao
Teddy C. Ong
Yu Tiong Will
Joseph E. Tcheng, Jr.
Ma. Irma B. Tan

Juanita Tan Lee

Amount and Nature of
Record/
Beneficial Ownership
1/r
1/r
1/r
1/r
1/r
1/r
1/r
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

Citizenship

Percent
of Class

Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Security ownership of all directors and officers as a group unnamed is 5 shares representing 0% of the
company’s total outstanding capital stock.
There are no additional shares which the listed beneficial and record owners has the right to acquire
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within 30 days from any warrants, options, rights and conversion privileges or similar obligations or
otherwise.
Each of the above named shareholders is entitled to vote only to the extent of the number of shares
registered in his/her name.
VOTING TRUST HOLDERS OF 5% OR MORE
There are no voting trust holders of 5% or more of the common shares.
CHANGES IN CONTROL
There are no arrangements that may result in change in control of the Company.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
There are no parties that fall outside the definition “related parties” with whom the Company or its related
parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms of material transactions that may not
be available from other, more clearly independent parties on an arm’s length basis.
The effects of the related party transactions on the financial statements have been identified in Note 16 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
In addition to Note 16 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements the following are additional
relevant related party disclosures:
The Company’s noted related parties are Asia Brewery, Inc. (ABI), Fortune Tobacco Corporation (FTC),
Allied Banking Corporation (ABC), Philippine National Bank (PNB), Tanduay Holdings, Inc. (THI) and
Tangent Holdings Corporation (THC). Transactions with these related parties are necessary in the normal
course of the Company’s business. Though substantial in amount, they are still within normal trade
practice. There are no special risks or contingencies since the usual business risks like problems in
quality, failure to deliver when needed and price of product which is dependent on the cost efficiency of
suppliers, are managed in accordance with the terms and arrangements comparable to those of unrelated
parties.
a) Business purpose of the arrangements:
TDI does business with related parties to avoid the risk of material shortages and unfair pricing and to
take advantage of stronger ties fostered by trust and confidence. There is also better coordination with the
suppliers on the quality, production scheduling and pricing considerations.
b) Identification of the related parties transaction business and nature of the relationship:
1. ABI, Affiliate. Purchases of bottles and other materials amounted to =
P618.4 million and P
=858.1

million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively; and sale of cullets and
other materials amounted to P
=26.5 million and =
P33.1 million for the nine months ended September
30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
2. FTC, Affiliate. Sale of alcohol for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 amounted
to P
=42.7 million and P
=38.7 million, respectively.
3. ABC, Local Affiliated Bank. The Group has outstanding Peso and Dollar-denominated short-term
investments as well as current and savings deposits, which bear interest based on prevailing market
rates.
The Company has a long-term loan amounting to =
P199.5 million included as part of the syndicated
loan as of September 30, 2009, December 31, 2008 and September 30, 2008.
AAC has a short-term loan amounting to =
P200.0 million as of September 30, 2009 and December 31,
2008 included as part of bank loans.
4. PNB, Local Affiliated Bank. The Group has outstanding Peso and Dollar-denominated short-term
investments as well as current and savings deposits, which bear interest based on prevailing market
rates.
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5. THI, Parent Company, and THC, Ultimate Parent Company. In February 2006, prior to the
acquisition by THI of Unimark (now a wholly owned subsidiary of THI), the Company advanced P
=
750.0 million to THC which bears interest at 9.8% per annum. On September 13, 2006, THI acquired
Unimark for P
=800.0 million on account, by recognizing such liability to the previous owners of
Unimark of the same amount. Subsequently in September 2006, THI assumed THC’s liability to the
Company amounting to P
=750.0 million in exchange for THC’s assumption of THI’s liability to the
previous stockholders of Unimark. The Company recognized interest income relating to these
advances amounting to P
=19.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008.
In 2008, dividends declared by the Company due to THI amounting to =
P300.0 million were set off
against the Company’s advances to and interest receivable from THI amounting to P
=261.0 million
and P
=31.0 million in 2008.
On October 13, 2008, the Company collected in full its advances to THI, of which, dividends payable
amounting to P
=261.0 million was set off against advances to THI. The Company also received
advances from THI amounting to =
P50.0 million which it included under “Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities” in the December, 31, 2008 consolidated balance sheet.
The consolidated balance sheets include the following account balances resulting from the foregoing
transactions with related parties:

Cash and cash equivalents – local
banks belonging to the LTGC
Trade receivables from local
companies belonging to the
LTGC
Advances to parent company
Accounts payable to:
Local companies belonging to
the LTGC
Parent company
Joint venture

September 30,
2009
(Unaudited)

December 31,
2008
(Audited)

September 30,
2008
(Unaudited)

P
=282,270,992

=
P370,731,357

=
P349,907,356

P
=182,282,248
P-

=
P178,313,707
P-

=
P165,442,954
P 29,293,540

P
=44,919,960
61,640,000
20,000,000
P
=126,559,960

=
P99,127,660
58,730,000
20,000,000
=
P177,857,660

=
P168,395,519
50,000,000
20,000,000
=
P238,395,519

Bank loans – local banks
=
P399,523,810
=
P199,523,810
belonging to the LTGC*
P
=399,523,810
*Includes syndicated loan amounting to =
P199,523,810 as of September 30, 2009, December 31,
2008 and September 30, 2008.
c) Transaction prices are based on terms that are no less favorable than those arranged with third
parties.
d) Transactions have been fairly evaluated since the Company adheres to industry standards and
practices.
e) There are no other ongoing contractual or other commitments as a result of the arrangements.
There are no long term supplier’s contracts. The Company can source out from outside suppliers if
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they are more favorable.
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DESCRIPTION OF DEBT
TDI and its subsidiaries have outstanding bank loans amounting to =
P700.0 million as at 30 September
2009. This consists of:
a. an unsecured P
=300.0 million loan from Banco de Oro which bears an annual interest of 9.5% with
maturity extended to November 23, 2009 (extended twice from January 28, 2009 @ 10% p.a. and
May 27, 2009 @ 9.5% p.a., respectively). This has been settled and fully paid on October 26,
2009.
b. short-term loans payable to Allied Bank amounting to P200 million which bears an annual
interest of 8.5% with a term of 30 days
c. an unsecured P
=200.0 million loan from Security Bank with maturity extended for an additional
179 days to April 23, 2010 (from October 26, 2009).
As at September 30, 2009, TDI has a total of =
P4.16 billion syndicated long-term debt outstanding (net of
the current portion of long term debt) from a consortium of banks for the purpose of financing its general
corporate funding requirements, including plant expansion, and servicing its existing short-term
obligations. The loan is payable in nine (9) semi-annual installments of =
P5.0 million starting on February
15, 2007, and a final payment of P
=4.155 billion on August 15, 2011. The loan carries an annual interest
that is fixed at the 5-year MART1 rate as of February 13, 2006 plus 1% spread. TDI’s current portion of
long-term debt outstanding was P
=10.0 million as at 30 September 2009.
TDI paid a total of P
=30.0 million on February 15 and August 15 of 2009, 2008 and 2007.
The syndicated loan provides for certain negative covenants on TDI such as:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.
vii.

TDI shall not create or suffer to exist any lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance.
TDI shall not make any material and adverse change in the present nature of its business taken as
a whole.
TDI shall not enter into any merger or consolidation, except where TDI is the surviving
corporation.
There shall be no significant change in TDI’s present management or change in the majority
ownership and control of its capital stock.
TDI shall not sell, lease, or transfer all or a substantial portion of its assets other than in the
ordinary course of its business.
TDI shall not make any loans or advances to its directors, officers, and stockholders, except in the
ordinary course of business.
TDI shall maintain, based on the current audited financial statements, a maximum debt-to-equity
ratio of 1.75 times and a minimum current ratio of 2.0 times.

TDI does not believe that these covenants will impose constraints on its ability to finance its capital
expenditure program or, more generally, to develop its business and enhance its financial performance.
TDI is in full compliance with the covenants required by the creditors as at 30 September 2009.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The corporate governance platform of Tanduay Distillers, Inc. (TDI or the Issuer or the Company) is
anchored on the Corporate Governance Manual, dated 31 December 2002 of its parent company, Tanduay
Holdings, Inc. In 2009, TDI adopted its own Corporate Governance Manual (the Manual).
The Manual institutionalizes the principles of good corporate governance in its entire organization. It also
lays down the Issuer’s compliance system and identifies the responsibilities of the Board and management
in relation to good corporate governance. Under the Manual, the Board is responsible for promoting and
adhering to the principles and best practices of corporate governance, ensuring that the Company
complies with all relevant laws, regulations and codes of best business practices, fostering the long term
success of the Issuer and securing its sustained competitiveness in a manner consistent with its corporate
objective and fiduciary responsibility, which it shall exercise in the best interest of its shareholders
Two independent directors (namely, Peter P. Ong and Carlos R. Alindada) sit on the Board. The Issuer
adopts the definition of independence in the SRC. The Issuer considers as an independent director one
who, except for his director’s fees and shareholdings, is independent of management and free from any
business or other relationship which, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with his
exercise of independent judgment in carrying out his responsibilities as a director of the Issuer.
The Manual expresses the Company’s policies on disclosure and transparency, and discusses the duties
and responsibilities of internal and external auditors. The Manual further provides for the rights of all
shareholders and the protection of the interests of the minority stockholders. Any violation of the Manual
is punishable by a penalty ranging from reprimand to termination from office.
In order to ensure a high standard of best practice for the Issuer and its shareholders, the Board adopts a
system of internal checks and balances within the Board, and conducts a regular review of the
effectiveness of such system. In order to maintain the adequacy and effectiveness of such system, a
continuing review of the Issuer’s internal control system is conducted. The Board also maintains an
investor relations program that will keep the stockholders informed of important developments in the
Company as well as establish and maintain an alternative dispute resolution system for the amicable
settlement of disputes between the Company and its stockholders, and the Company and third parties,
including regulatory authorities.
To aid in complying with the principles of good corporate governance, the Board created two committees:
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is primarily tasked to review and evaluate all candidates nominated to the
Board and other appointments that require Board approval. The Audit Committee asissts the Board in the
performance of its oversight responsibility for the financial reporting process, system of internal control,
audit process and monitoring of compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.
COMMITEES OF THE BOARD
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assesses the effectiveness of the Board’s processes and
procedures in the election or replacement of directors. It is composed of at least three members, one of
whom is an independent director. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee establishes a formal and
transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration packages of the individual directors and officers and
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ensures that their compensation is consistent with the Issuer’s culture, strategy and business environment.
The members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are:
Chairman : Peter P. Ong
Members : Domingo T. Chua
Juanita Tan Lee
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee assists the board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. It performs oversight
over Management’s activities in managing credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal and other risks of
the Company. This function includes regular receipt from Management of information on risk exposures
and risk management activities. The Audit Committee ensures that the internal and external auditors act
independently of each other and that both auditors are given unrestricted access to all records, properties
and personnel to enable them to perform their respective audit functions. It is also tasked to ensure that
the annual internal audit plan is in conformity with the objectives of the Issuer. The internal audit plan
includes audit scope, resources and the budget to implement it. The Audit Committee also monitors and
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Issuer’s internal control system, including financial
reporting control and information technology security. The Audit Committee is tasked to monitor and
facilitate compliance with laws, rules and regulations. The Audit Committee is composed of at least three
members of the Board, one of whom is an independent director. The chairman of the Audit Committee is
an independent director.
The members of the Audit Committee are:
Chairman
Members

: Carlos R. Alindada
: Lucio K. Tan, Jr.
Peter P. Ong
Ma. Cecilia L. Pesayco
Juanita Tan Lee

.
COMPLIANCE AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE MANUAL
The Board of Directors has designated a Compliance Officer to be responsible for the administration of
the Manual. The Compliance Officer ensures that the principles and policies listed in the Manual are
implemented and followed by shareholders, board members, corporate officers, managers and staff. The
Compliance Officer is also tasked to monitor the compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance as
well as the rules and regulations of regulatory agencies, and if any violations are found, report the matter
to the Board and recommend the imposition of appropriate disciplinary action on the responsible parties
and the adoption of measures to prevent a repetition of said violation.
There has been no instance in which any individual has deviated from the Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following pages set forth TDI’s audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 and the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008.
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